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Financial Summary

Al 35 itk &

HEZE12BNBLEE
For the Year Ended December 31

2020 & 20194 2018 4 20174 2016 &
AREBTRT ARETT ARETRT ARETIT ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue A 379,555 297,907 263,820 241,659 120,897
Gross profit EH 116,906 101,188 89,905 83,552 43,157
Gross profit margin EF RS 30.8% 34.0% 34.1% 34.6% 35.7%
Profit before tax B B4 5 & F 63,255 51,917 32,856 43,820 29,228
Profit attributable to equity NEERRE
shareholders of the Company &1 & 7 50,874 44,822 28,016 35,055 24,981
Listing expenses FHRX - 4,005 12,447 9,937 =
MW12831H
As at December 31
2020 & 20194 2018 4 2017 2016 &
ARETRT ARETT ARETT AREBTIT ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Total assets BELEE 625,908 522,552 338,993 311,920 306,788
Total liabilities BELEE 355,836 291,833 223,546 275,336 134,016
Total equity BERE 270,072 230,719 115,447 36,584 172,772
Notes: Pt &E -
The summary of the consolidated results and financial position of 7% % B & £ 20164 % 2017412 8318 IF & & &

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 are
extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 31 December

2018 (the “Prospectus”).

)}
BAEXBRRUBHRABENREAARRBHA
2018F 12 A THHMBRER(BRE
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Chairman’s Statement

FRHBSES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors of China
Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

During 2020, COVID-19 had resulted in a decline in the
global macro economy, reshuffling in the industry, and
dramatic changes in peoples’ lives and consumption
patterns. Over the Year, China’s automotive industry
resumed production quickly by coping with the disruptions
in domestic and overseas supply chains and shortages
of parts and components. A series of national supportive
policies and launch of new infrastructure projects brought
about a boom in automobile production and sales.
According to the statistics of the China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers, the sales of China’s auto
industry grew by 5.4% year-on-year, with the sales of heavy
trucks reaching a new high at more than 1.6 million trucks
for the whole year.

In the extraordinary year of 2020, the Group achieved a
growth of 27.4% in revenue from sales, and continued to
consolidate its leading position in the largest heavy truck
market in Northwest China. The Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB379.6 million in 2020, which represents
a year-on-year increase of 27.4% (2019: RMB297.9
million). The profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company recorded a year-on-year increase of 13.5%
to approximately RMB50.9 million (2019: approximately
RMB44.8 million). The Company proposed the payment of
2020 Final Dividend to the shareholders of HK$0.6 cents
per ordinary Share.
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Looking back on 2020, the Tianrui Excellent Management
System (“TES”) had been established largely and
operating smoothly; the training program for internal
talents, new joiners and university graduates had been
initially established; progress was made in standardized
operations, automation transformation, and information
system development; employees received steady pay
raise and various benefits; during the epidemic, we worked
with the government to make and deliver goggles in time,
making our own contribution to the fight again COVID-19.
For all these achievements, | would like to express my
sincere thanks to my team and all employees for their hard
work and dedication, and to our customers and suppliers
for giving us their greatest trust and support.

For 2021, under the background of routinized epidemic
prevention and control, China will face a complicated
economic situation and changing market pressure. Due
to the lower base caused by COVID-19 in 2020 and the
impact of full switch to new emission standards in July
2021, the sales of heavy trucks may show a downward
trend throughout the year. Despite significant uncertainties,
China’s auto industry, as a pillar industry, needs to
play its role in stabilizing the fundamentals of economic
development. In addition, 2021 is the 100th anniversary
of the founding of the Party. Therefore, adjustments to
the macroeconomic policy will continue to benefit the
automobile industry. Thanks to the effective control of the
epidemic, the orderly resumption of work and production,
the continuous consumption upgrade, and the stabilization
and rebound of the national economy, the auto market will
maintain a high growth under the new development pattern
of “dual circulation”.

Chairman’s Statement

FTRHSEE

B 220204 © KiIm £ 8 & 12 88 R (TES) L #
EARAY FEBET: FREE -EHREIRK
BAEEERHNOTEY  BELEE B
fhthiE ERLEGIEEBFHEE ET
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2020 F & 15 5 R A 1K A BB & X 202167
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Chairman’s Statement

FRHBSES

Starting from November 2019, the Group has been
developing the TES by reference to excellent domestic
and foreign operating and R&D systems, with a view
to becoming a regional leader in QCDP (Quality, Cost,
Delivery and People) performance through a group-wide
reform for two to three years, in response to the increasingly
fierce market competition. After a year of hard work,
the Group has achieved significant improvements in all
indicators, forging a unique competitive edge in terms of
products, technologies, quality, brands, costs, lead time
and services. Looking forward to 2021, the Group will take
the initiative to complete the SOPs for five new products in
the first quarter, and focus on standardization, automation,
digitalization, and system development, so as to drive
sales revenue growth and the steady development and
continuous improvement of the management system.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our honorable
shareholders. The Group will take priority in promoting
sustainable development and constantly improving
business management by grasping market opportunities,
bringing into full play of its advantages and firmly adhering
to the philosophy of “Focusing on and Embracing Changes
to Setup Standards”. By implementing the TES and further
increasing its competitiveness, the Group is committed
to promoting its long-term and sound development,
transformation and reform, so as to create greater value to
reward the support of the shareholders.

Hou Jianli
Chairman

Xi'an, China, 26 March 2021
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Automotive ownership in the PRC increased rapidly amid
China’s rapid economic growth, continuing urbanization
and increasing levels of household consumption. The
growth of the heavy trucks and passenger vehicles’ interior
decorative product markets in the PRC are mainly driven
by the following growth drivers: (i) increase in popularity of
passenger vehicles and wide application of heavy trucks; (ii)
increase in demand from logistics industry and construction
industry; (iii) higher requirements for comfort; and (iv)
regulatory control and policy support. The Board expects
that the automotive interior products market in the PRC will
maintain growth as China’s automotive ownership continues
to grow.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are the largest heavy trucks’ interior decorative
components and parts manufacturer in North West China
with a market-leading position. Our products primarily
comprise a wide array of automotive interior decorative
components and parts and to a lesser extent exterior
decorative components and parts, which are designed to
be installed on heavy trucks or passenger vehicles. We
offer design and development solutions tailored to meet
our customers’ specific requirements of automotive interior
decorative products including functional specifications and
appearance.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of automotive interior and exterior decorative
components and parts. Set forth below is the breakdown
of our revenue by product category for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019:

Management Discussion and Analysis

AEBFTEREREANNEMSTBHRE
K E - K HEH E2020F K2019F 12
ABEFEZREMEBENE > 2H MK A

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019
2020 F 2019
RMB’ 000 % RMB’000 %
ARB TR % AREFTT %
Heavy trucks’ decorative ERNREEMHT R
components and parts 332,448 87.6 254,732 85.5
Passenger vehicles’ decorative FRBEBEMTHMG
components and parts 47,107 12.4 43,175 14.5
Total st 379,555 100.0 297,907 100.0

Revenue from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts increased from approximately
RMB254.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB332.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase
of approximately 30.5%, mainly due to the increasing
customers demand of our Group’s heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts, which was principally attributable
to the increase in construction and industrial activities.
Since heavy trucks were widely applied in infrastructure
construction and logistics industries while the construction
and logistics industries were stimulated by the policies such
as “One Belt, One Road” and “Yangtze River Economic
Zone”, there has been a constant increase in the demand
for heavy trucks.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A
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Revenue from sales of passenger vehicles’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of passenger vehicles’
decorative components and parts increased from
approximately RMB43.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB47.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase of
approximately 9.1%. Such increase was mainly due to our
expansion of sales shares of our existing customers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue increased from approximately RMB297.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB379.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, representing an increase of
approximately 27.4%. The increase was primarily due to
growth in sales of our heavy trucks’ decorative components
and parts and passenger vehicles’ decorative components
and parts.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased from approximately
RMB101.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB116.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase of
approximately 15.5%. Our overall gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 34.0% for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately 30.8% for the year ended
31 December 2020. Such decrease was mainly due to lower
selling price for some products sold during the year and
higher purchase price for raw materials.

Other income

Our other income increased from approximately
RMB6.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB6.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, representing an increase of approximately
6.8%. Such change was primarily due to (i) the
compensation of RMB1.2 million received from a contractor
in 2019; (ii) the reduction of RMB0.5 million in government
subsidy recognised in 2020 compared to 2019; and (iii) the
increase of RMB2.6 million in the revenue from the sales of
medical goggles and scrap materials in 2020.

Management Discussion and Analysis

E I [E 515 b 53 it
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Management Discussion and
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Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased from
approximately RMB9.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB9.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase
of approximately 5.1%. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in transportation costs as a result of the increase
in our sales volume.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased from approximately
RMB37.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB41.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, representing an increase of 9.2%. The
increase was mainly due to the increase of approximately
RMB2.9 million in research and development expenses in
2020.

Impairment losses reversed/(provided) for the year on
trade and other receivables

The Group reversed impairment losses on trade and
other receivables of approximately RMBO0.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, compared to provision
of impairment losses on trade and other receivables
of approximately RMB2.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The reversal at 31 December 2020 was
mainly due to the decrease in trade receivables.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased from approximately
RMB5.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB9.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, representing an increase of approximately
71.3%. The increase was mainly due to (i) the increase
in capital needed for daily operating activities such as
purchase arising from the growth of sales revenue in 2020;
and (ii) the increase in capital needed for the investments
in equipments and moulds of new projects in 2020.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A
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Income tax

Our income tax expenses increased from approximately
RMB7.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB12.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, representing an increase of 74.5%.
The increase was mainly due to the increase of the profit
before taxation during the period. The effective tax rate
increased from approximately 13.7% for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately 19.6% for the year ended
31 December 2020, mainly due to the fact that Baoji Qinrui
Automotive Interiors Co., Lid (B # FIm A B N AR
‘A 8]), a subsidiary of Xi'an Tianrui established in 24 July
2019, did not obtained the high-tech enterprise qualification
certification and the income tax rate was 25%.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year increased
from approximately RMB44.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately RMB50.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase of
approximately 13.5%.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The operating capital of the Group was mainly from cash
from operating activities, bank and other loans. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, cash and cash equivalents
of the Group were approximately RMB56.6 million and
RMB30.2 million, respectively.

The Group monitors the cash flows and cash balance on a
regular basis and seek to maintain optimal level of liquidity
that can meet the working capital needs while supporting a
healthy level of business and its various growth strategies.

Bank and Other Loans

Bank and other loans increased from approximately
RMB78.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB96.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Among them, the bank and other loans
in the amounts of approximately RMB58.0 million (2019:
RMB78.1 million) were secured by trade receivables and
bills receivables, property, plant and equipment of the
Group, and the credit loans and the loans guaranteed by
third party amounted to approximately RMB38.0 million
(2019: RMB Nil).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 and 2020 were
at 33.8% and 35.6%, respectively.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity as
at the end of the respective year. Total debts include all
interest-bearing bank and other loans.

Inventories

Our inventories increased from approximately RMB60.8
million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB78.5
million as at 31 December 2020, representing an increase
of approximately 29.0%. Such increase was mainly due to
an increase of production activities and scale in response
to our business growth and the raw materials accumulated
for processing certain sales orders to be delivered after the
Lunar New Year in 2021.

Prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment

Our prepayment for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment decreased from approximately RMB23.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB9.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing a decrease of approximately 56.7%. The
decrease was mainly due to the fact that the prepayments
made in 2019 have been reclassified to the property, plant
and equipment in 2020.

Secured Assets
Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by
the following assets of the Group:

Analysis

EXREEL=E
R2019F N2020F12A31H EX & B It
R 5 5l 533.8% N 35.6% °

BEXARBLEEHFREFRNEHRLER
NHESRE BEHRABEEERMAFRERTR
H & 5K e

zE

7 EN2019F 128431 4 A R #6087
B L E2020F12A31H M AR K785
BEL EIEHBE20% - ZEMETERA
RARHEBEEMBMNEETSHMEKX
HE RREERMB AN TIR2021F 2 E
FrXAMETHETEMS -

BEYE BERRBZAMNRE

BEVE BELKBH 2B FKEHR20190F
12A31B N AREE23.05H & TR 22020
FI2A31EMNHARBIOOBEE T RIEHN
5B56.7% ° B X B2 B MN2019F FTIE 7
ZHIBEE2020FEAME  BEKEE-

EEMAEE
AEENETROTREMCERBAKEDN
ATEEFEER:

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARET T AREF T

Property, plant and equipment N 84,576 76,615
Trade and bills receivables Eo5RWHRIENERERE 30,625 46,718
115,201 123,333
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Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2020, the capital expenditures were
approximately RMB36.9 million (2019: approximately
RMB31.3 million). The capital expenditures incurred for
the year ended 31 December 2020 primarily related to
the construction of new plants and the purchase of new
machinery and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitments in
respect of property, plant and equipment contracted for
approximately RMB26.5 million (2019: approximately
RMB39.1 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities (2019: RMB Nil).

FLUCTUATION OF RMB EXCHANGE RATE AND

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The majority of the Group’s business and all bank
borrowings are denominated and accounted for in RMB.
Therefore, the Group does not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuation.

The Board does not expect the fluctuation of RMB
exchange rate and other foreign exchange fluctuations will
have material impact on the business operations or financial
results of the Group. The Group will closely monitor the
foreign exchange market and take appropriate and effective
measures from time to time to reduce any negative impact
from exchange-rate risk to the furthest extent.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no significant investments held or material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB10,024,000), representing HK$0.6 cents per ordinary
Share, for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Board hereby further announces that the final dividend is
expected to be paid on or before 20 August 2021, to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 23 June 2021.
A notice convening the annual general meeting and the
arrangement of the final dividend will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and
despatched to the shareholders of the Company in the
manner as required by the Listing Rules in due course.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 689
full time employees (2019: 540). For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group incurred total staff costs
of approximately RMB50.1 million (2019: approximately
RMB40.7 million), representing an increase of approximately
23.2% as compared with those in 2019.

The remuneration policy of our Group to reward its
employees and executives is based on their performance,
qualifications, competence displayed and market
comparable. Remuneration package typically comprises
salaries, other benefits, discretionary bonuses and
retirement benefits scheme contributions.

In order to retain and develop the knowledge, skill level
and quality of our employees, the Group places a strong
emphasis on training our employees. In addition, the Group
offers a competitive remuneration package to retain elite
employees, and reviews the package annually according
to industry benchmark and financial results as well as the
individual performance of employees.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15
January 2019 (the “Listing Date”). The net proceeds from
the Company’s issue of new shares in the global offering,
after deducting the underwriting commission and other
related listing expenses payable by the Company in relation
to the global offering, amounted to approximately HK$82.1
million, which are intended to be applied in compliance
with the intended use of proceeds set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” contained
in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 December
2018 (the “Prospectus”). On 22 June 2020, the Board has
resolved to change the unutilised net proceeds to allow the
Company to deploy its financial resources more efficiently.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 22 June 2020.

Set out below are details of the use of proceeds up to
31 December 2020:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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FERERE

ANDAER20199F1 8158 ([ £ B H]) 7 B
R EM - ANRREREEETHRMOLN
BREHEBAERARAREHRBERMNNE
MAHE LA BB RIBFEL 821
BEEL AL #IREHE BB A2018F 12
ASTEMBRER(BRERD P IR KRG
BIRFTBRERSR] — A A BTERE
HEEVER % B A% 3TE - R 20204 6 A 22
H E5eZ A8 T XA CHMBREFE
NEARRBIENERESIBBLEETHER -
BB F2HARA A A2204F6 A
2Bz RnE -

H E22020F12A831H 1L IS RBFEA
BREFBEINOT

Original
planned use of The  Actual usage
net proceeds  reallocation of upto31  Balance as at
assetoutin  the use of net December 31 December
Use the Prospectus proceeds 2020 2020
R E R 5 ENARE HZE2020%F 12020F
FERERE FERE 125318 12A31R
B# RERZ BEAR ERAZ B
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BERET BERET AERET RERET
(approximately)  (approximately)  (approximately)  (approximately)
(#4) (#4) (%) (##5)
Improving the production capabilities ReREEXNRES
and capacity 34.7 2.7 22.7 -
Partial repayment of bank loans BEFIBTER 14.4 14.4 144 =
Enhancing the research and development 12 S % & /)
capabilities 1.9 7.9 7.9 -
Improving and widening the product offerings 21 & BB X E R & 8.9 89 8.9 =
Establishing new offices and warehouses ~ RUHFEERRAE A FE
including the hiring of new salespersons AHNEEAEURELR
and optimising and upgrading AREMZS
the information systems 39 39 39 -
General working capital -REEES 8.3 243 243 =
Total @ 82.1 82.1 82.1 -
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MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The outbreak of the COVID-19 since early 2020 has
brought additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment in the PRC. As far as the Group’s business
are concerned, the outbreak has not negatively affected
the Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to date of this report. Management
will continue to monitor the development of COVID-19 and
react actively to its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of this report, neither our Company, nor its subsidiary have
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to the future, due to the development
campaign of western regions (78 &6 X 7 %) adopted in this
area which would spur the development of infrastructure,
such as transportation, energy, telecommunications,
etc., and considering that Shaanxi Government will raise
a special industrial fund of RMB4.0 billion to expedite
the automotive industry, the Group will capitalize on this
opportunity and continue to strengthen new product
development with existing customers, actively expand new
customers, continuously diversify product mix and enhance
core competitiveness.

In order to cope with the increasingly fierce market
competition, the Group has deployed in advance. With
the experience, technical expertise and knowledge
accumulated over years, we analyzed the latest technology
trends and launched new products. Currently, we have
obtained new projects such as rearview mirror, stream
guidance cover and bumper assembly. It is expected that
Standard Operating Procedure of five new products will be
completed in 2021. We would also focus on standardization,
automation, informatization and systematic construction,
so as to boost the growth of sales revenue and continuous
improvement of the management system.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERSHELRRERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli (£ £ Fl), aged 57, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of our
Board, the chief executive officer and the general manager
of our Group. Mr. Hou is mainly responsible for the overall
management, operations, strategic development and
business planning of our Group. Mr. Hou joined our Group
in May 2009 and has been acting as executive director
and general manager of Xi'an Tianrui since then. He
was appointed as our Director on 27 April 2017 and was
redesignated as our Executive Director on 9 May 2018.
Mr. Hou is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Hou is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company.

Mr. Hou also possesses over 30 years of experience in
the manufacturing industry. From August 1985 to January
2000, Mr. Hou successively served as technician, workshop
deputy director, branch manager, chief engineer and head
of the composite packaging materials research institute of
Bk 7 A 4k £ # i R (Shaanxi Province Pioneer Machinery
Factory*). Since January 2000, Mr. Hou served as legal
representative and director of E#H MW A E B ENBFEHR A
7] (Baoji Tianxiang Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd.*).

Mr. Hou graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Technology (B
75 T 2 Fx) (now known as Shaanxi University of Technology
(Pe 78 32 T K £)) in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in
industrial electronic automation in July 1985.

Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen Bierui (“Ms. Chen”), who
is our Controlling Shareholder.

Ms. Hou Yuxi (/& #), aged 32, is our Executive Director
and the assistant to the chairman of the Group. She is
mainly responsible for strategic planning, team evaluation,
and performance assessment. Ms. Hou joined our Group
in March 2020. She was appointed as our Executive
Director on 12 June 2020. Ms. Hou is also a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.
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Ms. Hou has over 6 years of experience in the banking
industry. From July 2013 to March 2020, Ms. Hou served
as a cash teller, counter teller, business appraisal post,
product manager, and wealth consultant for China
Minsheng Bank Co., Ltd. Xi’an Branch. During this period,
she obtained various certifications such as Certified
Financial Planner, International Certificate in Banking Risk
and Regulation (ICBRR).

Ms. Hou graduated from Fudan University in July 2013 with
a master’s degree in economics.

Ms. Hou is the daughter of Mr. Hou Jianli, who is our
Controlling Shareholder, Executive Director, the chairman
of our Board, the chief executive officer and the general
manager of our Group. Ms. Hou is also the daughter of Ms.
Chen, who is our Controlling Shareholder.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Honggiang (%K AL 3&), aged 51, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhu has over 19 years of
experience in legal practice in the PRC. He joined Shaanxi
Yongjia Law Firm (& 75 5k £ 12 B0 = 7% F7) in October 2001
as a lawyer and the deputy director and is currently a
partner of the law firm.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in law from Northwest College
of Political Science and Law (751t BUE & BY) (now known
as Northwest University of Political Science and Law
(7 4t B & K ) through self-study higher education
examination (B E# E 8 2% &) in the PRC in June 1998.
Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from Evening
College of Xi’an Technological Institute (78 % I % £ F%) (now
known as Xi'an Technological University (78 % T % K £))
in the PRC in July 2005. Mr. Zhu was admitted as a PRC
lawyer by the Shaanxi Provincial Department of Justice (B
784 71745 E8) in October 2001.
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Mr. Zhou Genshu (/& 1R ), aged 56, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company and a member of each of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhou has over 25 years of experience in the education
industry. Since November 1995, he worked in the
School of Materials Science and Engineering of Xi’an
Jiaotong University (A LZ X B AEM R R 2@ T 2 &
Bt ) successively as associate professor, professor and
doctorial supervisor and is mainly responsible for lecturing
and material science research. During such period, he has
hosted several important scientific research projects and
published academic papers on reputable scientific journals.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor's degree in foundry
engineering and a master’s degree in foundry engineering
from Tsinghua University (& % K £) in July 1986 and
August 1989 respectively. He obtained a doctoral degree
in foundry engineering from Northwestern Poly-technical
University (78 16 T % K 2) in October 1993. He obtained
a post-doctoral certificate in material science and
engineering from National Post-Doctoral Regulatory
Committee (2 B 1§ =12 E# &£ 8 €) in December 1995,
He serves as the committee member and secretary of the
Typical Component Heat Treatment Technology Committee
of the Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society (% B £ g
BEgHUTHARRERME B §) since October 2006,
the standing committee member of the Heat Treatment
Branch of Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society (¥
M TR 8 g I E IR H g)since July 2015 and the
chairman of the Material and Heat Treatment Branch of the
Shaanxi Provincial Mechanical Engineering Society (Bt 7§
LW IEE2SH R EE D ) since March 2016.
He has been granted several awards including the third
prize of Shaanxi Province Science and Technology Award,
the second prize of Xi’an City Science and Technology
Award, the second prize of Chinese University Science and
Technology Award and the Technology Innovation Award of
Heat Treatment Society.

BARBEE 5657 R2018F 12 S18HE X
FAEBEMOBILIENTES TALARAE
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Mr. Chen Geng, aged 47, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 15 September 2020
and is also a member of each of the audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chen has over
16 years of experience in the education industry. He has
been working in the School of Economics and Business
Administration of Chongaing University (& B K 2 & &
B T g E ¥ £ BT) successively as associate professor,
professor and master tutor since July 2004 and is mainly
responsible for lecturing and financial, accounting and
financial market research. During such period, he has
hosted several scientific research projects and published
academic papers on reputable journals.

Mr. Chen is currently an independent director of Chongging
Lummy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (stock code: 300006), a
company being listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
and an independent director of Jiutai Mutual Fund Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor 's degree in economics from
Renmin University of China (F Bl A & K £2) and a master
's degree in economics from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics (78 B &£ K £) in July 1996 and
June 2001 respectively. He obtained a doctor’'s degree in
economics from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics (78 B B 4% K 2) in June 2004 and obtained
a post-doctoral certificate in business administration
from National Post-Doctoral Regulatory Committee (&
B+ 1% EIEZE B €)in March 2009. Mr. Chen obtained
the qualification as Certified Public Valuer and Certified
Public Accountant both granted by the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in September 2001 and July
2004, respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hou Jianli (& £ Fl), aged 57, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of
our Board, the chief executive officer and the general
manager of our Group. For further details, please refer to
the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section
above.

Ms. Hou Yuxi (& @ #), aged 32, is our Executive Director,
and the assistant to the chairman of the Group. For further
details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors” in this section above.

Ms. Zhang Wei (5& %), aged 33, is the chief financial
officer of our Group, the secretary of our Board and one of
the joint company secretaries of our Company. Ms. Zhang
is primarily responsible for the accounting and financial
management of our Group and assisting our Board on
corporate governance matters. Ms. Zhang joined our Group
in September 2020 and has been the chief financial officer
of Xi’an Tianrui.

Ms. Zhang has over 7 years of experience in accounting.
From April 2012 to June 2018, Ms. Zhang served as a
project manager at Xigema Certified Public Accountants
(Special Ordinary Partnership) (% #& 35 & & A1 = 7% A1
(% % & @ & %)). During such period, she was mainly
responsible for the annual audit and internal control audit
work of large-scale state-owned enterprises and listed
companies. From November 2019 to August 2020, Ms.
Zhang served as the chief financial officer of Xi’an Huaren
Health Investment Management Co., Ltd (78 % # {~ & &
& E®B AR R A) which principally engages in the
business of equity investment. During such period, she
was mainly responsible for the financial management of the
company.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in management
from Xi'an College of Posts and Telecommunications (78
Z # F 2 FT) (now known as Xi'an University of Posts
and Telecommunications (78 % # & K £)) in July 2010.
Ms. Zhang has been qualified as a Chinese Certified Public
Accountant since August 2014.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Vlanagement
EERSHAELRRERE

Mr. Xu Yunhua (7F & %), aged 43, is our sales director.
He is mainly responsible for sales management of Xi'an
Tianrui. He joined our Group in September 2010 and had
successively worked as sales supervisor and the head
of the sales department of Xi'an Tianrui. He was then
promoted to the sales director of Xi'an Tianrui in February
2019. Mr. Xu is also the director of a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Xu has over 17 years of experience in the sales
industry. From August 2003 to September 2010, he worked
successively as a salesman, the assistant section head of
the sales department and the head of the plastic production
factoryof @ # ™ & & & ¥ A R 2 7 (Baoji Wanhe
Enterprise Co., Ltd*).

Mr. Xu obtained his technical secondary school diploma in
industrial electronic automation from Baoji Industrial School
(B % ™ T ¥ 2 ) (now known as Baiji Vocational and
Technical College (& Z B % #2417 2 Fx))in July 1997.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zhang Wei (8 %), aged 33, was appointed as one
of our joint company secretaries of our Company on 28
December 2020. She is also the chief financial officer of our
Group and the secretary of our Board. For her qualifications
and experience, please refer to the paragraph headed
“SENIOR MANAGEMENT” in this section.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERSHRELRRERE

Mr. Ip Pui Sum (f #%),aged 61, was appointed as one
of our joint company secretaries of our Company on 9 May
2018. Mr. Ip has been the partner of Sum, Arthur & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants since 1999 whose scope
of services include the provision of financial statement
audit, accounting and company secretary services. Mr. Ip
has been appointed as the company secretary of various
companies listed on the Main Board and GEM of the Stock
Exchange including Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Group
(stock code: 322), Luoyang Glass Company Limited (stock
code: 1108), Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1858), Baofeng Modern International
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1121) and Asiaray
Media Group Limited (stock code: 1993) since January
1996, August 2008, March 2015, April 2017 and June 2017
respectively and one of the joint company secretaries of
ZACD Group Ltd. (stock code: 8313) since July 2017.

Mr. Ip obtained a higher diploma in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1982 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Henley Management College and Brunel University in May
1997. Mr. Ip is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in
Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNMENT CODE

Our Company has committed to delivering and maintaining
a higher standard of corporate governance to meet
business needs and shareholders’ expectation. Our
Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of our
Company’s corporate governance practices. The Corporate
Governance Code has been applicable to our Company
with effect from the Listing Date, save for the following
deviation:

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the role of chairman and the chief
executive should be segregated and should not be
performed by the same individual. However, Mr. Hou Jianli
currently performs the roles as the chairman and general
manager. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
chairman and general manager in the same person has the
benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within our Group
and enables more efficient overall strategic planning for our
Group. The Board considers that the balance of power and
authority will not be impaired by the present arrangement
and this structure will enable our Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. In addition,
other board members or Independent Non-executive
Directors continue to scrutinise important decisions and
monitor the chairman cum chief executive’s power. After
taking into account the overall circumstances of our Group,
the Board will continue to review and consider whether the
duties of the chairman and general manager should be
separated.

Save as disclosed above, our Company will comply with
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Our Directors will review our corporate
governance policies and compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code each financial year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The
Board has established three Board committees, being the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
(each a “Board Committee” and collectively the “Board
Committees”), to oversee different areas of the Company’s
affairs. As of the date of this annual report, the composition
of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)

Ms. Chen Bierui (resigned on 12 June 2020)

Ms. Hou Yuxi (appointed on 12 June 2020)

Mr. Zhao Shijie (resigned on 28 December 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Shin Yick Fabian (resigned on 15 September 2020)
Mr. Chen Geng (appointed on 15 September 2020)

Their biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 19 to 25 in the annual report. A list of the
Directors identifying their role and function and whether
they are independent non-executive Directors are available
on the Company’s website.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company for an initial term of three years
unless terminated by either party giving not less than one
month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with our Company for an
initial term of three years unless terminated by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice to the other

party.
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The relationship of the chairman and general manager Mr.
Hou Jianli and Executive Director Ms. Hou Yuxi is father and
daughter. Other than that, there is no financial, business or
other material/relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

The functions and duties of the Board include but are not
limited to: convening Shareholders’ general meetings and
reporting the Board’s work at the Shareholders’ general
meetings; implementing the resolutions passed at the
Shareholders’ general meetings; determining our business
plans and investment plans; preparing annual budget
proposals and final accounts proposals; preparing plans for
profit distribution and recovery of losses; preparing plans
for the increase or decrease in registered capital; and
exercising other power, functions and duties as conferred
by the Articles of Association. Each of our Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Company, and the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with
reasonable care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
Director receives an induction to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and that he/she is fully aware of his duties and
responsibilities as a director under applicable rules and
requirements.
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The Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance or act and corporate governance
practices organised by professional bodies so that
they can continuously update and further improve their
relevant knowledge and skills. In addition, briefings and
updates on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements are
provided to each of the Directors during Board meetings
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. During the year, the
Directors participated in the following training:
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Type of training

Directors 2= 3& 3 58 Bl

Executive Directors HITEFE

Mr. Hou Jianli 1= 2 7 AB

Ms. Hou Yuxi B AB

Independent Non-executive Directors BUIINTESE

Mr. Zhu Honggiang K 458 A.B

Mr. Zhou Genshu [ AR 45t AB

Mr. Chen Geng BR Bk AB

A:  Reading materials given by the Company relating to the A: ZHEHBAAAFTREEEAATEBLRBH
Company’s businesses and the regular updates on the EERBLEA 2 LETAAUREMERS
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements EHEZETER AR

relevant to the director’s duties and responsibilities

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the
economy, environment and social issues or the director’s
duties and responsibilities

B: SHMAMGHE BEREEREXEERY
REMZHRE BHRBHAH
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Company to
protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and the
Company.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, representing more than one-third
of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, and
Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has its
defined and written terms of reference approved by the
Board covering its duties, powers and functions. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee are respectively available
on the Company’s website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management
or professional advice if considered necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company established the audit committee on 18
December 2018 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C.3 of the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the audit committee are mainly to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and removal of external
auditors; review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting; and oversee
internal control procedures of our Company.

Our audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr.
Zhou Genshu, Mr. Chen Geng and Mr. Zhu Honggiang. Mr.
Zhou Genshu is the chairman of our audit committee.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The Audit Committee has reviewed, among other things,
the financial statements of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and the year ended 31 December
2020, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, report prepared by the external
auditors covering major findings in the course of the audit,
the risk management and internal control systems and
the overall effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function and the accounting and financial reporting matters,
and selection and appointment of the external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the remuneration committee
on 18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph B.1 of the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the remuneration committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management
of our Group; review performance based remuneration;
and ensure none of our Directors determine their own
remuneration.

Corporate Governance Report

EXEBWHS

EREER®R
RNAFR2018F12A1BEBEK I EREZE S
HEMBEBEFAS LEMBUNE321ERE
MRAK SR14FTHEEERTRECIE -
ERZEENIEBREAEMZTERE RN
EzEMRAEESELEBERS  EHVB
BREMBHEVERENEZEL  UREE
RARMAPETRF -

B ERZEem="2KEANX BER
WEE RINELERKRAREE - ARM K
ERBMERZBEEER -

FAN BZLZESERITMATR - BERE
B2 EBHN(HEPBRE)ARRAEE2020F6
HS0R IE/N 8 A X & £2020612A318 1k
FEMNVBRE BEAQAMEHNNGH
RAIRER IBREAMBREHFRE  HF
EEZHENETEESR RREEMANIE
EHE - ARAANBPEZBENBEEBRBK
CHRUBEREEE URBERZTINE
% BLAD -

FHEER
RNAFR2018F12A1BBEK I FMEE &
HEmMBEBEFAS EMBAE325KER E
MRAM 4T ECEET AT EBIR -
FNZEeNTEREANEHRERES
MAEBSREEB 2 EEHMNEE REE
BREZSREEBER  BRUBENHBH
B RERMEEEETCHEHASNT M-

ANNUAL REPORT ## 2020 31
- - - -



32

EXERBWHS

Our remuneration committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Zhu Honggiang, Mr. Zhou Genshu and Ms.
Hou Yuxi. Mr. Zhu Honggiang is the chairman of our
remuneration committee.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held three
meetings. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure relating to the Directors
and senior management of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. The remuneration
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2020 is as follows:

Remuneration band (HK$)
FEAR (B
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the nomination committee on
18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference
in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the nomination committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis; identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; assess the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors; and make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Our nomination committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Hou Jianli, Mr. Zhou Genshu and Mr. Chen
Geng. Mr. Hou Jianli is the chairman of our nomination
committee.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held three
meetings. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
policy for the nomination of Directors, the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assessed independence
of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”).The Nomination Committee will assess
the candidate or incumbent on criteria such as education
background, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation
of the Nomination Policy and report to the Board when
necessary. Also, the Nomination Committee will review
the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and will discuss any
revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

Corporate Governance Report

EXEBWHS

REZE®

RNAFR2018F12 18K IEZREEE
HEEMBEABEFSE LR ES145H
TEERTHNFASR RELTESENETE
BEATHRNESSHNERE  RERMENX:
WEeAEABEERNAETERENEAA
FEBULERNTESHBLIE AR ESEZ
TRETHIEBREENEZTTREHEBRES -

BMRREZEeh =2 EMAK EERN
XE -BARBEERRKEE -BEMNEE
REMREZZEEERF -

FR RLZEEERTERER REBZR
ESCENRZEZTNBRR EFTENHR
B ABRAKR YHFERBIFATESH
Bk -

ARBERMEABR(TRZERE] R4
ZEEKHREE KR BRERRAEEMN
BAUNBTRENECHNRENERETHG
BREAXBEZE - RELZBEHEERS
BEONBTBER INFERRNEFTSE
We ks REZESHERRTIEZRBUR -
NHERREZBRRBN ASENEMNAER
EMEFT ARAEETEHRBEITAARER
A B Mk o

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2020 33



34

EXERBWHS

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. The Board
Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Company’s board of directors. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions
set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Board developed, reviewed and monitored the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, and the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of Model Code,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each of the current Directors at
the Board and Board committee meetings and the general
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in the table below. The Directors
did not authorize any alternate Director to attend Board or
Board Committee meetings
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

Corporate Governance Report

EXEBWHS

HEER &38R

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual General
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting
EEns ERZEE FMzES REZEE Exe RRBEXS
Mr. Hou Jianli N/A N/A 3/3 5/5 1/1
REF K& THEA ~EA
Ms. Chen Bierui N/A 2/2 N/A 2/2 11
BR Rl 8% 20 + ~iE A TEHA
Ms. Hou Yuxi N/A 1/1 N/A 3/3 N/A
ERELT 38 A A i A NiE A
Mr. Zhao Shijie N/A N/A N/A 4/4 1/1
ittt 5 A ~E A & A & A
Mr. Zhu Honggiang 2/2 3/3 N/A 5/5 1/1
RAL®EH TEHA
Mr. Zhou Genshu 2/2 3/3 3/3 5/5 11
R 15 5% &
Mr. Shin Yick Fabian 2/2 N/A 3/3 4/4 11
%5 k& & A
Mr. Chen Geng N/A N/A N/A 11 N/A
BRBK S & ~iE A i@ A i@ A i@ A
BOARD MEETINGS Esgel

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held regularly
at least four times each year and shall be convened by the
chairman of the Board of Directors. If a Director is unable
to attend a Board meeting, he may appoint another Director
by a written power of attorney to attend on his behalf. Such
a power of attorney shall specify the scope of authorization.
Directors attending Board meetings on behalf of other
directors shall exercise their power as directors within their
scope of authorization. If a Director fails to attend a Board
meeting and does not appoint an attorney to attend, the
Director is deemed to have waived his rights to vote at
that meeting. Each Director shall have one vote. Questions
arising at any meetings of the Board of Directors shall be
determined by a majority of votes. Where the numbers
of votes cast for and against a resolution are equal, the
chairman shall have the right to cast an additional vote.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ and
employees’ securities transactions. Upon specific enquiries,
all Directors and members of the senior management
confirmed that they have complied with the relevant
provisions of the Model Code throughout the period from
the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

To maintain good corporate governance practices and
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws, the
Company appointed Ms. Zhang Wei (chief financial officer)
and Mr. Ip Pui Sum as the joint company secretaries. Mr. Ip
Pui Sum assists Ms. Zhang Wei in performing her duties as
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Zhang Wei is the
main contact person of the Company. The joint company
secretaries confirmed having received no less than 15
hours’ of professional training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
the Company’s assets and the interests of Shareholders.
We have put in place a set of internal control and risk
management protocols to address various operational,
financial, legal and market risks identified in relation to
our operations, including but not limited to procurement
and sales management, inventory management, research
and development management, credit risk management,
and various other financial and operational control and
monitoring procedures. Our risk management protocols and
policies set forth procedures to identify, categorize, analyze
and mitigate various risks and the relevant reporting
hierarchy of risks identified in our operations. In respect of
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board, through the
Audit Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Company, believing
that the internal control system is effective and adequate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of the
Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of the
nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the external
auditor.

The Group was charged RMB1.8 million and RMB50,000 by
KPMG for auditing and non-auditing services respectively
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The non-auditing
services mainly consist of counting services.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Our Company will appoint Innovax Capital as our
compliance adviser pursuant to Rule 3A.19 of the Listing
Rules. Pursuant to Rule 3A.23 of the Listing Rules, the
compliance adviser will advise our Company in the
following circumstances:

(1) before the publication of any regulatory
announcement, circular or financial report;

(2) where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction under the Listing Rules, is
contemplated by our Group, including but not limited
to share issues and share repurchases;

(8) where our Company proposes to use the proceeds
of the Global Offering in a manner different from that
detailed in the Prospectus or where our business
activities, developments or results deviate from
any forecast, estimate, or other information in the
Prospectus; and

(4) where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of our
Company regarding unusual movements in the price
or trading volume of our Shares or any other matters
under Rules 13.10 of the Listing Rules.
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The term of this appointment of the compliance adviser
shall commence on the Listing Date and is expected to
end on the date on which our Company complies with Rule
13.46 of the Listing Rules in respect of the financial results
for the first full financial year commencing after the Listing
Date and such appointment may be subject to extension by
mutual agreement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. An annual general meeting of the Company
shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting (“"EGM”).

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on
the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or a Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, shareholders may send written enquiries to
the Company by mail to 9/F, MW Tower, No. 111 Bonham
Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders. These include the annual
general meeting, the annual and interim reports, notices,
announcements and circulars and the Company’s website
at www.trgens.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Conditionally adopted by a special resolution dated 18
December 2018, the Articles of Association were adopted
with effect from the Listing Date. As at the date of this
report, no change has been made to the Articles of
Association after the Listing Date.

The Articles of Association are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set
out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this
annual report.
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SUMMARY

This report is the third Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) annual report issued by the Group.
This report covers the work in the financial year from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting
Period”).

PREPARATION BASIS

The Group prepared the ESG report in accordance with the
ESG Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules. The ESG report is intended to provide environmental
performance and social performance of the Group during
the Reporting Period, mainly including the environmental
and social issues related to the sustainable development
of the Group which the stakeholders concern, so that key
stakeholders can better understand the Group’s sustainable
development concepts, measures and related performance,
etc.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality

The ESG factors were thoughtfully selected through an
internal materiality analysis undertaken by us. The first
step entailed identifying potential material topics, with
feedback garnered from relevant stakeholders. After which,
these feedback were then prioritised with regards to their
environmental and social impact to the Group and its
stakeholders.

Quantitative

Statistical standards, methods, assumptions and/or
calculation tools for qualitative key performance indicators
herein and source of conversion factors are all explained in
the respective subsection of the Report.

Consistency
The statistical methodologies applied to the data disclosed
in this ESG report shall be consistent.
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SCOPE AND EXTENT OF REPORT

Unless specially stated, the policies, statements and
data in this report basically cover the Company and its
subsidiaries.

DATA SOURCE AND RELIABILITY ASSURANCE
The data and cases of this report are mainly derived from
the statistics report and related documents of the Group.
There is no false record or misleading statement in this
report and we shall be liable for the authenticity, accuracy
and completeness of the report.

PARTICIPATION AND CONTACT OF

STAKEHOLDERS

The Group expects to respond to concerns of different
stakeholders on our performance of environmental and
social responsibilities through the ESG report, and
incorporate the opinions of various stakeholders into the
management of corporate sustainability. If the stakeholders
have any comments on the contents of the Group’s ESG
report, please feel free to send a letter to the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong to contact the company
secretary of the Company.
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CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

As confirmed by the management, this report was approved

by the board of directors on 26 March 2021.

1. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE PERFORMANCE 1.

OF ESG IN 2020

Environment
B

Investment of over
RMB 860,000 for
environmental
improvement
"AMRIBS6E TTAR
RIRNE

Waste water
discharge indicators
have reached urban
Level 3 discharge
standards
EERKBE IR IR E 4R
=ML

Greenhouse gas
emission intensity

| 1%
BEREREER
L | 11%
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Employees
BT

Accumulated
Training Hours
18,900 hours
2EHEIERE
18,900/ \B¥

Proportion of
trainees over 99%
2 ABUE L HE99%

Carrying out 6
internal post
competition

Fi R A 2R3 R 615

Promoting 21
employees
RW21BET

0 Fatal accident at
work

O TEBILEMN

Products

=34

Development of
388 assemblies

388 1A 4Bk B

Development of
732 new
products (parts)
732{EAE m
(ZHRE)

28 New projects
under
development
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4 Technical
innovations
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0 Product recall
OXREmMmAE
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Social responsibilities
HEERE

Producing 70,000 sets of
medical isolation eye
patches

EEBRARBRRSTEE

Donating desks and
chairs worthy of
RMB500,000 to Xi" an
Jingkai Second Primary
School
RTEEHSE —/NB IR
BESOBITHRE

Providing student
subsidies of RMB4,000 to
the families of poor
employees
RERNBIRBRHHE
£4,0007T

Kindly donating
RMB67,749 to the
employees in difficulty
AR#EETE LB
67,7497T °



3.1

ESG CONCEPT OF THE GROUP

The Group formulated the concept of ESG
development by building the "2+2" two-wheel driven
strategy of "commercial vehicles + passenger vehicles
supply chain", based on the Group’s core values of
“Integrity, Concentration, Innovation and Win-win”.
Under the guidance of the ESG concept implemented
by the Group through applying the six modules of the
Tianrui Excellent Management System Project (“TES”),
tasks are well done in such aspects as the “top priority
to research and development”, “quality-oriented”,
“supremacy of environment protection”, “quality
services”, “sharing development with employees”,
“giving back to society” and “performance of social
responsibilities”.

To better promote the normalized management of ESG,
implement the ESG strategies and enhance the ESG
related risk control, the Group adopts the three-level
governance structure: the board of directors, the
general manager and ESG working group. The board
of directors is responsible for implementing the ESG
management in a top-down way, the general manager
for directly managing and supervising, and ESG
working group for specific execution of the same.

INTEGRITY: HONESTY AND TRUSTWORTHINESS,

QUALITY-ORIENTED

Integrity: Honesty and Trustworthiness

The Group strictly abides by relevant national laws
and regulations, advocates a corporate culture of
integrity, and attaches importance to its own integrity
establishment. We promote the stable development
of an enterprise featured by ecologically sustainable
growth and strongly object to monopoly, illegal
competition, destroying of market environment,
violation of competition rules and other unfair
competition methods. During the Reporting Period,
we were not involved in any unfair competition or
corruption related lawsuits.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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3.1.1 Anti-corruption

We have developed the Anti-Corruption Policy and
Whistle-blowing Policy that explicitly requires all of our
employees and other external interested persons to
abide by the anti-corruption laws and regulations of
each jurisdiction, and encourages report the potential
illegal acts of employees, customers, suppliers and
other interested parties. As for the whistle-blowing
process, we have set up a whistle-blowing system and
channels to protect the whistle-blowers from unfair
dismissals, persecution and unnecessary disciplinary
actions.

3.1.2 Training on integrity

The anti-corruption strategy of the Group is based
on prevention, communication and training, regularly
advocating anti-corruption policies and regulations to
all the employees and fostering a sense of integrity.
Meanwhile, we conduct irregular training and
knowledge competition for all the employees, regulate
the behavior of employees, maintain an atmosphere of
integrity and dedication, and prevent the occurrence
of intentional fabrication and disclosure of trade
secrets, corruption, misappropriation, embezzlement
and other acts that damage the interests of the Group.
During the Reporting Period, we were not involved in
any corruption related lawsuits.

Integrity: Quality-oriented

3.2.1 Quality concept

The Group has always been practically strengthening
corporate quality management, formulating
and following the quality policy of “Quality First,
Customer First, Optimizing Management, Sustainable
Development”. The Group vigorously promotes the
comprehensive quality management and carries out
QC working group activities. During the Reporting
Period, the Group carries out activities such as
labor competition and “Quality Month” under the
implementation of the Excellent Management System,
helping to improve the quality indicators significantly.
Under the joint efforts of all the employees of the
Group, incoming material quality, process quality,
quality improvement, quick quality response and other
aspects have been substantially improved.
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We strictly abide by laws and regulations such as
the Product Quality Law, the Standardization Law,
the Metrology Law, the Law on the Protection of
Rights and Interests of Consumers. We carry out
business operations in accordance with laws, abide
by contracts, ensure quality and firmly object to the
selling of sub-quality products.

3.2.2 Control of incoming material quality

During the Reporting Period, we attach importance to
the performance evaluation management of suppliers,
and conduct a comprehensive evaluation from four
dimensions including supply ability, technical skills,
quality capability and service capability respectively,
to identify suppliers in black list, yellow list, green
list and red list. The suppliers in black list will be
announced and the suppliers in yellow list will be
warned. The suppliers which have been in black list
continuously will be eliminated. We carry out resource
integration of suppliers by the way of performance
evaluation to realize survival of the fittest and
constantly improve the quality of supply. We organize
the suppliers of main materials and key components
and parts (involving in a total of 168 products of over
40 suppliers) to carry out technical communication
with the Group, introducing professionals and
advanced technologies. We make comparison in
accordance with the method of “Three Unifications”
(unified standards, unified methods, unified tools) and
go to the factories as “households in hardship” for
providing on-site guidance simultaneously, so as to
improve quality assurance capability of the suppliers
and reduce the non-performing ratio of incoming
goods. During the Reporting Period, the qualified ratio
for the incoming batches of materials of the Group
increased 11.4% year on year.
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3.2.3 Process quality control 323 BEEEEZ
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Combined with the benchmark enterprise operation
and management system, the Group conducts overall
planning, step by step development, item by item
implementation of 7QB for production quality based
on production and operation of the Company. 7QB
includes seven basic quality principles: qualified
first piece, error proof verification, self-inspection,
final inspection, red box, rework under control, quick
feedback. Firstly, we carry out the work from qualified
first piece of 7QB to ensure conducting supervision
and inspection on safety, product characteristics and
process characteristics before the commencement
of each shift and after the change of models and the
shutdown of the equipment. And the inspection record
form of first piece and the qualification notice of first
piece shall be jointly confirmed and formed by the
manufacturing department and the quality department.
Secondly, we promote the principle of self-inspection
— mutual inspection — special inspection between
the upper and lower processes to ensure the quality
problems on the stations can be checked, identified
and reflected by the operators, gradually fostering a
sense of self-inspection of the staff. In order to control
the delivery quality better, the production workshop
has set up a final inspection team simultaneously
and the members of the team have been trained and
assessed in batches and step by step by the quality
department to take their posts. In order to facilitate
the management and control of non-performing
products, we adopt the red box isolation method to
avoid confusion with qualified materials/parts. Based
on the basic principle of driving customer satisfaction,
we analyze and improve the issues on processes,
after-sales service and customer complaints. During
the Reporting Period, the qualification ratio for the
batches of customer end heavy trucks of the Group
increased by 1.65% year on year, and the PPM of the
cars decreased by 26.4% year on year.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A
-

AEBEEAERCEXEEEREBE R
BRAREEELRERE HHHE -
BRIEEELEELZS27QB-7TQBER 5 ¢
BHAK BERE BR KRB 4
MEF XETERI REREH7TESZ
EEAREFEA - REW7QBZ HEH A K H
BT HMRESMFEMN  BEFR
EERERHYLZE ERFHEMBRYE
METEERES  THEENEE S
GERRBREXNEMRBEHEEREMH
ARBEBNM EXEELFTIFHEMAREA
B-ER-ERRA KREINLLESE
WEEMBEEHREIREARNLR
EHRK BTEEEBEINARER: A
TEgNESLELEE £SESEHRAL
R EwmBh HEERI2AD TET
ZIEZRLE BT ERTEAERE
TORAAETRES BREARM
B/ ZHRE - REHEFEFRENER
RALZE EMSHERE - E% BF
RFMBETOMNE HEHR A
EEEFHERMAARERLIRA
1.65% - & B PPM Atk f& 1£.26.4%



3.2.4 Quick response to quality issues

In order to ensure quick quality response, the Group
arranges professional after-sales service personnel
to the client end to ensure the feedback problems
from the clients can be solved quickly, accurately
and professionally. At the same time, the Group has
formulated the “Handling and Management Measures
of Customer Complaints” to clarify post duties and
response time (after-sales service personnel shall
arrive at the site within 10 minutes after receiving
the feedback from the clients). We have set up
rapid after-sales response platform and quality
board, arranging special employees to summarize
the feedback issues from the clients, arranging
professional teams to analyze issues, arranging
quality engineers to track the whole process, so as to
standardize and solidify (site four books, CP, FEMA,
drawings, system documents), summarize experience
(library of experience and lessons), ensure to quickly
make quick response and containment to improve the
problems strictly based on 8D principle, recognize
the problems in accordance with the principle of
“Three Aspects” (on-site, present object and present
situation) and speak through data using precise
measuring instruments. In the process of cause
analysis, we adopt the scientific methods such as
brainstorming, fishbone diagram, tree diagram and
5why to identify all the major and minor causes and
find the major causes, deeply explore the potential
invalidation risks and develop emergent and effective
containment plans and long-term correction plans.
The Group has prepared the “After-sales Maintenance
Manual” to normalize and standardize trainings
and require the employees to operate. Through the
summary and hierarchical analysis of after-sales
issues and data of the customer complaints, we
distinguish the improvement cycle of problem points,
customer influence and cost influence, focus on the
key points to promote the improvement and solution
of problems by levels and prevent the recurrence of
similar problems. During the Reporting Period, the
customer complaints of the Group decreased by 19%
year on year, and the PPM value decreased by 31.9%
year on year.
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3.2.5 Continuous improvement in quality

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
comprehensively promoted continuous improvement,
aiming at enhancing customer satisfaction. We
adopt the cycle of PDCA (Plan-Do-Check-Action)
and the way of thinking based on risk, from the three
dimensions of quality management system, product
and process, with the help of quality tools such as
checklist, permutation diagram, cause and effect
diagram and control diagram, so as to ensure to
effectively resolve quality problems. Through daily and
continuous reviewing and evaluating current situation,
identifying the improvement areas, determining the
improvement targets, searching and implementing the
solutions, measuring, analyzing and evaluating the
implementation results and preventing the recurrence,
we can ensure the effective implementation of the
improvement process. In the process of continuous
improvement, we emphasize the effect of leadership,
promote the participation by all the employees,
introduce the “Rationalized Proposal Process” to
create a good atmosphere of the participation by all
the employees and proactive improvement.

3.2.6 Quality achievements
During the Reporting Period, the Group has completed
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The Group won “Shaanxi Excellent Enterprise in the
Industry”, “Shaanxi Economic Construction Benchmarking
Enterprise”, “Shaanxi Green Low-carbon Demonstration
Unit” and “2020 Excellent Supplier: Military Components
Supply Award” granted by Shaanxi Automobile Holding

once again.
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4. FOCUS: SUPREMACY OF ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION AND GREEN OPERATION

We focus on environmental management and are
committed to cultivating, protecting and improving
the environment. We incorporate the concept of
green operation into the processes of production and
management, and fulfill our corporate responsibilities
through continuous innovation and improvement. We
have set up an environmental improvement team to
save resources, improve the utilization efficiency of
resources and reduce the impact on environment, so
as to promote green integration and build a better
future together.
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The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Environmental Protection, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Ambient Noise Pollution, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, and other
laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
we did not suffer any material fines or penalties for
violating any environmental laws or regulations.

AEBEBEBENFEARKANMBEIRE
REZX) (PEARAMB KGRI A
E) R EARKMBERFERE SN
BE) (PREARAMBEARRIS RN A
EY (R EARAMBEREYSRR
BWHBRRIEERER - BREHAR R
MYy EEEREMRRERIOVERM
EREMBEANT KL EE -

4.1 SAVE RESOURCES B A AR
4.1.1 Management of water resource 411Kk BFEE
The Group’s production and operating activities mainly AEENEERERHETEFEAAR
use tap water. To improve the efficiency of the use of K BTRAKERNOERRE - 3
water resources, we will be committed to implementing BEARETRE R MM E®H# T
various improvement projects for water saving in FEEMKREBER -REHARN &K
administration and technological improvement. During MEKEOD T EEHEKERE TE
the Reporting Period, the total water consumption of 5.77% °
the Group was as follows, and the water consumption
per output value decreased by 5.77% year on year.
2019 2020
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
revenue) revenue)
7R BE
(BR 8 (288
Total AR ¥ Total AR%
Type ]l wmeE WHEES) HmE WKWHZERE)
Total water
consumption (T) 4B FEKE(T) 24,250 81.4 29,100 76.7
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Upgrading and transformation of the bathroom
water

During the Reporting Period, the Group has completed
the transformation of the bathroom water to adopt the
way of swiping card for using water and being used
by special persons, so as to enable the water to be
managed and controlled. The average monthly water
consumption decreased by 200 cubic meters year on
year.
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Repair of water routes

During the Reporting Period, the Group has completed
the replacement of a total of 81 pieces of daily
consumables such as faucets and foot valves, the
repair of the main pipelines for 3 times, the repair of
the main heating and water supply pipelines for 1
time, so as to avoid the risk of water resource waste in
a timely manner.

K B #1E

REBMAN AEBEREHLKETE W
HEEHBEMLSIEF EEBIX
BRE|AKETEBHEE IR REREK
BERREBRR -
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4.1.2 Management of energy

We will actively strengthen the management of
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4128 R E &
KPS EBINEMBERONBES  FEH

consumption of electricity, fuel, natural gas and E AAETLREMERNER SR

other resources in all processes to strive to improve

employees’ awareness of energy conservation and
environmental protection and the utilization efficiency

of resources.

During the Reporting Period, the consumption of major
energy and resources by the Group is as follows:

Type

58 5

2019
Density
(consumption
per RMB1
million
revenue)
=g
(BE&
Total AR
me WREREE)

SEITHERREIMERERARE -

BRERAAN AEBEHTBRFRMEIRHE
/R :

2020
Density
(consumption
per RMB1
million
revenue)
RE
€=2=F
Total ARYE
wE WREES)

Consumption of
electricity (KWH)
Consumption of fuel (L)

Consumption of
natural gas (M?)

& 2 (KWH)

R E(L)
KR & (M3)

7,618,027 25,671.8
97,907 328.6
307,806 1,033.2

9,997,087 26,339.0
1,209,807 318.7
292,612 770.9

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A




Upgrading and transformation of the lighting
system

During the Reporting Period, the Group has replaced
all the 410 lights in the factory with LED lights and
added light control and time control to all the lights
outside the factory. As compared with the previously
used iodine tungsten lights, we can save electricity
of 5,000 kilowatt-hours per month on average and the
brightness has been increased from less than 100LUX
to 500LUX.
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100LUX 2 F+ 2= 500LUX °

Planning and transformation of power allocation
During the Reporting Period, the Group has rationally
allocated power facilities and saved the basic capacity
charges of RMB30,000 for two months through the
maintenance of the transformers, the application for
basic capacity charges of the transformers and etc.

BEHEEREZE

WEBHAN XEEBAEEES HEE -
BREERERE BERZEALARTEER
BFE BHLOMEANERS S E30,000
7‘Eo
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4.1.3 Management of packaging material 4.13BENWHEE

The Group previously used cartons to package AEERKRAKEBRENIEEERED
products and tooling bagging protection, leading to EFHEERS BEBENKAES
the pain points such as high price, serious loss and ATTERE MAHERN #EEANE
high cost, and the protection on the products was HRB[-WERA - AEBEHRET B R
relatively weak. During the Reporting Period, the ® BEREERRERBEREEAE
Group has developed recycling packaging devices H MEREHBEBERTERLRNRE -
such as storage cages and boarding boxes to ERERER RIEERDEER-
replace carton packaging ' so as to meet the needs HEHN AEEREMEREILN
for diversified packaging sizes and facilitate storage S 8

management and strengthen product protection.
During the Reporting Period, the consumption of
packaging materials of the Group was as follows:

2019 2020

Density Density

(consumption (consumption

per RMB1 per RMB1

million million

revenue) revenue)

(BB 8 (B B8

Total AR ¥ Total AR

Type ¥ 5l wmE WHEHES) HwmEe WZEEER)

Packaging material (T) B2 W) (T) 407 1.4 208 0.6
During the Reporting Period, we have reduced the HEHARN - RMABBREERAHMN
consumption density of packaging materials by HHWELER BRESEYERERTE
57.14% and saved the cost of packaging materials 57.14%  BiXI B EM KK A60&E T : B
of RMB600,000 through the gradual replacement of BHTRBFALEMOEERIEESR
cartons with recycling packaging devices. Through A BEMEKAE T 8D
adding protection to tooling tools instead of tooling THAPENIEEXHKNARE &

bagging, we have saved the cost of packaging KTRIRGE-

materials of RMB250,000, effectively reduced the cost
waste of carton packaging and tooling bagging and
reduced the environmental pollution.
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Before the change After the change — storage cages, boarding boxes

— carton packaging
BEN-RAEOE

BE IR

—RHEE  BIRMAE

Before the change — with disposable bagging tooling
BEA - REERTE

4.2 Environmental Management

In order to reduce the environmental impact and
the discharge of waste water and waste gas in the
production and operation process, we will devote
ourselves to the improvement and innovation
of technological processes and investment in
environmental governance, and implementing
various waste management regulations and disposal
measures. During the Reporting Period, the Group
spent over RMB860,000 for environmental governance
and renovation.

After the change — with protective tooling

4.2

BEH-HHEIE

REERE
RTRELEELRLZAEPNREZE
MEKERMEREZ RMBEMOIRI
ERREOREATMIRBEARAENRA
NE - HETSEEEDERKRINEE
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TTARIERIR )G IR EE -
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4.2.1 Wastewater discharge

The Group attaches great importance to emissions
and waste management. In the production process,
water is mainly used in the cooling process. Water
recycled from sealed pipe network is used in the
cooling of the injection moulding machine and the
cooling of the mould water cutting. Therefore, we do
not produce large amounts of industrial wastewater
throughout the production process. The wastewater
discharged by the Group is mainly employees’ daily
life wastewater, including toilet drainage and wash
drainage. Such wastewater will be discharged into the
municipal sewage pipe network after being treated
by the treatment facilities such as grease traps and
septic tanks, and finally enter the sewage treatment
plant. The plants are equipped with rainwater pipe
network, through which the rainwater is collected and
flows into the municipal rainwater pipe network. During
the Reporting Period, the Group met the standards for
self-inspection and mandatory sampling inspection on
wastewater.

4.2.2 Exhaust gas emissions

The Group adopts organized emissions on dust
and organic waste gases from different stages of
the production process. The dust generated in the
production process is dedusted by a bag filter, and
a gas collecting hood is set to collect the organic
waste gas generated in the production process, and
then collected and treated by a special exhaust gas
treatment facility by “UV photolysis + activated carbon
adsorption”. After the treatment, dust and organic
waste gas are discharged through a dedicated
exhaust pipe. During the Reporting Period, the Group
met the standards for self-inspection and mandatory
sampling inspection on exhaust gas.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s emissions of
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dust and organic waste gas are as follows: B
Main emissions TEHHRY 2019 2020
Dust (kg) ) EE (kg) 77.9 68.3
Nitrogen oxide (kg) ARE1E W (kg) 86.0 71.0
Toluene (kg) K (kg) 147.0 132.0
Xylene (kg) = B X (kg) 167.1 151.1
Non-methane hydrocarbon (kg) IE R It 48 1K (kg) 259.9 235.2

During the Reporting Period, the greenhouse gas

BEHA AREHRNEEREEE

emissions of the Group are as follows: mE:
2019 2020
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
revenue) revenue)
(BR 8 (BB 8
Total ARE Total ARYE
Greenhouse gas category & = & 52 48 B me WHEFEES) ME WHEESE)
COL(T) COL(T) 55 0.18 65 0.17

The Group insists on continuously improving
production processes and optimizing measures for
pollution prevention. The Group installed a total of
10 environmental protection hosts and 10 exhaust
cylinders on the injection moulding, moulding,
foaming, gumming, powder and boiler, which will be
monitored and maintained regularly to jointly promote
environmental protection.
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4.2.3 Treatment of solid waste

The solid waste generated in the production process
of the Group mainly includes domestic garbage,
production solid waste and hazardous solid waste.
In order to promote resource recovery, reduce the
amount of waste and reduce the environmental impact
of solid waste, we will strive to strengthen efforts in
cost control and recycling and disposal.

Domestic garbage is classified and collected in bags
by garbage bins and then recycled and disposed of
by the qualified sanitation department at the garbage
station.

Production solid waste is mainly the scrap produced
in the production process, such as fiberglass board,
black fabric and leather. After being collected sorted
and packaged, the scrap is temporarily stored in
the temporary storage area for general waste, and
delivered to qualified recycling units through recycling
& comprehensive utilization or regular sales. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s average scrap
produced monthly decreased by 0.62 tonnes year-on
year, due to the effective cost control measures.

Hazardous solid waste includes oil-water mixed waste
and oily solid waste, and hazardous solid waste
includes oil-water mixed waste and oily solid waste,
and mainly represent hazardous waste, such as waste
oil, waste activated carbon, used lamp and waste
titanium dioxide photocatalyst plates, etc. Waste oils
and fats are regularly entrusted to qualified disposal
suppliers by the government for safe disposal.
Activated carbon, UV photolysis lamps and titanium
dioxide photocatalyst plates are regularly replaced.
To reduce waste, the hazardous wastes generated
during the production process are collected in special
containers with classification marks and temporarily
stored in the temporary storage for hazardous waste,
and are regularly entrusted to qualified disposal
suppliers by the government for safe disposal.
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During the Reporting Period, data of hazardous and
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BERAR AEREEENEZTEEDM

nonhazardous waste generated by the Group is as BEERZEVEHBENOT
follows:
2019 2020
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
revenue) revenue)
®E ®E
C=2=p (88
Total AR Total AR
Type of solid waste & 28 BE 2= ) 18 7 we WHmEES) wmE WRHEHESE)
Household waste (T) A OE B (T) 4.5 0.0151 5.7 0.0149
Production solid waste (T) 4 2 [& B (T) 834 2.7995 978 2.5755
Hazardous solid waste (T) /& & & & (T) 2.5 0.0084 3.0 0.0080

= . = Y
;,«:j%:‘-“:.l."' N

4.2.4 Noise management

The main noise sources of the Group are air
compressors, fans, injection moulding machines,
pulverizers, circulation pumps, cooling towers and
other facilities. The Group selects low-noise device,
rationally plans the layout of the plant area, maintains
the various types of noise equipment indoors or at the
equipment rooms, separates material items with large
noise decibels, or adopts vibration reduction, and at
the same time, puts in place protective facilities to
ensure the safety of employees at work. In addition,
the Group sets greenbelts to reduce noise, thus
reducing the impact on the surrounding environment.

4242 FEE
AEEBXETZERBRATER B# T
P MR FBRE RANESERE -
FEEEARBRSXE cEREmE
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4.3 Climate Change

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
repeated its warnings and called for actions from all
walks of life to slow down the rate of global warming.
At the “Climate Action Summit” organized by the
United Nations in 2019, governments and businesses
across the world undertook to take active actions to
materialize the development goal of “Zero Emission”
by 2050, and further accelerate the transition to the
low carbon economy. In the face of the increasingly
serious climate change, the Group actively took
measures in building its climate resilience.

4.3.1 Transition Risk and Physical Risks

As the extreme weather is getting worse nowadays,
mitigating climate change has become a global
consensus. In response to climate change, enterprises
will continue to develop emerging technologies, such
as switching to low-carbon energies, supporting the
shifting to low-carbon economies, which would cause
transitional risks and increase in costs. If changes
are made by governments under the Paris Climate
Agreement, and reduction is made to the extraction of
fossil fuel, the fuel price would be on the rise, which
may lead to increase in the production cost of the
Company. In addition, we may face more frequent and
severe extreme weather conditions, such as floods,
drought and rainstorm. Extreme weather conditions
may lead to disruptions to supply chains and
operations.

To mitigate and adapt to climate change, the Group
strove to explore the use of alternative energies or
renewable energies in operations, and endeavored
to reduce emission by taking effective measures and
technical approaches, such as applying recyclable
packaging appliance and optimizing factory facilities.
The Group is committed to improving the rates of
resource utilization in daily operations and reducing
operating costs by efficient management of energies,
water resources, packing materials and wastes.
Meanwhile, we actively discuss on developing
long-term goals for emission reduction.
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4.4

To adapt to climate change, the Group will monitor
and review the latest development of the technologies,
regulations and policies in relation to climate change,
and enhance the awareness of our staff on heat stress
related diseases.

Environmental Achievement

During the Reporting Period, the Group applied for
and obtained the environmental approval documents
and sewage permits from the environmental protection
authority, and achieved standardized discharging.
In order to actively respond to the requirements for
the environmental management imposed by national
and local laws and regulations and regulatory
authorities, the Group improved the Three-prevention
Measures (i.e. prevention from fire, thievery and
accidents) for treatment of hazardous wastes; carried
out comprehensive renovation and upgrading of
systems for cooling water of our injection moulding
workshop, compressed air and partial of the facilities,
thus effectively handling leakage of water, oil and
air, rendering a brand new factory environment; and
made thorough clean-up and dredging of the sewage
wells, rainwater wells and green plant sprinkling pipe
network in the factory area.
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INNOVATION: TECHNOLOGICAL PROGRESS

AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group emphasized
the management thinking of “Strengthening innovation
and R&D”. It adopted the R&D management
systems recognized by benchmarking enterprises,
and enhanced the basic professional ability of R
& D personnel, aroused their working enthusiasm
and stimulated their competitive spirit, by offering
professional and comprehensive trainings,
well-designed incentive programs and “horse racing
mechanism” for talent selection, which fully improved
our R&D capability and innovation level. During the
Reporting Period, we cooperated with benchmarking
enterprises to provide 18 trainings in our technical
center, with 38.5 training hours in aggregate.

AN RWESHANSE

WEBMA - ALK E S R A 0w 3]
MERRE HERECXMEEER
F BAEXE2EMNEIRE 58
DB TEMBEFHEBIOATERK
TR CEEMBEABHENTEXERRE
hRBMBEAEN TERRE A
MEABNBRFAS EME2EEARK
Iy BT BB D MBI K F - |EMA
AEBEEGSRIEAE RMPLHRA
SN EB IR FI1845 - REHEE FI &£ 38.5/)
B o

732 new products (parts) developed

72MEFEMR (T1F) FAE

: 28 new projects developed
R&D i .

4 technological innovations

ATERAMT 5

delivered a total of 388 commercial vehicles

R E 2517388817

Product delivery
EmRA

delivered a total of 39 types of new passenger vehicles

FRE RETRN39%EH

Mould development 288 sets of moulds
RAMS RERE R5288E
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5.1

Enhancing Customer Experience through
Technological Innovation

In accordance with the planning of "focusing on
the design and development of heavy trucks and
strengthening the design and development of sedans”
under the Group’s "2+2 strategy", the technical center
introduced internationally advanced management
system and management standards, and is currently
conducting in-depth cooperation with the leading
design companies in the industry. By adhering to the
management concept of "quality and cost are rooted
in design", and the mission of "providing customers
with satisfactory interior system solutions", we are
always committed to creating long-term value for
customers. During the Reporting Period, we developed
five types of vehicle interior products, involving the
fields of interior and exterior decorative products for
heavy trucks and vehicles and ceiling assembly of
passenger vehicles, carpet assembly, trunk assembly
and fenders, etc. During the Reporting Period, the
Group spent over RMB10 million in upgrading of
technologies and R&D.

X5000 overhead compartment
X5000 = %8 48
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X5000 rearview mirror
X5000 1% 1% §%

X5000 left and right door inner protection panel assembly

X50007 £ P9 A 1k 42 7K
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Overhead compartment headliner assembly for a Instrument panel for a certain type of military vehicle
certain type of military vehicle X BB EEKIR
EEEsRMERESEX

SA2FC headliners assembly Electronic fan cover Integrated instrument body

SA2FC TR # 48 X ETERE HAEFEKTR

Design and Development of Slush-moulding EEEERR R

Instrument-panel

During the Reporting Period, the Group set up the R4 HR N - R & E E B X5000 8E ¥ (& &%
slush-moulding instrument-panel production line WEBEMERTHE TR EBEESD
based on the design and development of X5000 slush- By O MBMAMEAETEREEMRELE
moulding instrument-panel, which greatly diversified BATELHNHRMNE AEBBEXRE
the product categories and increased the additional T TEBRERER-

valve of products, laying a solid foundation for the
subsequent development of the Group.
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Renovation of Mould Cooling System

During the Reporting Period, the Group renovated its
mould cooling system, which accelerated the cooling
of molds and increased the production efficiency by
over 30%, while ensuring product quality.

Design and Renovation of Plastic Suction Mould
Sealing

During the Reporting Period, the Group optimized
plastic suction moulds, which eliminated
large deformation of products arising from the
plastic-absorbing molding process, and introduced
vacuum forming machines and five-axis milling
facilities, contributing to an increase in production
efficiency by four times.
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R&D and Innovation of Motion Simulation-assisted ERHEEED HRBRATFRAHN
Foaming Mould

During the Reporting Period, the Group made analysis LR NEEBIBES(HEE
on the defects of foaming film moulds by applying SMBELABEEAMEBERRA  STYBESF
motion simulation, and made innovation accordingly. AR 7TAHERYKY  E S
A new type of mould was launched in July, which LEEEHELF ATFEMEIES
significant improvement in product quality. With the BEEESHER T RRER] -

satisfactory product supplied to customers, the Group
obtained the “Outstanding Supplier Award-Military
Components Supply Award (BB FHERH —F R IR
b #%2)".

Design Upgrading of Water-knife Cutting Device KIDBYRERTE

During the Reporting Period, the Group upgraded WMEBRRN - AEBTHKY N E S #F
water-cutting of tire membrane by replacing open AEHAANNE ERREIBRENE
approach with the closed approach, which reduced B FEMAERESIENNY%  REF
the noise and obtained a product passing rate of AEEAERBERN -

99.99%, ensuring the smooth delivery of passenger
vehicle projects.
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Design and Development of Automated Tri-axial
Feeding System

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed
the independent research and development of the
automated tri-axial feeding system to form a unique
foaming machine available for special production of
floor mats for use in heavy trucks, which ensured the
consistency and uniformity of feeding track and kept
the product passing rate at over 99%.

Tri-axial feeding system

—HWERRS

Foaming die set

BOBIER

5.2 Continuous Improvement and Enhancement

The Group implements pragmatic recommendations,
and leads and encourages all employees to identify
opportunities for improvement in work. It forms a team
to review pragmatic recommendations and follow
up their implementation, so as to reduce work cost,
increase work efficiency, ensure product quality and
improve operation conditions. During the Reporting
Period, the Group implemented 89 pragmatic
recommendations, generating an actual income of
RMB381,873.
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WNFEFLBLRBELR
Summary of excellent pragmatic recommendations in 2020
Commencement Actual monthly
Number Project Name Improvement time Completion time income (RMB)
F¥ EEER BERY BREE THREE BB A KT
1 Control of heating cost (2019-2020) Reduction in cost 2019/11/15 2020/3/15 12,052
019-00FEEREER & (B P
2 Increase in the production capacity for Improvement in efficiency 2020/4/15 2020/4/16 11,505
angle plates use in a certain product WEEHA
XEmARERR
3 improvement and optimization of Reduction in cost, increase 2020/121 2020/12/10 6,989
production methods and increase in efficiency, and
in production efficiency simplification of process
HEBLEERE REEERE BREXNARBUEMIELRE
4 Improvement in the mould structure Reduction in cost, increase 2020/12/1 2020/12/1 4,640
for a certain product in efficiency, and simplification
FEMBAAELS of process
BREXNARBHEMIELRE
5 Oil contamination caused in spraying Reduction in cost 2020/11/10 2020/12/30 2,846

for a certain product

REMBERHSMHE

P (R B
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5.3 Carrying Out Industry-universities-research

Cooperation Projects

The Group vigorously carries out industry-university-
research cooperation projects, introduces high-quality
resources from universities and society, and maintains
the advanced research and development capacity.

Appointment of Dr. Chu Jianjie as the Chief Expert
of Group

Dr. Jianjie Chu, an associate professor of the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Northwestern Polytechnical
University, is mainly engaged in the research of fields
including industrial product design and development,
industrial design of equipment manufacturing, and
ergonomic evaluation technology. Mr. Chu has been
the deputy director of the Key Laboratory of Industrial
Design and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology of Northwestern Polytechnical
University since 2018 and the deputy director of the
Shaanxi Industrial Design and Development Center
of Northwestern Polytechnical University. He has
won various awards such as the second prize of the
National Teaching Achievement Award and the third
prize of the Shaanxi Science and Technology Progress
Award.

Dr. Chu Jianjie has been the chief expert of the
Group since 2019, focusing on the research of fields
including digital design, product design, simulation of
ergonomic design and development of new products.
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Industry-university-research cooperation
with the Key Laboratory of Industrial Design
and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of Northwestern
Polytechnical University

Northwestern Polytechnical University is the only
multidisciplinary and research-oriented university in
China that is simultaneously developing education
and research programs in the fields of aeronautics,
astronautics, and marine technology engineering.
It is now affiliated to the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology. It is one of the universities
of the “211 Project”, “985 Project” and “First-class
Universities” (Class A) in China. As one of the earliest
universities in China to develop talents for modern
industrial design, conduct scientific research and
provide design services, Northwestern Polytechnical
University is a vice-chairman of China Industrial
Design Association, a vice president of Innovation
Design Alliance of China and the Industrial Design
Institution of China Mechanical Engineering Society,
and a deputy chairman of the Teaching Steering
Subcommittee of Industrial Design of the Ministry of
Education, and has high status and good reputation in
the domestic industrial design community.

Northwestern Polytechnical University has been
devoted to the research of fields including digital
design, product design, simulation of ergonomic
design and development of new products. It
has undertaken dozens of major scientific and
technological research projects such as the National
863 Program, the National Science and Technology
Support Plan, the National Natural Science
Foundation, the National Manned Space Project, and
the Basic Research on National Defense.
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5.4

The Group carried out industry-university-research
cooperation with the Key Laboratory of Industrial
Design and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology of Northwestern Polytechnical
University, and provided design services and technical
support for developing new products by leveraging
the resources of the Key Laboratory of Industrial
Design and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, Shaanxi Industrial Design
Engineering Laboratory, Shaanxi Industrial Design and
Development Center and other provincial platforms,
focused on the design of automotive interior parts in
the field of industrial design, and conducted in-depth
research on key common technologies continuously,
so as to maintain the advanced nature of research and
development of key design technologies.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group has established a three-in-one intellectual
property system of patents, trademarks and
copyrights, and has implemented innovation-oriented
and high-quality development.

The Group has a total of 18 patents, including 2
invention patents, 1 design patent and 15 utility model
patents, and has 1 trademark. Invention patents and
design patents are applied to the major products of the
Group and are the core process technology. The utility
model patents are mainly used for the improvement of
production equipment and process methods to realize
the purposes of achieving energysaving and emission
reduction, improving production efficiency, mitigating
labor intensity, eliminating hidden safety hazards and
reducing labor costs. During the Reporting Period, we
had 1 new patent, and applied for 4 patents pending
approval.

5.4
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The Group mainly protects its intellectual property
rights through online tracking and rights protection
litigation. Besides, when our sales and R&D staff
discover competitive products or marketing materials
that may infringe the intellectual property rights of
the Group, they will immediately notify the legal
department, which will then follow up and conduct the
investigation.

The Group has established an innovation incentive
mechanism to encourage technical R&D personnel
to boldly innovate, design and develop special
equipment with independent intellectual property
rights by utilizing the advanced process technologies
and equipment in the industry, and quickly transform it
into productive forces and put it into production, thus
promoting the automotive and intelligent production
process.

WIN-WIN: MAKING PROGRESS AND BUILDING

A BRIGHT FUTURE TOGETHER
Win-win: Satisfactory Customer Services

6.1.1 Management system for customer services

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A
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During the Reporting Period, the Group continued
to strictly implement the site customer service
management systems, standards and regulations such
as the Guidance on the Management of Site Customer
Emergency and the Regulation on the Processing and
Management of Customer Information, and strived to
provide customers with quality services to meet their
diversified needs.

For after-sales services, we arranged dedicated
after-sales service personnel at the customer’s office,
and conducted after-sales interview with customers
through email, WeChat, telephone and other means.
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6.1.2 Customer complaints management procedures 6I2EFEERE

We attach great importance to customer demands and BMEBERERPHFFR B T(BEE
have established procedures under the Regulation FEREERRAEIRE BEPRKRF
on the Processing and Management of Customer SO RPABLEEMBPLANE - £ 3
Information, which divides customer complaints EPEFE RMeEKEREEM
into two categories, verbal complaints and written ERMEER) E—HHBSME@ED
complaints. After receiving complaints from customers, PIELMERIRBERLYIT/NE - BR
we will complete the After-Sales Quality Tracking BEFEENEIE RMELTTE
Record and set up WeChat communication group with WEFPHEBEEEERE MTHAR:

relevant departments to establish an analysis team as
soon as possible. To ensure that customer complaints
are handled in a timely manner, we have established
complete procedures for processing customer
complaint information, as shown below:

P
——

e
=
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During the Reporting Period, we included indicators
such as the timeliness of completion of customer
complaint and customer satisfaction in the
Performance Assessment Form, which stipulated that
the feedback and tracking of customer complaints
must be evidenced by corresponding Analysis and
Rectification Report of Problem, and reviewed the
number of customer complaints and timeliness
of completion on a monthly basis. Meanwhile, we
carried out the customer satisfaction survey on an
annual basis according to the Customer Satisfaction
Evaluation Procedure, involving 5 aspects such as
quality, delivery, service, price, and suggestions for
improvement. After the completion of the survey,
we investigated and summarized the items with
low individual scores and complaints in customers’
messages, and discussed improvement measures,
and finally formed the final Analysis Report of
Customer Satisfaction.

In addition to the management of individual complaint
cases, we also summarized and analyzed customer
complaints every month to identify the source of the
problem, optimized the solution from the source, and
formed the Monthly Customer Complaint Analysis
report, so as to analyze the causes and determine the
responsible person, as well as formulate corrective
measures and track verification results. If quality
problems with potential risk were identified, we would
send a quality alert and follow up and solve it as soon
as possible.
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6.1.3 Protection of customer privacy

It is our responsibility and obligation to protect
customer privacy and security of business information.
We strictly comply with the laws and regulations in
relation to the Confidentiality Agreement entered
into with customers, and strictly protect the privacy
information of customers.

We are also committed to protecting the privacy and
confidentiality of the personal data of our employees,
customers, suppliers, business partners and other
identifiable parties. For the use of information, we have
restricted the level and authorization of information
available to employees, and require employees
to prudently handle customer data in accordance
with the authorization. Employees may have access
to relevant customer data only when there is a
supportable reason, and the use of customer data is
limited to the purposes as specified in our contract.

6.2 Win-win: Partnership with Suppliers
6.2.1 Establishing win-win partnership with suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the Group developed
30 new high-quality suppliers under the principal
of establishing win-win partnership with supplier.
We committed to introduce domestic renowned
high-quality suppliers with industrial leading position.
In order to guarantee that the product quality of the
Group can be improved continuously, we organized
several technical exchanges and visiting study
activities with domestic renowned material enterprises.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had 134
material suppliers, among which 80% of suppliers
were located in below seven provinces, as follows:

Xinjiang

AR

-~ Gansu
.

A,

Qinghai

We maintain close contact with suppliers. During the
Reporting Period, in order to improve the quality of
supplier, we continuously adopted below measures:
unifying standards; conducting performance test
and spot check on the main materials; eliminating
the suppliers appeared in the black list for several
consecutive years based on the performance
documents of suppliers; for suppliers who had quality
problems repeatedly, conducting regular interviews
and training and enhancing the quality awareness of
suppliers. In addition, we have conducted in-depth
exchanges and communication with suppliers on new
technologies and processes for passenger vehicles
and heavy trucks’ interiors, so as to provide customers
with satisfactory products.
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Technology exchange of suppliers

R B i R

We examine in advance and review new suppliers
through the Questionnaire of Suppliers’ Qualification,
the Guidance on Evaluation and Selection of
Potential Suppliers and the Guidance on the Review
of Suppliers of Productive Materials every year.
After the suppliers passing the review, we conduct
comprehensive performance evaluation on the supply
position of suppliers through procedural documents
such as the Procedures for Managing and Controlling
Supplies, the Guidance on Regular Evaluation of
Suppliers of Productive Materials, and check the
suppliers on the red list and black list based on the
evaluation results of suppliers’ performance. We will
provide specific assistance and help to suppliers on
the black list for improvement and eliminate those who
still cannot meet the supply requirements after such
guidance.
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6.2.2Continuing to promote the suppliers’ social

responsibilities

While continuously strengthening its own management
of sustainable development, the Group takes the lead
in promoting the ecological management system for
the sustainable development of the entire supply
chain. Suppliers are evaluated from five aspects
according to the Questionnaire of Suppliers’ Social
Responsibilities, namely labor rights, health and
safety, environmental protection, business ethics, and
requirements of management system. For high-quality
suppliers with higher ranking of performance, we
will give support through increasing the share and
developing new projects; for suppliers with lower
ranking of performance, especially those who violate
relevant requirements, rectification is required within
a time limit, if failed to do, we will restrict business
cooperation opportunities until the cooperation is
terminated.

Meanwhile, we include “safety and environment
management” and “social responsibility” related
clauses in the Purchase Contract signed with
suppliers, which clearly requires that the products
provided by suppliers must comply with the national
laws, regulations and rules on safety and environment,
as well as meet relevant requirements on protection
of employee's rights and environmental protection. To
this end, we not only support the realization of China’s
sustainable development goal, but also work closely
with customers and suppliers in the upstream and
downstream of the supply chain to build a sustainable
and better fully connected world environment. The
Group pays attention to the operation concept of
green environmental protection, keeps close contact
with suppliers, holds several exchange meeting
with suppliers, conducts professional technical
communication on raw materials and packing
materials, to jointly pursue how to apply the new
environment-friendly materials with greener and better
sustainable development functions in our products.
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6.3 Win-win: Share Development Results with

Employees

6.3.1 Employment overview

The Group pays great attention to the labor rights and
interests of our employees, and strictly complies with
the provisions of the Labor Contract Law of China and
other labor laws and regulations. It formulates other
employment terms on working hours, and holidays, so
as to effectively protect the legitimate and reasonable
rights and interests of our employees. We never permit
the use of any forced labor.

We have a fair and transparent staff recruitment and
employment process, forbid to recruit and use child
labor, conduct background investigation for the newly
recruited employees, put an end to illegal employment
of child labor and the phenomenon of forced labor. We
have a highly transparent recruitment process, and is
committed to providing fair employment opportunities
and creating a respectful work environment for our
employees. The Group advocates anti-discrimination
and formulates relevant policies to treat others with
fairness and dignity. Our recruitment of employees
will be based on a range of diversity, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. In the case
of dismissal, the Labor Contract of employees who
do not meet the requirements of the Labor Law will
be terminated according to the Labor Law and the
Company’s rules and regulations.
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As of 31 December 2020, there were 689 employees

in the Group.

Number of employees by gender

RUBIBID BT AR

W Male W Female

=]
Bzl

Number of employees by ranking of positions

RHRBSETAY
Senior management B Middle management
BRERE hRERE
B Junior management B General staff
NRERE o —MET

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIF-HEB8REIBHRS

H E2020F 128318 AEEBCHA
B 86894 -

Number of employees by age

BRERBSETAY
W 20-34 years old m 35-49 years old More than 50 years old
205%-347% 355%-495% 505% A 1

Number of employees by region
RHBEESETAH

W In Shaanxi Province
PREEE A

B Outside Shaanxi Province
BREEE SM

7%
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The remuneration policy of our Group is based on
employees’ performance, qualifications, competence
and rewards to them with reference to comparable
market level. Remuneration package typically
comprises salaries and other benefits, discretionary
bonuses and retirement benefits scheme contributions.
We have established a scientific and reasonable
salary system with market competitiveness in
accordance with files of the staff salary management
system and and measures on salary scales and levels,
and determine the staff salary scales and levels in
accordance with the ranking of positions and market
level based on the present condition of the company.
Based on the scientific and sound adjustment rules
of salary scales and levels, the Group adopts the
diversified evaluation mechanism combining the
work plan execution of employees, individual KPI
assessment result and scoring of department head,
regularly adjusts salary scales and levels, and
increases employee compensation and benefits. In
addition, under the principle of “openness, fairness,
impartiality, equality, competition and selection”,
the Group regularly carries out internal competition,
increasing power for the development of excellent
talents and promoting the talent innovation. During
the Reporting Period, the Group carried out 6 internal
competitive selection, and selected 21 employees,
promoting the establishment of talent team and the
organizational development and construction of the
Group while fully enhancing the sense of achievement
and happiness of employees.
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We have been committed to providing diversified and
superior benefits to employees and creating a better
working environment. In addition to statutory benefits,
we have in place a benefit system with diversity.

Diverse benefit
system

Z{LEAEER

Statutory benefits
ETE SRR A

Activity welfare

R ENRRE R

Other welfare
EvEA

Staff welfare

STFEH

6.3.2 Staff training and development

The Group provides a variety of trainings for all
employees to improve their comprehensive skills and
meet their needs of positions. Induction trainings
on regulations at group and department level,
job duties, working skills, safety production and
career development program, etc. familiarize our
employees with the Group as soon as practicable and
make them fit in with their respective positions. For
on-the-job employees, the Group provides targeted
training tailored to their career development and
encourages employees to participate in job-related
training organized by external organizations, whereby
enriching our employees’ professional knowledge and
comprehensive abilities. In addition, the Group invites
excellent industrial professional personnel to provide
high-quality training contents for staffs, enabling the
staffs study advanced professional knowledge and
management philosophy.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BA-—BEUARBIREHREZEELN
BTHRMN AEEFNTERE KM
EREEIZTZEER/AMOERZ £
BrRTZTEnBEANER-

Statutory benefits & EE & A

v

v

v

v

Social insurance and housing fund
he—%

Statutory holiday

SRR B

High temperature leave

=R

Year-end double pay

B+=%

Activity welfare ;EEN SR

v

v

Women's Day
LTEe8:0]

Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn
Festival, Spring Festival. etc
i ET - PIRED  BEIE

Other welfare EE &%

v Free staff quarters (air conditioner, heating, wifi)
REEBTREE (Z# &R - wifi)
v' Meal allowance
IREFHEL
v Staff anniversary
BTAFLR
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During the Reporting Period, we set up a series of new
courses, including general management courses and
skill upgrading courses, organizing 164 group-level
online and offline trainings and 70 department-level
trainings, with 689 employees participating and a total

of 19,264 hours of training.

RER-HE8KREiS

BEHA - RMFFER
BRERERABREADN
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Al 4B 22 B

19,264 /N B o

The proportion of trainees by gender and the average duration of training

SI701H - 2 H 8 T689A & 15

ruRESRIEEEEEFAZIRR
Male Female
Gender B 5 zZ
Trainees 23| A# 483 205
Headcount FEWNE= 484 205
The participation of trainees 23k 99% 100%
Average training duration (in hours)  F#H 23l & (/) 28 28
The proportion of trainees by gender and the average duration of training
ZEBARESXIEEGVL R TFH2IIER
Senior Middle Junior General
Management  Management  Management staff
Position B R EREEE PREIEE MBREEE —®BI
Trainees 29l A& 13 22 50 600
Headcount BAH 13 22 50 604
The participation of 231k k& 100% 100% 100% 99%
trainees
Average training 2K 120 98 52 22

(/N BF)

duration (in hours)
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On-site management training Project management training Low-level manager training
Hi5E B EI HHEEE EEEEABEI

Training for newly Safety training

recruited employees Z B

BT ABEI

6.3.3 Health and safety of the employees

The Group has always attached great importance
to the health and safety of the employees, and
is committed to providing employees with a safe
working environment to avoid occupational hazards.
The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Safe Production Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Fire Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and other laws and
regulations.
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The Group requires the newly recruited employees
to carry the entry medical examination report and
pays the social insurance and housing fund (i k&
— %) and commercial insurance for the employees
according to the statutory requirements. In order
to enrich the spare-time life of employees, we
establish the staff room equipped with the facilities
including table tennis, badminton, chess, treadmill
and karaoke, enhancing the staff physical exercise.
We attach importance to employee sports and set
up table tennis, basketball and badminton sports
venues and facilities for employees to exercise. We
have implemented infrastructure and safety policies
in order to ensure equipment safety and prevent or
minimize exposure to hazardous materials. During
the Reporting Period, we have revised more than 10
safety management documents, including the Safe
Production Responsibility System ({ & & 4 & & T
#)), the Hidden Hazards Inspection and Rectification
System ((F= B ¥ & 8278 12 %l £ )), the Regulations
on the Management of Safety Accidents ({ & & =
i & 32 48 7)), the Safety Education System (( & &
# & %l E)), etc., providing guidance to employees
in maintaining a safe working environment, and we
have assigned responsibility for maintaining safe work
spaces to each department. We have established
the Safety Management Committee consisting of
representatives from management and employees.
The Safety Management Committee ensures that all
responsible departments conduct safety training,
report accidents and implement accident prevention
procedures. The Group also has fire prevention
facilities and conducts fire drills on a regular basis.
Production employees receive regular training
on equipment operation and occupational safety
equipment. We have also adopted accident handling
policies, in order to minimize losses and increase our
response time in accident handling.
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Collision post projects in workshops

During the Reporting Period,the Group invested a total
of RMB70,000 to complete the installation of collision
post in workshops, so as to guarantee the logistics
safety in plants while preventing the collision of mould
and products.
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Putting the food safety first

During the Reporting Period, the Group obtained
the “food safety business license” and normally
conducted the “daily safety seminars and lectures”, to
guarantee the food safety for employees.
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Fire training and fire drill

The Group actively conducts employee safety training
and on-site safety inspection, during the Reporting
Period, the Group conducted 2 on-site fire trainings
and 1 fire drill, to fully improve the safety awareness
and safety specification for all employees.

Actively endeavoring to obtain the certificates

In accordance with the labor discipline standard, the
Group actively endeavors to obtain the certificates of
special equipment. During the Reporting Period, the
Group obtained 1 special equipment management
certificate, 5 forklift licenses, 2 forklift license reviews,
3 welder certificates and 1 security management
certificate.

During the last three years (including the Reporting
Period), the Group did not suffer any major
work-related injuries or fatalities caused by work.
We have complied with all relevant laws, regulations
and administrative regulations in all major aspects
of health and work safety, and have not received
penalties from Chinese regulatory authorities.
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6.3.4 Employment Care

The Group is committed to create a harmonious,
warm and united working environment for employees,
and cares for every employee from various aspects,
including basic necessities of life. We not only
consider employee’s benefit, but also hope to convey
our caring for employees to their family members.

Upgrading and renovation of the hot water system
in the bathhouse

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the
upgrading and renovation of the hot water circulation
supply system in the public bathhouse by upgrading
the solar energy supply system to the heat circulation
smart control system combining gas energy and
solar energy for heat supply, which helped address
the issue of insufficient heat supply and aging
infrastructures and provided strong logistic support
for the staff of the Group.
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Renovation of the staff activity room

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed
the renovation of the staff activity room and made
it available to the staff, which provides facilities for
activities such as badminton, table tennis, running
machine, Chinese chess, and Karaoke, thus enriching
the staff's amateur life and creating a positive
organizational atmosphere.

Al

Improvement of dietary life

During the Reporting Period, the Group has invested
a total of RMB100,000 to improve the hardware and
software facilities of the staff canteen, balance diet
nutrition, increase private rooms and supermarkets
and etc., which satisfied the diversified living
demands of the employees and effectively enhanced
the satisfaction of the employees.
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Diversified staff activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group has organized
rich and colorful cultural and entertainment activities
to enrich amateur life of the employees, and created
a positive and energetic corporate atmosphere. We
have conducted activities such as development of
new employees and excellent employees, “the Cup
of Welcome New Arrivals” ping pong competition, the
Christmas activity of “Youth Dating, Merry Christmas”
and making dumplings on Winter Solstice Festival
titled “Fragrance of China on our Tongues, Emotion of
Tianrui in Delicacy”.
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6.4 Win-win: Actively Fulfilling Social Responsibility

The Group is keen on the public welfare undertakings
to promote the harmonious development of society.
We have participated in a number of public welfare
activities in the fields of charitable donation,
environmental protection and voluntary services, and
actively exerted its influence to provide women and
children in communities with needed explanation.

As a responsible group, we believe that we can
promote the harmonious development of society by
actively fulfilling the social responsibility of improving
people’s livelihood. The management of the Group
encourages all employees to proactively participate
in community activities and hopes to contribute efforts
to improve and help address the issues affecting the
well-being of local residents through their personal
actions. The Group insists on fulfilling its own social
responsibility, closely cooperates with the government,
hospitals, charities, media and other organizations to
actively participate in public welfare activities.

Cooperation between Schools and Enterprises

The Group has actively participated in campus
recruitment activities for college students. During
the Reporting Period, we have carried out more
than 20 campus recruitments and conducted many
discussions with surrounding universities on the
cooperation between schools and enterprises such
as discipline implementation, joint trainings and
employment practices of college students and special
scholarship projects.
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Caring for Education, Transferring Kindness
During the Reporting Period, in order to improve
the teaching facilities and the conditions of school
operation of Xi’an Jingkai Second Primary School, the
Group has donated 1,410 sets of desks and chairs
worthy of RMB500,000 to it.

Offering Financial Aids for Students and Caring for
the Staff

During the Reporting Period, the Group proactively
conducted the due diligence work on the education
conditions of the children of its staff who are in
financial difficulties before providing student grants of
RMB4,000 to them, according to the relevant student
loan policy of the city.
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Charitable Donation to Show Love for Our Staff
During the Reporting Period, the Group adhered to the
philosophy of “People First” and provided for our staff
in financial difficulties with the charitable donation of
RMB67,749.

During the outbreak of the pandemic, the Group
proactively responded to the call of the government
by undertaking the task of producing 70,000 sets of
medical quarantine blinders so as to contribute efforts
to fight against the pandemic. We have received
the recognition from the pandemic control leading
group in Shaanxi Province and have also become
the first group of enterprises included in the “List
of Key Enterprises for Prevention and Control of the
COVID-19 Pandemic” issued by the National Ministry
of Industry and Commerce.
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APPENDIX: THE CONTENT INDEX FOR THE

GUIDANCE OF ESG REPORT OF HKEX

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IEER EE -RHEERERAXER

Mk BERABIMRE HERERR
HESIRBEG
Disclosure Section

EE

A. Environment

ARR

ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS
BEAM HRY

General disclosure Information on
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

4. Focus: Supremacy
of Environment
Protection and
Green Operation

generation of hazardous and nonhazardous waste. 4. BRI BREELH
—REE BEE
ERERRAZERBEN MARTHNOHS BEREEEENNELSH
(8) BE: Rk
(b) BFHETABEAZENABERZRAOOER -
KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 4.2 Environment
BREMIEEAL BHRmEEREBENEE- Management

KPI A1.2
BRERERALL

KPI A13
BRERIERALS

42 BREERE

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect 4.2.2  Exhaust Gas
(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions Emissions
(in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per 422 BERER

unit of production volume, per facility).

EREENRERAREEDRERABAENEN
B E)R(MEREEMUASESEN BHER
)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where 4.2.3 Treatment of solid

appropriate, intensity waste
(e.g. per unit of production volume, 423 EEBEVAE
per facility)

MELAZRENEENEA B R(MBREE (I
NEEBEN BEREHE)
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RIF-HEB8KREIBHRS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IREE EE -RRERBRANER

Disclosure Section

HEE®

ASPECT A2: USE OF

RESOURCES
BHA2:ERER

KPIA1.4

BRENERALL

KPIA15
BREANERALS

KPIA16
BREANERALG

General disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources including energy,
water and other raw materials.

~RBE

ARBERER(REER

KPI A2.1
BB E MR EA

KPI A2.2

BRENERA22

KPI A2.3
BRANERAS

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

Fﬁééﬁ%ﬁ?%%@%(u @EEJr”

ASEEE

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.

HRMmITUMERERERAE

WER-

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

MARBEEREZRENN A REAFHRTLH
REERRRENELERARRNSR -

K REA R BB R

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

FRUHNNERR/ARREEME. ﬁﬁ}m)
REUTETRRHBIRERE(MNEES
BERMBHE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume,

per facility) .

BRKELREE(WMASEBEN

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and

steps taken to
achieve them.

MM UMERERAGERRRARYE
FRRA SR

4.2.3 Treatment of solid
waste

423 BEBEZRMER

4.2 Environment
Management
42 REEE

4.2.3 Treatment of solid
waste

423 BEBEZRNER

41 Save Resources

41 HHER

412 Management of
Energy
412 wRER

411 Management of
Water Resource
411 KERER

41 Save Resources

41 HHER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IRER EO -RHEERBRANER RESH
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 4.1.1  Management of
B EMREA24 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) Water Resource
set and steps taken to achieve them. 411 KERERE

BRSBRERKRLABENREE ARATLHA
KGR ERARINELRRHRRNSR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in -~ 4.1.3
B EMEEAS tons) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
AmARAENRNEEBHE) R(PER)E 413
EEBRER-
ASPECT A3: General disclosure 4.2
THE ENVIRONMENT Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural
AND NATURAL RESOURCES  resources. 4.2
BEA RERARER -%BE

REXTAHRRERAREREREAZENAR -

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities onthe 4.2
BB EAS environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them. 4.2
HREBEPURERRABRNEAZERER
REREBYENTD -
ASPECT A4: General disclosure 4.3
CLIMATE CHANGES Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have 43
BEAM: REEZL impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
—REE

BRI REHCERIREHBETAELYENEARBEBSZENNR

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues 4.3
BRENIERAA which have impacted, and those which may impact, ~ 4.3
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
HUICBRIEEHETAELERENEARER
BEE REHTH-
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RIF-HEB8KREIBHRS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section

IREE EH -REERBRAXER HEE®

B. Society

B.#E&

EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES
EEREIER

ASPECT B1: EMPLOYMENT
BEBI:Ef

General disclosure 6.3.1  Employment
Information on: Overview
(a) the policies; and 631 EEHR

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promation, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits.

—REE

EREMRBE BRREA IEKE BRE FS#e Sl REVSUREMS

BREMS:

(@ BE: R

b) BFHERTABEAYENABLERANNESR -

KPIB1.1 Total number of employees by gender, type of 6.3.1  Employment
i E AR EB employment, age group and region. Overview

BER BREY FRANKUEIASNESEH . 631 ERHEN

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover by gender, age group and region.
BB REIRBI2 RUER FRANBEASNEERAL X
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IRER EO -RHEERBRANER RESH
ASPECT B2: HEALTH General disclosure 6.3.3 Health and
AND SAFETY Information on: Safety of
EEB2: BEHEZ2 (a) the policies; and Employees
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the 633 BIREAZ
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from Ea
occupational hazards.
—RRE
AEREZETERERREREREBENAEN:
(a) BR: R
(b) BTHETAREAZENRBEZRAMNEH -
KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 6.3.3 Health and
BRENIEER2 each of the past three years including the reporting Safety of
year. Employees
BE-F(REAERFR)SFEICHMOARRL 633 BIRRANZ
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. N/A
BB NEIRB22 RIGBRAIERY- TER
KPIB2.3 Describe the occupational health and safety measures  6.3.3 Health and
B EMERB23 adopted and how they are implemented and Safety of
monitored. Employees
BAMRANBERRER2EE WRABRTR 633 EIRENZ
BERTA £

O8  CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD i BI K /58 pghi IR A A
-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIF-HEB8KREIBHRS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section

ITRER EO -RHEEREBRANER RESH

ASPECT B3: DEVELOPMENT  General disclosure 6.3.2 Staff

AND TRAINING Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Training and

EBEB3: #EREHN Description of training activities. Development
—REE 632 BIEAEY
FRRMERRAIBANAZRREMNEK - W EIED - R

ASPECT B4:
LABOUR STANDARDS
BHB4: B TEE

KPI B3.1
BB A %I RB3

KPI B3.2
BB A K 1RB32

General disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and

The percentage of employees trained by gender and 6.3.2 Staff

employee category (e.g., senior management,

middle management).

Training and
Development

BUFIREEEN(NERERE PAERES)E 632 BIRKJIEER

ANZIERED L -

B

The average training hours completed per employee by ~ 6.3.2  Staff

gender and employee category.

BUFIREERAED BREEZAFINTHE

o

Training and
Development

632 BIEHa%
&

6.3.1  Employment
Overview

631 EREHR

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child
~REE
EBMELETIHRHSTH:
(a) BE: R
(b) BTHETABEARE

KPI B4.1

BB NIRRT

KPI B4.2
B EAN B4

and forced labour.

MRBEZRRROIMER-

Description of measures to review employment practices  6.3.1 Employment

to avoid child and forced labour.

Overview

HiRaRREANEEIESETREHNST 631 ERAR

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices 6.3.1  Employment

when discovered.

Overview

FEERRERBARRRARBAARRNS R 631 ERHAR
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RIF-HEB8REIBHRS

Report

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IRER EO -RHEERBRANER RESH
Operational Practice
BeBh
ASPECT B5: SUPPLY General disclosure 6.2.2  Continuing to
CHAIN MANAGEMENT Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain. Promote the
BEBS: fEEER -%BE Suppliers'
ERMEANRERLGABEE - Social
Responsibilities
622 HERPHE
AHERE
KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 6.2.1 Establishment
BB MEIRB5. BREE S MMEHLE of Win-win
Partnership with
Suppliers
621 BUAERRH
fEBBHBER
KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, ~ 6.2.1  Establishment
B EMEERS2 number of suppliers where the practices are being of Win-win
implemented, how they are implemented and Partnership with
monitored. Suppliers
HAEBEREEANEDN RERTABEANG 621 BUAELRM
RHEA NRAEBEANBORERS % HEEYHEE
KPIB5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental ~ 6.2.2  Continuing to
B BB ERSS and social risks along the supply chain, and how Promote the
they are implemented and monitored. Suppliers' Social
HAEBRNEERGERSNRERMERRY Responsibilities
B URBEBRGTRERA A 622 BERBHER
HERf
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally  6.2.2  Continuing to
B EMIEEBSA preferable products and services when selecting Promote the

100

BAEREMERRRESARRERRRENE

suppliers, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

B AERBERTRERN A
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RIF-HEB8KREIBHRS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IRER EO -RHEEREBRANER BEEH
ASPECT B6: PRODUCT General disclosure 32 Integrity:

RESPONSIBILITY
EEB6: EmEf

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

Quality-oriented
32 HfE:EER

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the K
issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

~RBE

ARFREERNRHOREER 2 RS BERABSENRBRITAN:

(@ BX: &
b) BFHETABEAYZ

KPI B6.1
B A I 5B6.1

KPI B6.2
B AN IR 15862

KPI B6.3
B AN 15B6.3

KPI B6.4
B R MU 1RB6.4

KPI B6.5
PR A KIEIRB6S

WRBERREINER

recalls for safety and health reasons.

heED -

Number of products and service related complaints

received and how they are dealt with.

RERRERRRBENRFREAREHT A

Description of practices relating to observing and

protecting intellectual property rights.

HiEEERRENAERABNED-

Description of quality assurance process and recall

procedures.

HiZEBhTBARREMTLREFR -

Bhke

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subjectto  3.2.4  Quick Response to

Quality Issues

EEACDEAERARTRL2ERFEMMNAL 324 HERFER

6.1.2  Customer
Complaints
Management
Procedures

612 EHERRE

5.4 Protection of
Intellectual
Property Rights

54 MBEERE

32 Integrity: Quality-
oriented

32 HRE:EEAKX

Description of consumer data protection and privacy 6.1.3  Protection of
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
BRAEEEEHRERMBHE URBBHTRE 613 ZPEBLRE

Customer Privacy
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IRER EO -RHEERBRANER RESH
ASPECT B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION General disclosure 31 Integrity:
EBEB7:RES Information on: Honesty and

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

~RBE

ARBLBR 9% RERAREN:

(a) BR: R
(b) BFHETABEAYE

KPI B7.1
5 5 R IEBRT

KPI B7.2
B A RIERBT

KPIB7.3
CEE 61 1K

WRBAERANNER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of

the cases.

REGIRHBETAZEEERIICELNES

FARMFORARFRER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and

monitored

HRMBEBRRREF NRABRTRERAE-

Description of the anti-corruption training provided to

directors and staff.
BIMEERREIRENRESE-
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Trustworthiness
31 HEHEST

&

31 Integrity:
Honesty and
Trustworthiness

31 HfE:HET
&

31 Integrity:
Honesty and
Trustworthiness

31 HEHEST

&

3.1.2 Training on
Integrity
312 RREI
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RIF-HEB8KREIBHRS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
ITRER EO -RHEEREBRANER RESH
Community

ASPECT B8: COMMUNITY General disclosure 6.4 Win-win:
INVESTMENT Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the Actively
EBEBS: HERE issuer operates and to ensure its activities Fulfilling Social

take into consideration the communities’ interests

Responsibility

—REE 64 HE:BEEE
ERUM B2 ER T REE MR R ENRREE B EDELRAHERGNEE- THEEE
KPIB8.1 Focus areas of contribution 6.4 Win-win:
iR E R 1EBs (e.g., education, environmental concerns, labour Actively
needs, health, Fulfilling Social
culture, sports). Responsibility
TIEREBR(NHE RAEZE YIEK BRE- 64 HE-EEER
XL gE)- THEEE
KPIB8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time) to the focus 6.4 Win-win:
B EMEERS2 area. Actively
FETERMPREAR (NS EABH) - Fulfilling Social

Responsibility
64 HE:BEEE
TiHEEE
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Directors’ Report
EFEERS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and its registered office address
is Sertus Chambers, Governors Square, Suite #5-204, 23
Lime Tree Bay Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company, and
the Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacture and sale of
automotive interior decorative components and parts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, investment and financial
activities, including a fair review of the business using
financial key performance indicators and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business as well
as environmental policies and performance, as required
by Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of Laws of Hong Kong), is shown in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to
18 and in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 40 to 103 of this annual
report.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY

Description of possible risks and uncertainties facing the
Company is set out in note 24 to the financial statements in
this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of revenue from the Group’s largest
and five largest customers for the year ended 31 December
2020 represented approximately 46.7% (31 December
2019: 37.6%) and 96.86% (31 December 2019: 87.9%),
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue from sales
operations.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A
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EETEgRE
EZgMAREARE B H =2020%F 12 A 31
BEFEFREBERASLEZRAMERE -

FTEEK
AARA—BMRAERETMAINER
A A & H & i 9 == 58 iz 7 Sertus Chambers,
Governors Square, Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree
Bay Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °
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MABEEAKREXRY RERMBEDH
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MARGREERYBRAERETHERE
HORFEHRAEBERRAEEANE
BER UAERBRBERRMER -

AATAEERNERR FAEERE

ARBAEEBENOER NI THABREENHE
MR ARNFHRY B MRME24 -

FTEEFRMHES
HE2020F12A31HIEFE - KAAEEH
NEABFEAEREFKRABRED 15
NEBEEEXEBFEWAMNLI.7%(2019F 12
A31H :37.6%)%96.86%(2019F 12 A31H :
87.9%) °



The aggregate amount of purchases from the Group’s
largest and five largest suppliers for the year ended 31
December 2020 represented approximately 15.55% (31
December 2019: 13.4%) and 37.83%, respectively (31
December 2019: 39.4%).

So far as is known to our Directors, none of our Directors,
their respective close associates or our Shareholders
who are interested in more than 5% of the issued share
capital of our Company has any interests in the five largest
customers or the five largest suppliers of our Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable development
in the long term, continuously create value for its employees
and customers, and foster good relationships with its
suppliers. The Group understands that employees are its
valuable assets, and the realization and enhancement of
employees’ values will facilitate the achievement of the
Group’s overall goals. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group provided generous social security benefits
to its employees to motivate them while heightening
their sense of belonging. The Group also understands
the importance of maintaining good relationships with
its suppliers and customers to the overall development
of the Group. The Group places emphasis on supplier
selection and encourages fair and open competition to
foster long-term relationships with quality suppliers on the
basis of mutual trust. To maintain the competitiveness of
its brand and products, the Group abides by the principles
of honesty and trustworthiness and commits itself to
consistently provide quality products to establish a reliable
service environment for its customers. For the year ended
31 December 2020, there was no significant and material
dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 5 of this annual report.

Directors’ Report
EFEWRS

HE2020F12A31BEFE  AAEEZA
HEBLAAEEFRENEES B O1G
15.55% (20194 12 A31H : 13.4%) % 37.83%
(2019512 A31H : 39.4%) °

REMPNEEMAT BEEE REZAN
EEBBEAXRETRAS%NA EHE EHTR
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HHER - AEBMEHEELAEEEE EB
BEEMEREARA AR AEEEESR
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SEt s EREEEENERE EBATR
AAGF AEDEFHEEHENRLIRE
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.6 cents per ordinary Share (the “Proposed
Final Dividend”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Subject to the approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by
the Shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 11 June 2021. The Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid on or about 20 August 2021 to
the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 23 June 2021.

There is no arrangement under which a shareholder has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and is committed to building an
environmentally-friendly corporation that pays close
attention to conserving natural resources. We strive to
minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and
water and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, as far as the
Company is aware, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.
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BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report and note 17 to the financial statements in this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the event after the reporting period are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements in this annual report.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in properties, plants and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 11
to the financial statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to RMB252.6 million of which
RMB10.0 million has been proposed as a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 23 to the financial statements in this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between
meeting shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable dividend policy. The
Company’s dividend policy aims to allow shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profit and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future development. When
considering the dividend payment, the Board shall take
into account the factors including but not limited to the
Company’s operations and earnings, capital requirements
and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions, capital expenditure and future development
requirements, shareholders’ interests and other factors that
the Board considers relevant.

Directors’ Report
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report, neither our Company, nor its
subsidiary have purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the directors of the Company as of
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules at any
time up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
every Director or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profit of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officer’s liability coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2020.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made
a donation of desks and chairs worthy of RMB500,000 to
Xi’an Jingkai Second Primary School.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)

Ms. Chen Bierui (resigned on 12 June 2020)

Ms. Hou Yuxi (appointed on 12 June 2020)

Mr. Zhao Shijie (resigned on 28 December 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Shin Yick Fabian (resigned on 15 September 2020)
Mr. Chen Geng (appointed on 15 September 2020)

In accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Zhou Genshu and Mr. Zhu Honggiang
shall retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Chen Geng shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election in the said meeting.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19
to 25 of this annual report.
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EFEERS

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company for an initial term of three years
unless terminated by either party giving not less than one
month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with our Company for an
initial term of three years unless terminated by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice to the other

party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 16.1
and 16.2 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 15.2
and 15.3 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
an entity connected with him/her or Controlling Shareholder
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year under review.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIs /S8 N AR A A

ESNBREEN
BEHTEEFCERARATIRBAH BH
=F KRIFAEA-—TRASZ-ABELTIR
—EAREEBMTIALL -

EBUFNTEFCEHARARERE B
H=F KRIFBEAN-—TFTASZ—FTEHLTD
R—BEREEBMNTIALL -

EENEERRBFASLEENESTMH
BEARNBDXEETAMBERBTZ AR
AEBR-—FARLIMEAFMECEIEME
BRI RF & 4 e

HEERERRRNELN

H E2020F12A31BHIEFE AR Al H
FRMNEBAREERBERKETRNEE LD
AlzEBETYANEAGHN(EER N
BB X 16 M 7E16.1 & 16.2) °

ARARKETAKBERABERNFEFRLE
FE2020F12A3IBEFERNEANEKEETFTE
MEZETHEEXBBE)IRETBEEE NRE
HZAMEREGHN(EEZER EWHBIK 16
MfsE15.2%15.3) °

EERXRE TR ZESR

BRRMERRMIBMBMEEIN RAFR
HEASOBEFAEMNKR MEAQRAE
FoR M A BENEBRIERB RN ER
SEXBEHE MARA HEMKERA
REMNNTZEARS ZHAAHNEEKE
BERBEAER -



REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company
and five highest paid individuals are set out in note 8 and
9 to the financial statements in this annual report. The
emoluments of the Directors is determined by reference to
the relevant Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload
and the time devoted to our Group.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

None of our Directors and their respective close associates
are interested in any business which competes or is likely
to compete with that of our Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of corporate governance practice adopted by
the Company are set out in the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the interests or short
positions of each of our Directors and chief executive of our
Company in our Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of our Company and our associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which, were required to be
notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions in which any of them was taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO)
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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== 5 IP
& $ = ¥E =)
(a) Interest in our Company (a) RAEAQXAMNER
Number of Shares Percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding
EEnE EREME BMEEB (M BRAESH
Mr. Hou Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%

corporation (Note 2)
&%k & Mo B e, X EHDEBE &S (M 5E2)
Ms. Chen Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%

corporation (Note 2)
FR 2 & EBEmXEGEEER (MH5E2)
Notes: Bt T -

B(E

1. The letter “L” denotes our Directors’ long position (as defined 1. TEILIEBRFAEERNZER BT
under Part XV of the SFO) in such Shares. ERBHFRBEGAEXVE) -

2 Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share o 7 % & R & + B B 48 » H & C Group Holding

capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and Limited 8 2 2 2 3 1T IR A D Bl &= & £ &
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen ML+ BEZXRAEHEBGC0% N40% o 1B 1E &
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms. ERHEEN ELAERBELTHHE AR
Chen is deemed to be interested in the same number of H&C Group Holding Limited Fr & 89 48 @ 28 B
Shares held by H&C Group Holding Limited. DR RERS o
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(b) Interests in our associated corporations

Directors’ Report
EFEWRS

(b) REBEZENERS

Name of Name of associated Number of shares Percentage of

Director corporation Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding

Exps L B A Bt B> 2B (B E1) REED L

Mr. Hou H&C Group Holding Limited Beneficial owner; Interest of 100 (L) 100%
spouse (Note 2)

®EhE H&C Group Holding Limited Em#E B A BB B#E = (FH:F2)

Ms. Chen H&C Group Holding Limited Beneficial owner; Interest of 100 (L) 100%
spouse (Note 2)

MR+ H&C Group Holding Limited B#ZH#E B A : B @R (M 5£2)

Notes: Bt -

1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under 1. FEILIERZERMNNTFAE(ER &

Part XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share
capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms.
Chen is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors or the chief executive of our
Company has any interests or short positions in our shares,
underlying shares or debentures of our Company and our
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
in which any of them was taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required to be
notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

K BB {5 I SE XV ER) ©

2. EEAEABABBRLZITWEM®-H&CGroup
Holding Limited 8 2 & B 8 1Tl AN 2 5l B3 &
EERBREZLTERRAEEHEB60%KA40% °
BEZLFLBERA BEXERRLZLHE
8 A A H&C Group Holding Limited fff 3 &9 8
REEROTPEEER -

BREXEBEEN RAFmRAH BELAR
AIESEXNTHREZR AR R EBE EZECE
ERBLERHEGEMEXVI)NK M B
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XVBE7TRFESHBAME KR A KB FA
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the persons or
corporations who has an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRREROBIEEAROPERNE
mRKE

RAFHBEH REEFHFRAEHHEXV
ME2RE3DMARAARA R ERBIEE
N HIE 50 5336 1A 17 00 & 52 M AT AC
8% TOALTIOABR AR R A B 248 FE
B HEANERIABWT

Name of Number of shares Percentage of
Shareholder Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding
RRAEB EmME BRH BB (MaE1) FERESL
H&C Group Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
Holding Limited
ERERA
Mr. Hou Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)
&EAE B SEGEBEE R (M 72)
Ms. Chen Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)
PR 22 + B XESEBE R (M 72)
Notes: B e -
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under 1. FEHILIERZERONTFE(EZRES

Part XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share
capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and
Ms. Chen is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual
report, the directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 or the
period following 31 December 2020 up to the date of this
annual report, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or holding company or any of the subsidiaries of the
Company’s holding company a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
or their respective associates to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors and chief executive, or their spouse and children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right
during such period.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the PRC local government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC, and operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars of
these retirement plans are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which did not constitute
connected transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, are set out in note 26 of the financial statements in
this annual report.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company has received the written confirmation from
each of H&C Group Holding Limited, Mr. Hou Jianli,
Ms. Chen Bierui (the “Covenantors”) in respect of the
compliance with the terms of the non-compete undertaking
(the “Non-compete Undertaking”), entered into between
the Covenantors and the Company as set out in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders -
Non-Competition Undertakings From Our Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus. Each of the Covenantors
has confirmed and declared that he/she/it had strictly
complied with the Non-compete Undertaking without any
breach thereof. All the Independent Non-executive Directors
had reviewed the matters relating to the enforcement of the
Non-compete Undertaking and consider that the terms of
the Non-compete Undertaking have been complied with by
each of the Covenantors for the year ended 31 December
2020.

AUDITORS
The Company appointed KPMG as auditors of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

KPMG will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
Hou Jianli

Chairman

Xi'an, the PRC, 26 March 2021
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 126 to 224, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (*HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

Independent Auditor’s Report
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in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

ESRUREHEAYEERAER

Refer to Notes 14 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

2(g)(i) and 2()).
R B4R BT 75 ¥R 2K BT it 14 F124(a) & KT it 2(9)() F12(j) £ & & B & °

The Key Audit Matter
HRESSHE

At 31 December 2020, the Group had a significant
balance of gross trade receivables which amounted
to RMB133,955,000, representing approximately
21.40% of the Group’s total assets at that date,
against which an allowance of RMB2,295,000 for
expected credit losses (ELCs) was recorded.
R2020F12A31E - EREME HEKKRIESRE
A AR®133,955000T HESEBRZABEEE
iR B 18 421.40% * M 8% 15 78 #4345 A 18 K (ELCs)
% & A R #2,295,0007T °

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arose from
heavy truck and passenger vehicle manufacturers.
EEENESRRAEIERBER REREKEH
BRER-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ESTEE WA HER

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance
for trade receivables included the following:
HY¥BESRURFREZREARBENEFIEFE
BIATEE:

° Obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and estimate of credit loss
allowances;

e HEMIEKLEXKEEEBREEZES EHEWKAM
EEBREERGLTAENBERABEZENHR
AoBEmREERMT:

° evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating
the credit loss allowance with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standard;

e ZRBBITEFENNER THEXEENGE
REXEGBS G BE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

EZRUREARMEERAER

Independent Auditor’s Report
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BREFTEE®G

Refer to Notes 14 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

2(9)(i) and 2(j).
2R 475 B 75 IR BT it 14 F124(a) & KT et 2(9)() F12() 9 & & & °

The Key Audit Matter
HRESSEHE

Management measures loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL of the trade receivables which
is based on ageing of the receivables and expected
loss rate for each category of trade receivables
grouped according to the shared credit risk
characteristics. The estimated loss rates take into
account the ageing of trade receivable balances,
the repayment history of the Group’s customers,
current market conditions, and forward-looking
information. Such assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimation.
EEEREBWEROEGAPERERBERE
ERLXEB - BREFINEGEREHRERAER
HEBEERRENRE AR S AR KERRR
HEGARRFBSANERBEAXFAE AR
BEAXNZERXZBERREREHRER &8
BB E RTS8 - F AT 5K 0 AR IEE BE e
BB RERNE R EH AT

We identified the ECL allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because
determining the level of loss allowance is inherently
subjective which requires significant management
judgement.
BPBERERNEREABREGR T AER
B FHEORARE BXEHKIHETAGL
RO EFHEL D R EKXEIRE H E -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

& 5T 5 H W B OR

assessing whether items in the trade
receivables ageing report were categorised in
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
a sample of individual items with the underlying
goods delivery notes, sales invoices and other
relevant underlying documentation;
BEMEELERNEEEYENXEE  3H
EEEMEMMBEAXHG  FHERERERXER
BRETNEBERSEABMKREKRE DR

assessing the appropriateness of
management’s estimates of ECL allowance for
trade receivables by examining the information
used by management derive such estimates,
including testing the accuracy of the historical
default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on latest financial information of major
customers, current economic conditions and
forward-looking information; and
RABREBRBANGERIWERERRNESE
AEAXERENGELS BRAIAELHRR
BHEBRUNMTHELBLAXREEREE
B SO B RS B - 8 AT A OB IR O R0 AT B
MEBBETEERAE THEEEMERE
ORI I

re-performing the calculation of the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2020 based on
the Group’s credit loss allowance policies.
BEEENEABREBHE EFMFER
2020F 12 A31EH M B R ERE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

LN SR

Independent Auditor’s Report

BREFFTETESE

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(q).

RS BREM TARA E2(q) 09 & 7 BE °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

Revenue from sales of automotive interior and
exterior decorative products is recognised when
products are delivered at the customers’ premises,
the customers take possession of and accept the
products, which is taken to be the point in time
when the Group transfers control over the products
to the customers.

ERVREFPSHRN BEFHEAREREREK
A REESERRBEERNENEERETZE
FPHE—EAREEY HERERNIINI M ER 2K
ATHERAR-

We identified the timing of revenue recognition
as a key audit matter because revenue is a key
performance indicator of the Group which increases
the risk that the timing of revenue recognition may
be manipulated to meet financial expectations or
targets.

BB MAERGERAREFEE BRK
AREEE —HHARRAEKEERE EMBEATRER
EELAER M A B RAER -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

& 5 B | W T R R

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of
recognition of revenue included the following:
HTBRABISHEANETARFEEUT S
18 :

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls in relation to revenue recognition;

e HEHELAGHEEERARABMIAHEHOBAERA
MEEORAN B LEERE:

° inspecting key customer contracts to identify
terms and conditions relating to goods
acceptance and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e WRHERBREFNAHN URHEEYWRA
BRIRR KR WRBERIT G ERE
MEMEEEEHWAERER

° comparing, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded before and after
the financial year end date with underlying
documentation, which included goods
acceptance notes, to assess whether the
revenue had been recognised in accordance
with the terms of the sales contracts and in the
appropriate financial periods;

s REEAEE UBRAMWBFELERAE
BENRERAXRSEEBAXE(RREE
FWE) ULTFHBAZREEREBEHEHES D
R & 1 B B A R

T
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

WA R B

Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3% S 6 ¥R 5

BREFTEE®G

BB 4% B B B 2R 2 A4 R M A 2(q) B B B -

The Key Audit Matter
BREETEER

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(q).

How the matter was addressed in our audit

& 5B | W T R OR

inspecting underlying documentation for
manual journal entries relating to revenue
which were recorded during the year and
which met other specific risk-based criteria;
and

R EFANEFSRABBRTEEMEER
REBOFISFOENEEXH K

obtaining external confirmation of, on a sample
basis, transaction amounts for the year and
debtor balances as at the financial year end
directly with customers.

BRREAEE BEEMNEFERFERS R
BNMBEMRFEREZRURERENH
K o

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

REMBHRRRZEABEUIINESR

EFAHAMENBER HMENBRIAR
FHRANMEER ETEREAYHRE
Ko 3R AP 9 A BUED e & -

EMEEAaMBERENERLTIREEM
BR BASTHZEEMERERTMAL
R A o

BARMERAYBREANES RAMNE
TAMEEMER ElBRET ZEEM
EMERESRAVBBRRABRMEERTB
RPRMEBRNERFEENEBHE AT
FEEXERRANBER -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON (Continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

122  CHINATIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD s BIX I /58 A &ift A5 R A
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Independent Auditor’s Report

REVBERERZBABSUMINESR

(&)

ERBMEATHIE NREMBLAEM
EHGFAEBEAERRL RMFTEREZLE
BE-EETH RALAEEFMRE-

EXSDGeUBRRAENSE

EFRERBEEREHENESTSHEMY
BHRFBBRESENRBTBERAGINRE
RERBELEERAFTRRNGEA T BH R
X UTEEESRALENNIMET - AR
TREREAMBRIE T FERKFX
AR Sl R E KRR AL -

ERESAVBHRRT EFAEFHES
BRFELENREN YEEABATHRESR
SEREFHNER ULRERABELER
S ER BKIAEFTHEEREEEBERNE
g2 FHEEBERERNBERTR -

ERZBEEWMBESEIRSNAME &8
EEENMBEHRRRRE-




AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3% S 6 ¥R 5

REMBEAREMBRRAENEML

BAWER RYSAMBEREREBEL T
FEBNRFXERMEBNERERR
AMEEERE AHABRERMEENK
BMBE AREERABTUERBE) @RS
FRUEZINA B EREEME &) - P TS5
ARENATAEMEMALE ERAE
EREME-

FERERRKENRE BIERERR
BAEBFENETHNES EX EAXER
PR 17 FE B 48 BE 3R 3R - 85 SR BRUL AJ A e R RE
HERMEI M MREEEHEEFRER
ERAETESAVHERRERBEKBELR
EHMBRRAIELHNEERE BEBNE
R AT WBEEK -

ERBEEENZNETEAOBES I
MERTHEXHE RETEXRREE-
B AT IR

— BB ANEFfh B R ARRF Sk EE AR T B B
EUMBRRFEEAERBANEAR
R RATEARFUAEREELAR
UEREBRFERMEENETEE (FR
BMEREE - ARNKFARY RSB
RME - EERER ERBRL &
ERABNEZEZ £ Rt REERAR
FMERWERNERRANER SR
ARBRFNERMETNERERR
pull=N e

- BFEREFFHBENRNIFEE  URFE
ENEMSEF BENYIHERER
MEENERMEEXRER -

- FEEEFRASTBERNRELER
EH st MR ENSEM -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 X7 1% &1 60 ¥R 5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT XM BB S BHERRAIENZ(E

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (&)

(Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ —

use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content  —

of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

LBEERAFERLESHERNRE
HEL & - RIBAEMMEFTRE
HERAFEEFHRABRLABENE
RAEEME KM A EREEEEN
HERERNELEERRE -WREM
REBEEBEARATHEN MEALEERK
M BEPRBFCAEIZESUE
BERANWEERE -BREABENRET
rOABMEERRIFERBER -
MHEmEERBEREM®RE A H
IEFEGMEERE - AN REXER
XERAEEHEEBTEFELSE -

HESRAMBEREANEREIN TN &
BAAR BREE UAREAWHKR®
REBRAARMRRHMERE -

RESBEANERAEBEDOUHKE
MEDRZR BENFFERE WEY
HRAMBERREREL -RMAEESR
BEFOIA EBEMAT - HMAE
AERAEZMEME-

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, MREMEBBIN RMEBZZESER T

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 2

|mEFRE KRTHE EXEFERSE

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant & #& & i £ & 5T B 3% 3 £ A 50 &5 % &9 F o
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our & KGR Fg °

audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chu Man Wai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2021

Independent Auditor’s Report
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REMBEAREMBRRAENEML
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BRERNEXZES@RXEH FHARMD
NEABBYMMWEREXERER Y&
MM EBAEAREEREMERRELERMN
BYMHMAEBAMAEMEE  AREEA
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B [y 88 45 7 o

REREXZEGEBNEET  LAEED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Y= - v

ﬁmm?“\(

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”)) (A A B 8 ([ A & ¥ /) 2l 7)

2020 2019
(Note)
(B %)
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® TR AREF T

Revenue A 4 379,555 297,907
Cost of sales i & K AR (262,649) (196,719)
Gross profit EF 4(b) 116,906 101,188
Other income H At e A 5 6,466 6,056
Selling and distribution expenses HEER (9,737) (9,266)
Administrative expenses THRAX (41,282) (37,793)
Impairment losses reversed/ BORRAAFEHEE,

(provided) for the year on trade FrRBEESE

and other receivables 24(a) 706 (2,544)
Profit from operations &R A 73,059 57,641
Finance costs R AN 6(a) (9,804) (5,724)
Profit before taxation B B A& A 6 63,255 51,917
Income tax Fir 15 % 7(a) (12,381) (7,095)
Profit attributable to equity ARIEERRAELER

shareholders of the Company = Al

for the year 50,874 44 822
Earnings per share SREF
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) ERXEEREARE D) 10 2.54 2.25

The notes on pages 134 to 224 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for

the year are set out in Note 23(c).
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 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HelEmRHEMEROWREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB) (LA A & # 21| 7)

2020 2019
(Note)
(B #F)
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
Profit for the year F R R 50,874 44,822
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKA
for the year (after tax): (MBRHBER) :
Item that may be reclassified AEErREFTSPEEEEN
subsequently to profit or loss: HA
- Exchange differences on —RERAEBZINEED
translation into presentation fE N =%
currency of the Group (696) (127)
Total comprehensive income AREERRAELCFEFRZEZE
attributable to equity A
shareholders of the
Company for the year 50,178 44,695

The notes on pages 134 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.

FI1MEABE M FBR AT BEREN — D -

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2020 127
—



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

tn S M BN R =

At 31 December 2020 7220204 12 A 31 H

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A & % 31| ;)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T AR T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREZE 11 169,922 128,983
Intangible assets | EE 479 =
Prepayments for acquisitions of BEME BEERHEZ
property, plant and equipment TE R IA 15(a) 9,949 22,962
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 21(b) 1,753 1,880
R 182103 163,825
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 13 78,466 60,814
Trade and bills receivables 2 5 e W RIE &E U
Ey 14 254,962 235,944
Prepayments and other receivables  J& it 318 & H fif fE UL
EQE] 15(b) 12,893 12,021
Cash at bank and on hand RITKFHERAS 16 97,484 59,948
e e e ONARSBO0SE 368,727
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank and other loans RITKHEMER 17 88,667 73,691
Trade and bills payables 2 5 e RERER
Ey 18 223,388 168,406
Accrued expenses and FEET R X R E b fE
other payables KIF 19 28,984 36,409
Lease liabilities HEBE 20 1,064 1,007
Current taxation BV HA 56 18 21(a) 3,214 3,595
e e D9OMT 283108
Netcurrentassets ... HREREZS . [ BN SIO
Total assets less current liabilities ®REERADHE S 280,591 239,444

The notes on pages 134 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R e M RN &

At 31 December 2020 7 2020 5 12 H 31 H
(Expressed in RMB) (LA A & # 21| 7)

2020 2019
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
B & AR® Tt ARETF T
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank and other loans RIT R EMER 17 7,349 4,395
Lease liabilities HEABE 20 1,048 1,983
Deferred income iR JE WA 22 2,122 2,347
. 10519 8,725
NET ASSETS EEFE 270,072 230,719
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRHE 23
Share capital f% A< 17,522 17,522
Reserves 15 252,550 213,197
TOTAL EQUITY A 270,072 230,719

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 26 March 2021.

Hou Jianli
mEF
Chairman

FRE

The notes on pages 134 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.

Hou Yuxi
BRE
Executive Director

HITEF

BEEEN2021F3 268 #E W BT -

FIME224B M FBER AT BREDN—F 2 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &
(Expressed in RMB) (LA A & % 31| ;)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GoREENE

ADARERREL
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
k& RHEE &% e EiRfE REEA @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR ARETR AEBTR AEET T AEETR AEETR AEETR
(Note23(t)  (Note23(c)))  (Note23(dil) (Note23(d)il) (Note 23(c)(v)
(E2p)  (BE2E0)  (BEse6)  (WEEE)  (BE2Em)
Balance at 1 January 2020 420205 1R 1R 17,522 117,703 (17,500) 19,298 1,794 91,902 230,719
Changes in equity for HEN0F12A31A

the year ended 31 LEEZEREY:

December 2020: - - = = - - -
Profitfor the year ERgH - - - - - 50,874 50,874
Other comprehensive EmEpZENA

income for the year - - - - (696) - (696)
Total comprehensive EmzEasA
_comeforteyenr T T T T el W I
Dividends approvedand 5Lt~ B HE

paid in respect of ISELE

the previous year (H23(c))

(Note 23(c) - (10,825) - - - - (10,825)
Appropriation to reserve ARERE - - - 5,307 - (5,307) -
___________________________________________ S L. e .. PO ..o, N L.
Balance at 31 December ~ H2020512331R

2020 17,522 106,878 (17,500) 24,605 1,098 137,469 210,072

The notes on pages 134 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.
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‘Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B %+

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB) (LA A & # 21| 7)

Atiributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ERREERARS
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium feserve feserve reserve profits Total
R RGAEE e EEGE B REET L)
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB 000
NS N S MNRETFT MNREFT NS ANREFT NS
(Note 23(0)) (Note 23(d)(i)) (Note 23(d)(i)) ~ (Note 23(cl)(ii) ~ (Note 23(d)(v))
(B £E23(0)) (¥ 5 23(a)) (Wrskosa)iy)  (HsEosa)i) (P E23()iv))
Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019E151R 13216 51432 (17,500) 1423 1921 52,146 115,447
Changes in equity for the year  EZ2019% 12318
ended 31 December 2019;  LEEEREE:
Profitfor the year EREH - - = = = 4482 1482
Other comprehensive income £ AE B2 ERA
for the year - - - - (121) - (121)
Total comprehensive income~~ EAZEZWA
e S S S Tl e ol
Issuance of shares by inifial ~~ BRERDHEERT
public offering (Note 23(0)()) T3 (B E£23(0)(i) 4,308 87152 = = = = 91,458
Dividends approved and paid 3 £ - BB ET
in regpect of the previous XfHRS
year (Note 23(c)) (B 23(c)) = (10220) = = = = (10220)
Interim dividends declared BERTRHH
and paid (Note 23(c)) RRRE W) = (10661) = S S S (10661)
Appropriation to reserve ARERE = = = 5,066 = (5,066) =
e L. e A S L W
Balance at 31 December 2019 H2019%12831R 17522 17,703 (17,500) 19,298 179 91,902 230,719

The notes on pages 134 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A £ % 31| /)

2020 2019
(Note)
(B 3%)
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® TR AR T T
Operating activities RETE
Profit before taxation B 7 A1 g A 63,255 51,917
Adjustments for: HATEEELDFHE:
Depreciation and amortisation e K& 6(c) 18,047 13,733
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME - -WE R
plant and equipment HEkEFAE 5 (12) (73)
Finance costs 8 7 A A< 6(a) 9,804 5,724
Interest income F B A 5 (243) (248)
Amortisation of deferred income F [N | 22 (225) (225)
Changes in working capital: EEZESEH:
Increase in inventories FEEM (17,652) (33,562)
Increase in trade and bills B 5N RIE R
receivables JE U 3R 4 8 0 (19,018) (102,979)
Increase in prepayments and other T8 AT FRIE & A
receivables JE W 3k TE 15 N (872) (8,571)
Increase in restricted bank deposits 5 B #I| 4 17 7F & Hn (11,172) (9,702)
Increase in trade and bills payables & 5 & 318 &
FE A< 22 4% 12 0 54,982 31,539
Decrease in accrued expenses and  JE&FFI X M E 4
other payables FE A SRIR R A (17,806) (2,822)
Cash generated from/(used in) REFB/(FFARE
operations 79,088 (55,269)
Income tax paid B AEH 21(a) (12,635) (6,940)
Net cash generated from/(used in) E&FE B (FrH)
operating activities HeFHE 66,453 (62,209)

The notes on pages 134 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

elRENEER

|||m

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &

(Expressed in RMB) (LA A & # 21| )

2020 2019
(Note)
(Bt 3%)
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® TR AR®ET T

Investing activities REED
Payments for purchase of property, BEME BELEHZ

plant and equipment E (36,941) (31,298)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BEKEZHZ

plant and equipment Fr 1§ 50 1R 188 230
Interest received 2k F B 243 248
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMAREFH (36,5100 (30,820)
Financing activities A& E
Proceeds from bank and other loans R 77 & H #th B Z AT 15

IR 16(b) 200,069 147,813

Repayment of bank and other loans  BiE R T R HE M E X 16(b) (182,139) (122,535)
Proceeds from bills discounting SIRAR TS IR 16(b) - 14,701
Proceeds from issuance shares by %ﬁ BEXARE % 1T

initial public offering, net of share B& 15 BT 15 3 B (30 B

issuance expenses 1 E1THZ) 23(b)(i) - 99,332
Net decrease in the amounts due JE i 42 AR AR 3R R TE R

to the controlling shareholders F R 16(b) - (1,346)
Dividend paid B’ E 16(b) (10,825) (22,505)
Interest paid B H B 16(b) (9,647) (5,573)
Capital element of lease rentals paid HE& ﬁ BEAREENRIE 16(b) (878) =
Interest element of lease rentals paid & & & 7 B € & 7% 1HE 16(b) (157) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from B EFZE (FTA) B

financing activities REeFHE  (8577) 109,887
Net increase in cash and cash ReRkBRESEWEM

equivalents bR 26,366 16,858
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYRERAEEEY

beginning of the year 16(a) 30,246 13,385
Effect of foreign exchange rate NEEXRESHIZE

changes (2) 3
Cash and cash equivalents at FREEREAEEEY

the end of the year 16(a) 56,610 30,246

The notes on pages 134 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 355 ¥l 2 Bl X

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

1

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIg/SE A AR A A
-

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2017 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15 January
2019. The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of automotive interior and exterior decorative
components and parts.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“lASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 comprise the
Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

FEE SN A R ESR)
ERETHE®

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments
to IFRSs issued by the IASB to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

e Amendments to
IFRS 3,

e Amendment to

IFRS 16, Concessions

Definition of a Business

Covid-19-Related Rent

None of these amendments have had a material
effect on the financial position and the financial
result of the Group. Other than the amendment
to IFRS 16, the Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective

for the current accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group

and other parties) are considered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative equity interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interests retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(g)(ii)), unless
the investment is classified as held-for-sale.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

2(g)(ii)).

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest;

- buildings situated on leasehold properties;
and

- items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see Note

2(f)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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2 EAREFHHEHE®

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Estimated
useful lives

Plant and buildings 10 — 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Moulds 4 — 5 years
Motor vehicles and other 5-10 years
equipment
Right-of-use assets:
— Land-use-right leased for own Over the
use unexpired
term of lease
— Plant and buildings 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in process until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

()

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(e) and 2(g)(ii)).
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

()

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of a
lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions
which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied
the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient
set out in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as
if it were not a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)
(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with Note 2(q).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance
lease or as an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Group applies
the exemption described in Note 2(f)(i),
then the Group classifies the sub-lease as
an operating lease.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for ECL on financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, and trade and other

receivables) and contract assets.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that

the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for trade and
other receivables and contract assets are
discounted using the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof, where the effect of

discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

2 EAREFHHEHE®
() EEEFBEBREEREMGE)

(i)

RKELBMTARSHEEY
=B &R (&)
BHEEREEZ T E(E)
EHEEEERTIEEL

—5tE:

- 1R2EANEHEEERE:
BN HRE B HKRI2ME
A A E R REE X 8
MEE: &

- HUERFHNEHEER
BE: EAHERRNES
EEFEREEAZEEN
BHAERFRAARM
BAREMENEHME
B EE -

EORBERERGHEEN
EREEBERENAER
FHONEHEEREZSE
HE-ZFTERMEENEN
FEERREBEASEBAERE
EEBREKR EREX—BME
BE TG XREHA
ZHEEERHHEAHA
B Ko T8 ORI B8 B IR R B9 Y
(R R

R EHEMLEMTAMS
AEBBIASN12(E A BEH
EFEEBENEBERER K
HE R T A A 6 ERE
= & & B K0 38 00 R 1E Bl
EUBERT BREFGEZA
EREFHNBEHREEBREMA

S HWATE-

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2020 145
—



Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 355 ¥l 2 Bl X

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(V)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held). The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
market, economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse effect
on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(V)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(q)(ii) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in payments;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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2 EAREFHHEHE®

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment; and

= investment in a subsidiary in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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ERETHE®
(9 CEEEFEBEREEREHE)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

(i) H fth 3¢ 37 B & Z i 18 ()
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costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(h) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, in
the process of production for such sale or
in the form of materials or suppliers to be
consumed in the production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Inventories (Continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventories (see Note 2(h)(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had
not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred
if the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.
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2 EAREFHHEHE®

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Inventories and other contract costs

(Continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract
may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other
costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract. Other
costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not
capitalised as inventories are expensed as
incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised.
The accounting policy for revenue
recognition is set out in Note 2(q).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

FEE SN A R ESR)
ERETHE®

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

(i) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(q)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(g)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional

(see Note 2(j)).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 2(q)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note

2(7))-

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

(j) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see

Note 2(i)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for

credit losses (see Note 2(g)(i)).
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2 EAREFHHEHE®

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(g)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost, using
an effective interest method. Interest expense
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note

2(t)).
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2 EAREFHHEHE®
n) EETH

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(ii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(o) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 E XS5 HE®)

(o) Income tax (Continued) (o) FB#H(E
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, BV BA 75 T8 45 #h KR RE A I8 A4S R A
and movements therein, are presented FiEBES DHR2IWNATE
separately from each other and are not offset. EREHEH ERAQXAHILAE
Current tax assets are offset against current B A& L 58 B B 1T B9 R F LA A5 BD
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against BB EEERBANHBEEG:
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the i B & AT 88N B HER
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off MEBEEFATHENAHIEG EK
current tax assets against current tax liabilities H BREHIBEE T Al HIET
and the following additional conditions are met: MIE B EEE
- in the case of current tax assets and — SABBEEEREEME
liabilities, the Company or the Group PNS/NES| = AN SR T B QR
intends either to settle on a net basis, or EEZE SRARKEREE
to realise the asset and settle the liability LEEBE &

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and - BMELHBEEERBGEMS -
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes WMEER-RBEERMEWK
levied by the same taxation authority on WA EMEM HEMBMSE
either: Thm
- the same taxable entity; or — R —ERWE S

B9
- different taxable entities, which, in - THEHMNERMEBHE
each future period in which significant W -mMZEERBMAER
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or HERBEEHEAE
assets are expected to be settled or FEHEEIRBELERN
recovered, intend to realise the current HEEAKE /SR
tax assets and settle the current tax REFE A HRIFEHE
liabilities on a net basis or realise and EEHREANBHEELEER
settle simultaneously. HEANBMBEEAR X
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIg/SE A AR A A
-

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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2 EAREFHHEHE®

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

()

(ii)

Sale of automotive interior and exterior
decorative components and parts
Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises, the
customers take possession of and accept
the products, which is taken to be the point
in time when the Group transfers control
over the products to the customers. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all
the goods promised under the contract on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see Note 2(g)(i)).

(q) WzERkHEAYAGE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

0]

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as other
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are recognised as deferred income
and consequently recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the useful
life of the asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
Group initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB, the Group’s reporting currency, at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

®

Research and development expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities
is capitalised if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(1)),
where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(g)(ii)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 E X5 HE®)

(u) Related parties (uy BAEER
(a) A person, or a close member of that (@) WMEBUATALTHZALHRK
person’s family, is related to the Group if PRAK B - Bl BN [E A B

that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the (i) $EHlskEEERAEE:
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the (i HAXEEHREEEATE
Group; or ik

(iiiy is a member of the key management (il AEBEBXAXEEG R A
personnel of the Group or of the MEZEREKSE -

Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of (b) @B TEMEHS BIE
the following conditions applies: REAEEE R -

(i)  the entity and the Group are members () ERHEAEEBAR —%
of the same group; BEHKE

(i) one entity is an associate or joint iy " REBAES " EED
venture of the other entity (or an /NS R N T €1
associate or joint venture of a member S—ERBEANENSE
of a group of which the other entity is ERENEE QAR E
a member); %)

(iii)y both entities are joint ventures of the (i) MREBHBE —F=
same third party; THEeERE:

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a (v, " REBRE=F7TEE
third entity and the other entity is an MeEgEhEmMs—EBE8
associate of the third entity; BREZEZFEENBRE

NES] I

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit (v) REBDAARESEHILE
plan for the benefit of employees of MERXEEEHEBENE
either the Group or an entity related to BHNEERAZ IR
the Group; K& & A 5 &l

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly (i) ZBEBEBABQ@QMATAL
controlled by a person identified in (a); PR ok RE A E RS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Related parties (Continued)

)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
Note 24 contains information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Impairment losses for non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a non-current asset may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of non-current assets as
described in Note 2(g)(ii). These assets are
tested for impairment whenever the events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and the value
in use. In determining the value in use, expected
future cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of
the level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have
a significant impact on the recoverable amount
of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in
future years.
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g 5 H B R 5o

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit loss allowance for trade receivables
Loss allowance for trade receivables is based
on assumptions about the expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
expected credit loss estimation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in these
assumptions and estimates could materially
affect the result of the assessment and it may be
necessary to make additional impairment charge
to profit or loss.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual values, if any. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives and
residual values, if any, of the property, plant and
equipment regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values, if any,
are based on historical experience with similar
assets after taking into account the anticipated
changes on how such assets are to be deployed
in the future. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

(b)
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dHESN  GUAREST)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDSBESE
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The Group is principally engaged in the AREBFTERETRERNIEHET
manufacture and sale of automotive interior BHRENBEE - BEEAANER
and exterior decorative components and parts. EEBHE— T FBERME4D)
Further details regarding the Group’s principal =
activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BRTITEEMHEEBEFRFAHZWAE
customers by major products is as follows: DT
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETT
Revenue from contracts with 1= B BR B 7 R & E Al
customers within the scope of FISFEERNEEF
IFRS 15 BATAHZWA
Disaggregated by major products: BEXEZEEmHE:
— Sales of heavy trucks’ decorative  — 4% & &~ H & &
components and parts TEH 4 332,448 254,732
— Sales of passenger vehicles’ —HERAEED
decorative components e
and parts 47,107 43,175
379,555 297,907

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes
4(b)(i) and 4(b)(iii) respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 3% ¥R 2 B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

WARDEBHREE

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

The Group’s customers with which transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue are
set out below:

BEFPA
EFB

Customer A
Customer B

(a)

L ONE D)
AEFBRZZXSBBAEE KA
10%MEF &5 T

2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE AR®TRT
177,268 112,140
144,378 107,113

Details of concentration of credit risk rising from
the Group’s customers are set out in Note 24(a).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by products.
In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

- Heavy trucks’ decorative components and
parts: this segment includes primarily the
research, development, manufacture and
sale of decorative components and parts to
be installed in heavy trucks.

- Passenger vehicles’ decorative components
and parts: this segment includes primarily
the research, development, manufacture
and sale of decorative components and
parts to be installed in passenger vehicles.

(b)

EP&EFTEERBRFRETHRH
7 24(a) °

7 B &

AEBERER P BEEREEK-
RERAEEERTREREENAN
EBIE | E KA D BB R R AT &
B2 B AEEEEH
AT P fE A 2 o AB o B E AR
REDH NEXTIHNATZ2HRD

-

- ENRBERHTHMG:ZH
BEZERLZERERRE
MEHTIFOME £ E
KIHE -

- EAERHTHEKHE
IEOEZEREBEME
HEBEOAE EERH

%o
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Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

4

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIg/SE A AR A A
-

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
and revenue generated by those segments
and direct expenses incurred by those
segments. The measure and revenue used
for reporting segment result is gross profit.
No inter-segment sales have occurred for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019. Assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

The Group’s other operating expenses,
including other loss/income, selling and
administration expenses and finance costs,
and assets and liabilities are not measured
under individual segments. Accordingly,
neither information on segment assets and
liabilities nor information concerning capital
expenditure, interest income and interest
expenses is presented.

it B9 & )

RV VNS 2

WA R 5 AR 8| & (&)

(b) o EB®E(E)

(i)

SBEE BERERE
R MBEERES B2
MOoRER AEBHZET
BREBERATELEE S
AE2HHEB2EIHEE:

WAERRY2BZE D PE
EE@@%%&;Z% HEEN
BEERY PEEZETE2HRH
B o EEi\iﬁ&/\'LB%Z LA F) &
& o B E2020%F K2019F 12
A31BLEEFE TELR
DEEEE — @M B
— {8 7 B0 12 4t &9 17 Bh (B 48 =
AEEWRA RN I &

S

AEEMEMEER(NE
i B8 (R A) - $HE R X
THRHAX RBBERAR)ARE
ERBEITF ABH DB -
Rt - EwmeEBHEOMEE
RBAEMNEN THEHE
BARRAX - MBWARFE
MXMER T EZ5 -



REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 355 ¥l 2% Bl X

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

()

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers by the timing of revenue
recognition, as well as information
regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out
below.

WARDEBHREE

(b) = #BHE (H)

(i)

DA BEEREMEE

#H £20204F & 20194F 12 A 31
BIESFE  BHRARRE
BEEFPEITANZIBAR
MO ERRERFH D BEE
MAAEBRESTHRERE
RECCEHEAEBEAZH D
ESERET R o

2020
Passenger
Heavy trucks’ vehicles’
decorative decorative
components components
and parts and parts Total
ERFHE FA®E
2% 8 = & 4 E T M @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T AR TR
Revenue recognised at £ X — I & 2
a point in time from Rk g ok
external customers HBEFPZHK
A 332,448 47,107 379,555
Reportable segment A 2 2 28 E
gross profit ) 113,082 3,824 116,906
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Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

FEE SN A R ESR)
WARDEBHKE @

(b) 7 #B|/E (H)

THREE BEEREMEE

(Continued)
2019
Passenger
Heavy trucks’ vehicles’
decorative decorative
components components
and parts and parts Total
BRRER FEH=E
£ Z 5 14 58T B 4 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue recognised at £ & — B [ 24
a point in time from (R =R
external customers BEP 2K
A 254,732 43,175 297,907
Reportable segment  A] 2®R D 2 E
gross profit al 92,687 8,501 101,188
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Al 3% ¥R 2 B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment

profit or loss

WARDEBHREE

(b) = #BHE (H)

(i) TE2HDEEZZH K

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Total reportable segment gross A 2 9 2B £ 7 42 58
profit 116,906 101,188
Other income H b Uk A 6,466 6,056
Selling and distribution HEE®MA
expenses (9,737) (9,266)
Administrative expenses THRAX (41,282) (87,793)
Impairment losses reversed/ 5 ERARERFE
(provided) for the year on o GTIRABEER
trade and other receivables 706 (2,544)
Finance costs B 7% B AR (9,804) (5,724)
Consolidated profit before iR A B BOAT & F
taxation 63,255 51,917
(iii) Geographic information (iii) # 5 &F #

The Group’s revenue is substantially
generated from the sales of automotive
interior and exterior decorative components
and parts in the PRC. The Group’s business
is substantially conducted in the PRC.
Accordingly, no segment analysis based
on geographical locations of the customers
and assets is provided.

AEBOHBEAETZRERBERF
B ENE R BE ST
H-AKEBEZ2EBEEMRN
B WERRHERER
REEMWBULEETHND
oA

ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2020 173



174

Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & it 85 & 51 + 19 A A B 51| R)

Notes to the Financial Statements

OTHER INCOME 5 HilA
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFTT
Government grants (including amortisation B 7 % B (‘& & BT 5F 22
of deferred income in Note 22) HR R E R A A 8Y) 2,926 3,421
Net gain on sales of medical goggles and 4 & & & EH &2 &
scrap materials BE Rz W F R 3,215 637
Operating lease income mEHERA - 11
Interest income A B A 243 248
Net gain on disposal of property, plantand H &% % - B = &
equipment FE W F 12 73
Net foreign exchange gains B 5 I a5 B 70 59
Compensation received from a constructor U 5| 322 58 7 B (& X - 1,200
Others H - 407
6,466 6,056
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 3% ¥R 2 B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6  FRBLATEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEBEBIHEMIIRING, (Gt A)AT&E
(crediting): ®EH
(a) Finance costs (a) BF# M A&
2020 2019
(Note)
(Bt 3)
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREBETR

Interests on bank and other loans WITREMERF B 9,647 5573
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNAB 157 151
9,804 5,724

No borrowing costs have been capitalised during #H E2020F12A318 It F E - #

the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB {8 UK AN #E B (B (20194 « A
Nil). REZT) -
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Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

6

(b)

dHESN  GUAREST)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6  BRB A= (@)

Staff costs* (b) B I mKA&*
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETFTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITENMHME 49,725 37,077

Contributions to defined contribution 5 iF £ FUiE K 51 &t 7

retirement plan 408 3,617
50,133 40,694

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong)
participate in the defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the local government
authority, whereby the subsidiaries are required
to contribute to the scheme at a rate of 16%
of the employees’ basic salaries. Employees
of the subsidiaries are entitled to retirement
benefits, calculated based on a percentage of
the average salaries level in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong), from the above-mentioned
retirement plan at their normal retirement age.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
subsidiaries established in the PRC have been
granted certain exemption on the contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans by the local
government authority as a result of the COVID-19
impact for the period from February 2020 to
December 2020.
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MHBARMEEZNAE K
FIEFPIE 32 M) R E 4 FUR (R 18 A
AE B ZEKBRARARE
BEEARNF & M16% A =+ &) 18 H #
Ko ZEHBRARMNIEERMEESD
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 3% ¥R 2 B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

6 BRT A A ()

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
(b) Staff costs” (Continued)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$") 30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no further material obligation for
payment of other retirement benefits beyond the
above contributions.

(b)

BT A (&)
AEBEREEERAMELAEE A
FHUIRERBEEREGKI B
RZBEEBRLABF M LTS E
(T2EEest8]) 2B EHAS
VERAEEREEREIRMAKEE -
REBRESFTEH BEEITREESR
EEARRBRBEEBEA Z5%ME
AEF BARBRAZERA
76 # 30,000 7T ° &t & z £ X BN B 57
B o

R £t R340 AKE A E X
Hip RABANOHEMERNRE -
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Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & it 85 & 51 + 19 A A B 51| R)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 BR® ATE A ()
(c) Other items (c) HfhEB
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEF T
Amortisation* e 65 =
Depreciation charge* (Note 11) rEZEEEI)
— owned property, plant and -BEME -BEK
equipment R 17,207 13,154
- right-of-use assets —FRAEEE" 775 579
18,047 13,733
Auditors’ remuneration % B AT B 2
— audit service —FEETRYS 1,800 1,800
Research and development costs Tt 8% Bk A< 18,162 15,287
Cost of inventories* (Note 13(b)) 57 & KA (Y 3£ 13(b)) 262,649 196,719
# Cost of inventories includes RMB45,475,000 E FERKABREEBE I KA
(2019: RMB35,044,000) relating to staff costs, TERBHHBAIONARE
and depreciation and amortisation expenses, 45,475,0007C (20194 : A R #
which amount is also included in the respective 35,044,0007T) - B BT A
total amounts disclosed separately above or in EXBTHEBzEELSBIN
Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses. b))z ZESERRAX -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HSREBZXRAMNHMEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) REBRBRANBIERE:
profit or loss represents:

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE ARB®TRT

Current taxation (Note 21(a)): B H#A B 18 (K & 21(a)) -
Provision for the year F R G 12,254 8,217
Deferred taxation (Note 21(b)): I FE B 18 (fF = 21(b)) -
- Origination and reversal of - EREENEELER
temporary differences # [ml 127 (1,122)

12,381 7,095
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Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & it 85 & 51 + 19 A A B 51| R)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HABEZRAMFERH@
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense (b) ZEAREXAEZERHERX
and accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HEHENZHE:
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETR

Profit before taxation Fr B A1 g A 63,255 51,917

Expected tax on profit before taxation, %@ 7 & 8 7] A # &

calculated at the rates applicable w2z HEFEZ
to profits in the jurisdictions B % Al & A < 78 B
concerned (Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) FRIE (M REG) >~ (iR
(iii)) 16,176 13,732
Tax effect of non-deductible items AAMBIEE 2HE
% & 512 195
Tax effect on preferential tax rate BEMEXINELE
(Note (iv)) (Bt 5 (iv)) (4,697) (5,116)
Tax effect on bonus deduction of A B A A 2 N EH A
research and development costs 2B 2 (M E(v))
(Note (v)) (2,156) (1,687)
Others H A 2,546 (29)
Actual tax expense ERBIERZ 12,381 7,095

180 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 5 BIK K /5= A& AR 2 A
-



Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 3% ¥R 2 B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

7 REBEBRANFEHRE

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense
and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(Continued)
Notes:

(i The Company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and the subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”) are not subject to any income tax pursuant
to the rules and regulations of their respective
countries of incorporation.

(i)  The subsidiary of the Group incorporated in
Hong Kong is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: 16.5%). The entity did not have
assessable profits which is subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB Nil).

(iii)  The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax rate at 25% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 25%).

(iv) The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law allows
enterprises to apply for certificate of “High and
New Technology Enterprise” (*“HNTE”) which
entitles the qualified companies to a preferential
income tax rate of 15%, subject to fulfilment of
the recognition criteria. Xi’an Tianrui Automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd. (“Xi’an Tianrui”), a subsidiary
of the Group, is qualified as a HNTE and the
qualification is valid for three years from 2019 to
2021.

(v)  According to the relevant tax rules in the PRC,
qualified research and development costs, are
allowed for bonus deduction for income tax
purpose, i.e. an additional 75% (2019: 75%) of
such expenses could be deemed as deductible
expenses.

(b) RERABRFTEZERBERX
EEENZHE (&)

GEX

(i)

(if)

(iii)

ERESEESEMUIZARER
AEERRBEAES [ HEBRE
Fﬁ%J)EHﬁEZEZFﬁ%’AEﬁ
ARBEHE E?ﬂﬂ%ﬁ’ﬂiiiﬂ&
K

509 88000 ) 48 B4+

H E2020F12A31B I FE - K
EEMNEBTMAZZHE QA
BIR165% 2 B R BB B F 5
T (20194F : 16.5%) ° & = 2020 4F
12AALEEE ZERAME
ELEEHNEBFEHNOERSE
i@ F (20198 « ARBEZ L) ©

HZE2020F12A31BLLEE - K
EERPE(RBEEEBIKILN
BB A 7 B3R 25% 2 T & # ik
lm%ﬁﬁ i (20194 : 25%) °

(PREGERBMEIAT XS
FEIETEmeE] (HHEme
XDEE HLESSBARERA
'Eﬁﬁﬁﬁmrw% B
ffﬂ@ $%I—Fﬁﬁ4ﬂ§
XEAERNMEERA
(A XEDFEFEME
%ﬁff& BEEBAE®KB2019F 2
2021 F REA=F B -

E 2l 2l I it
’\E#ﬁ}')ﬂl
W}‘QIIPA

BEFBEEEHWET 41K H
BERARAEMSHEBENZMN
AP B EM X NEINTES
(20194 : 75%) A] &% E Al & $0
gio
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Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

dHESN  GUAREST)
8 EEM=

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383 (1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

RIEE B QB 55 383(1) &k & 2 8 (3
BEENamBEMRMF2HEENE

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information EHMNOT
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2020
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Total
¥4
2R BN E
ExHe ENEA KHERL 3 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® AR® AR® AR AR®
r T r i T
Executive directors HiES
Mr Hou Jianli 3Fibk 180 - 40 18 238
Ms Chen Bierui (resigned on 12 June 2020)  BFI# & £
(2020F6 A 128 &) 75 - 2 - m
Mr Zhao Shiie (resigned on 28 December Mt s
2020) (2020F 12828 &
fF) 150 - 5 16 1
Ms Hou Yuxi (appointed on 12 June 2020) ERERT
(202066128 ) 105 - 17 2 224
Independent non-executive directors BUFUES
Mr Zhu Honggiang ROziE 80 - - - 80
Mr Zhou Genshu ARELE 80 - - - 80
Mr Shin Yick Fabian EH%EE
(resigned on 15 September 2020) (202059A 5B B1T) 53 - - - 53
Mr Chen Geng BBk &
(appointed on 15 September 2020) (2020598158 %) 23 - - - 23
746 - 164 % 946
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Al 3% ¥R 2 B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &

8 EEM==w)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

2019
Salaries,

allowances Retirement

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Total

e

28R RRE 2
ESie ENEH BiEra 3% @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR AR ARE AR ARE
Fr T Fr Fr i

Executive directors HTES
Mr Hou Jianli REMEE 180 - 24 28 232
Ms Chen Bierui B A8 &+ 180 - 13 - 193
Mr Zhao Shijie MG 180 - 34 43 257
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors

Mr Zhu Honggiang RiLBEHE 80 - - - 80
Mr Zhou Genshu AR L 80 - - - 80
Mr Shin Yick Fabian EHEAE 80 - - - 80
780 - Al Al 922
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Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & it 85 & 51 + 19 A A B 51| R)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 EeSFEMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hEeEZEmF ATHDRIE=H(20194F :
three (2019: three) are directors whose emoluments —R)EE EMESFBHRERMES
are disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the RAEDES M H &M & ((2019F -
emoluments in respect of the other two (2019: two) MB)ATHEMAEBENT :

individuals are as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT

Salaries and other emoluments FekHEMOMS 397 529
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 25 71

422 600
The emoluments of the individuals who are not NREBRLEZEESFALTHRITIIEEETD
directors and who are amongst the five highest paid ATEEMOIRUTHEERN

individuals of the Group are within the following band:

2020 2019
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) Nil to = 7 7T & 1,000,000 7% 7T
HK$1,000,000 2 2
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Al 3% ¥R 2 B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 BEREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF

The basic earnings per share for the year ended HE2020F 12A31BLFEFRE
31 December 2020 is calculated based on REF TR AR ) AR s AR R e
the profit attributable to equity shareholders EF AR 50,874,000t(2019
of the Company of RMB50,874,000 (2019: F: AR 44,822,0007T) KB BEITE
RMB44,822,000) and the weighted average of IR hNAE 920 2,000,000,0000%
2,000,000,000 (2019: 1,995,890,411) ordinary (20194 : 1,995,890,411) i)t &5
shares. e

The calculation of the weighted average number TRRNMETFTEHHEFENT

of ordinary shares are as follows:

2020 2019

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1A 1HZETEBK 2,000,000,000 1,500,000,000
Issuance of shares by initial public ERBERAREBEERT

offering (Note 23(b)(i)) % 12 (Bt 52 23(b)(i)) — 495,890,411
Weighted average number of ordinary 12 A 31 B & i& i% hn #

shares at 31 December EH 2,000,000,000 1,995,890,411

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BEREBEEF

There were no dilutive potential shares B E2020F NM2019F 128318 1t
outstanding during the years ended 31 FE HEBETHEERG -

December 2020 and 2019.
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Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

11

(a)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 X - BEERRE
Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) REEYHIEK
Land-use-right Motor vehicles
Plant and leased for ~ Machinery and and other - Construction in
buildings own use equipment Moulds equipment progress Total
BEBAN RER
EERET rwERE  BERRE g2 LR | FRIR i
RMB;000 RMB;000 RMB;000 RMB;000 RMB;000 RMB;000 RMB;000
ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE
T fr T tr T Tr T
Cost: i
At 31 December 2018 H018E12831A 58,266 - 374% 48972 5,456 6,015 156,634
Impact on iniial application of IFRS 16 & AEABRS BHZ REIZ 165802 - 9,486 = e S e 9,486
At 1 January 2019 R019%1518 58,266 9,486 3142 48972 5456 6,515 166,120
Additions RE 2838 - 5875 5,263 2259 2,651 18,886
Transfer infout) g)/(&1) 6,753 - - - - (6,759) -
Disposals it & = = (479) = (93) e (572)
At 31 December 2019 H019E12431A 67,857 9,486 2 54,235 1622 2413 164,434
Accumulated depreciation: gitfE:
A1 January 2019 R019%1 818 (7347) 5 (11519) (20,184) (3.083) . (#2133
Charge for he year ERTH (1,969) (206) (3791) (1018) (755) . (13733
Writen back on disposals HERED = e 376 e ki = 415
Dbty ROWRURANE i T o SO L 1 O L B
Carying amount; BEE:
At 31 December 2019 H019E12831R 58,547 9,280 21,881 27,033 3823 2413 128,983
Cost: i
At 1 January 2020 RN0E1R18 67,857 9,486 o801 54,235 162 2413 184,434
Additions RE - - 11,292 30,544 2,992 14,269 59,007
Transfer inflout) #)/(84) 1,084 - - - - (1,884) -
Disposals it & - - (538) - (157) - (695)
At 31 December 2020 H0E12431A 69,741 9,486 53,575 84,779 10,457 14,798 242,836
Accumulated depreciation: 2itfE:
At January 2020 R0t AR (9,310) (206) (14934) (27200 (37%9) - (55,451)
Charge for he year ERH (2,266) (206) (4,363) (0,952) (1,198) = (17.982)
Writen back on disposals HERED - - 409 - 110 - 519
At 31 December 2020 RANENAE (11,576) (412) (18,888) (37,154) (4,884) = (12914)
Carying amount; BEAE:
At 31 December 2020 Ho00E12831A 58,165 9,074 34,687 47,625 5,573 14,798 169,922

dHESN  GUAREST)
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Al 3% ¥R 2 B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contnued) 11 ¥ ¥ BERRZRH @)

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use ZHEBEELRANE D 2FERBEE
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: ERRFEI>NDOT :
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Land-use-right leased for own use MIEERAM T oE A 9,074 9,280
Plant and buildings BEEEF 1,897 2838
10,971 12,118
The analysis of expense items in relation to BHRABXERANEERENE X
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BEOHOT :
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use X B & EE 3l 2 5
assets by class of underlying MERAEEENE
asset: X
Land-use-right leased for own use HMEERAM T oE A 206 206
Plant and buildings W E RETF 569 373
775 579
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) & & & 7 &
(M 3£ 6(a)) 157 151
Expense relating to short-term leases £2 % £ 8 Hi 0 2019 4F
and other leases with remaining 12 A31 8 8 2 8l E W
lease term ending on or before ZEHHEHERAEME
31 December 2019 EMRBNRHAX 42 11
Expense relating to leases of HEBEEEMEE
low-value assets, excluding (THEEEEEEE
short-term leases of low-value MEBEE)REN
assets 23 - 30
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities EHEAEAENINHA N2
are set out in Note 20. B E2HME20-
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Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Name of subsidiaries

WEARAR

Baoji Qinrui Automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd.

BARENENHIAR

Ly

Xi'an Tianrui Automotive
Interiors Co., Ld.

BEREERHHER

Ly

Baoji Ruitong Automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd.

BARRNEAHEAR

L

Ryford Holding Limited **

Tianrui International
Holdings Limited™*

XA R R
ERAR

188  CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 5 BIK K /5= A& AR 22 A

Place and date

of establishment/
incorporation/operation
ARAL/
QepuRAs

The PRC
24 July 2019

T
20195724 R

The PRC
22 May 2009

T
2009554228

The PRC
24 September 2020

T
202059724

The BV
5 May 2017

RERLES
2017%5R5H

Hong Kong
13 June 2017
g%
0174567138

dHESN  GUAREST)

12 AMBARMNRERE
UWTERBETEFEREEHXE &
EXE8ENNBRARFB BRIESEH
BB ANKRMDER AL ARK-

Percentage of ownership interest

Particulars of registered/ The Group’s

issued and paid-up
capital
ih/ERAR
BREAFE

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,00070

RMB100,000,000

A K #400,000,0007

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,00070

United States Dollars
(“USD) 100, 100
shares of USD1 each

En10REREE
EIL ]

1,000 shares

10008 i 13

FERRA DL

effective  Held by the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary
5% Ah7  WEAAE
ENER KE 5
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% 100% -
100% 100% -
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

Principal activities

IEER

Manufacture and sale of automotive interior
and exterior decorative components and
parts

NERNEHTHNHERHE

Manufacture and sale of automotive interior
and exterior decorative components and
parts

NERNEHTHNHERHE

Manufacture and sale of automotive interior
and exterior decorative components and
parts

NERNEHTHNHERHE

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding

RERRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 73“ Ht 58

The English translation of the name is for identification
only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese.
This entity is registered as a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise in the PRC.

*x

*%

These companies are limited liability companies
incorporated outside of the PRC.

13 INVENTORIES 13 5

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a)
financial position comprise:

DPEARERE®E
FEEETHELBAP X BEXEXEHE
WA cZERRIEIMANEEE
¥
ZERAAEREABIEREAINE
BRAF -

REMBRARTHNEERBEMN
T&E:

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTRT

Raw materials and consumables R E RS E SR 13,930 19,821
Work in progress £ & m 9,374 9,869
Finished goods X @ 55,162 31,124
78,466 60,814

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) ERBAMIAFAGERER

recognised as an expense and included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold B HEGFEMWEBEE

MEESEIHOT:
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREBETR

262,649 196,719
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance

Bills receivables

Notes to the Financial Statements

Al #% ¥R 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

dHESN  GUAREST)

All of the trade and bills receivables,

14 ESERRERERERE
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
2 5 R IE
(B EEREE) 131,660 161,504
e U 2 % 123,302 74,440
254,962 235,944
net of loss FrEE5EKRRENERZEGIRR

allowance for doubtful debts (if any), are expected to

be recovered within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis

At the end of reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on
the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition,
if earlier) and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

REREMA)AEFR -—FRKD-

() R
RBBEMRERZERAB(RKA
REHHER)) LMK ERR
BHE 5 R WA R E YRR R K
oMM :

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETF T

Less than 3 months 318 A AR 216,239 121,147
3 to 6 months 3@ A ZE6E A 36,338 33,520
6 to 12 months 618l A =121 A 2,385 79,667
More than 1 year 1F A+ - 1,610
254,962 235,944

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables

are set out in Note 24(a).

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIg/SE A AR A A
-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) Transfer of financial assets

The Group receives short-term bank acceptance
notes from its customers as a method of
settlement of goods sold. These notes entitle the
Group to receive the full face values from the
issuing banks upon the maturities of these notes,
which generally range from 3 to 6 months from
the dates of issuance.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had discounted
certain of the bank acceptance notes and
endorsed certain of the bank acceptance notes
to its suppliers and other creditors for settlement
of the Group’s trade and other payables on a
full recourse basis. Upon the above discounting
or endorsement, the Group has derecognised
the bills receivables in their entirety. These
derecognised bank acceptance notes have
maturity dates of less than six months from the
end of the reporting period. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of these notes and has discharged
its obligation of the payables to its suppliers
and other creditors. The Group assessed that
the discounted and endorsed bank acceptance
notes were issued by highly-rated issuing banks,
the credit risks were relatively insignificant
and the Group was not exposed to the relative
interest risk. At 31 December 2020, the Group’s
maximum exposure to loss and undiscounted
cash outflow should the issuing banks fail to
settle the bills on maturity dates amounted to
RMB29,932,000 (2019: RMB55,626,000).

14 ESERREREREE®
(b) EBERMEE

AEBEBHETP WD EHRTA
AEZFREERmN—RBEER
HE-ZEEBBRTAKSEZR
URZEZRIHHERIAER
THE2HMEE ZFEBE KB
FMERHEF SHSEAE6MEA -

R2020F12A831H "&E BB &
FTRITALIEZETTEIR I
MEHEIREMCEREABSES
FRTIAHLEZE UET2ER
BEAEEEREEANE 5 BN K
EREMENZKRE FL LM
BRIk B E%R AEBEE2HKR
IERRAEREE - ZSE WKL
BROBTERLEZNIHA A
REBHKRBATZAEAR - AR
AEERA AKBEEERZSE
EEMNMBEENBARATSER K
EH WEBITEHHRESRE M
BEREANNRET - AEBFH -
EHBEEEEERITALEERH
BAAHARERTET FEE
%R BUE kAN & B IR [ AR
B 5 R @ - )R2020912 8318 -
WMAZRTANEBABRELEESR
BrRAAXEBRHZEKBLRRKRM
BEResRERBRAEERAAR
¥ 29 932,000 T (20194 : A R ¥
55,626,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & it 85 & 51 + 19 A A B 51| R)

15 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(a) Prepayments for acquisitions of property,
plant and equipment
The amount at 31 December 2020 represents
prepayments for the Group’s contracted
procurement of moulds and machinery.

(b) Prepayments and other receivables

15 AR RERHEMEKRKIE
(a) BEYE BMERRENEMNR
b= |
R2020F 12 A31TH M RIBEIEARE
Bii VAN BERARKENTE
3R -

(b) FEMRERHMERKE
2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREBTRT

Advances to staff MBI 8% 852 696
Others H 2,280 1,013
Financial assets measured at HHEKNEGTENS M
__amortisedcost A 3132 1,709
Prepayments for purchase of raw HERMEATENRIE
materials 8,796 8,479
Value-added tax to be deducted RFEMGEB 965 1,833
e 9761 10,312
12,893 12,021

All of the above prepayments and other
receivables as at 31 December 2020 are
expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

192  CHINATIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD s BIX I /58 A &ift A5 R 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 TR FEHRESUREMBE S RE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION &8
(a) Cash at bank and on hand comprise: (a) VRITERFHERAESEEF:
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFBEIEBE S 56,610 30,246
Restricted bank deposits (Note (i)) 52 BR 3R 17 17 F} (BT 3E()) 40,874 29,702
Cash at bank and on hand in the Rir & BRI KD
consolidated statement of financial WITRFHERS
position 97,484 59,948
Less: restricted bank deposits B X R BIER 1T 17 K
(Note (i)) Cinz30) (40,874) (29,702)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REEEREREEXND
consolidated cash flow statement HeahBEEEY 56,610 30,246
The Group’s operation in the PRC (excluding REBRFAPBE(EERINLEED
Hong Kong) conducted its business in RMB. %%LA}\E%}EFF‘?J AR
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the AEARLBEE  BESEDRF
remittance of funds out of the PRC (excluding B (&Ko) AR+ B BT M
Hong Kong) is subject to the exchange &) 5 FE BR )

restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Note: B & -

(i)  Atthe end of the reporting period, bank deposits (i) REERRBROFREERER
are pledged as guarantees for bank acceptance $ EEBTZRITEALEZAE
bills issued by the Group. Re
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

it B9 & )

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s
assets and liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

RV VNS 2
16 RITRFEREUARAEMBBEESRE
BER @
(b) MEZTHELENEEREBNSE
o)

T%?L$%lrﬂ§/§§ﬂﬁﬁ &
CBEREE R
Re# @J @ﬂééiﬂﬁﬁ BET
BenBIAKRBREERELN K
’EIE’JZ*/—\EEE\%%%EP“*E%

194

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s MEFHASERENERE
consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows
from financing activities.
Liabilities
Ef
Included
in accrued
Bank and other  expenses and
loans  other payables [Interest payable Lease liabilities Total
JE 3 B %
RITR REf
EHER 508 EFHE HESE @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREBTT ARBT TR ARBTR ARBT TR ARBT TR
(Note 17) (Note 19) (Note 20)
(H3E17) (3E19) (Hi3t20)
Mtdaay20  RONFAAR o Tepe wnt SR L |
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSHERE:
Proceeds from bank and other loans BORERERMERE 200,069 - - - 200,069
Repayment of bank and other loans EERTREMER (182,139) - - - (182,139)
Capital element of lease rentals paid HEREAREERE - - - (878) (878)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BERE MeBEHA - (157) (187)
Interest paio BRHE - - (9,647) - (9,647)
Dividends paid EftkE - (10,825) - - (10,825)
To changes fom fnancing cashfows ~ BERSRERDAR 1eM oss) e (os) @&
Other changes: Hitt g8
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) B A (K E6(a) - - 9,647 157 9,804
Dividends declared during the year
(Note 23(c)) EME AR 2 (K5 23(c)) - 10,825 - - 10,825
Other changes® Az - (14,701) - - (14,701)
Joeloherchanges . AMXMeR - Bore) T LI 598
At 31 December 2020 R2020%512 318 96,016 - - 2,112 98,128

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIg/SE A AR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

BRORFERSURAEMRERE

from financing activities (Continued)

*

CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising

The amounts represented the payable in relation

to the bills discounting offset by bills receivables
on maturity rather than by cash.

- 16

(b) MEFTHELENEEREBNSE
(&)

*

R ES TR Lo TE R
T L VES LET S FS:
-

Liabilties
8k
Included
in accrued Amounts due to
Bankandother ~ expenses and the controlling
loans other payables  Interest payable  Lease liabilties sharefolders Total
EitRR
Bk REf EfBEK
EER EfRA EfHE HERE RENA B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARBFTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
(Note 17) (Note 19)
(H3E17) (W3 19)
At1 January 2019 01951518 52,808 1,624 - - 1405 55,837
Changes from financing cash flows: BERLFEEH:
Proceeds fiom bank and other loans R REHERFE
HE 147813 - - - - 147813
Repayment of bank and otherloans ~ EEHTRELES (122,5%) = = = = (122,5%)
Procseds from bills discounting SEER - 14701 - - - 14701
Netincrease inthe amounts dueto B ERRE
the controling shareholders FEENFE - = = e (1346) (1346)
Interest paid BfiFl8 - - (5,573) - = (5.573)
Dividends paid BfiRE = (22505) = = = (22509)
Total changes from fivancing BERdnRE
cash flows 2eiE 2218 (7.804) (5.573) = (1,346) 10,555
Other changes: Htge:
Capitalise of new leages HEagTe 2839 = 28%
Finance costs (Note 6(z]) BRAR(H6(a) = - 5573 151 = 514
Dividends declared during the year ~ ¥E KAV E
(Note 23(c)) (R 23(c)) s 20,881 s s s 20,881
Exchange adjusiments EiAE - - - - (59) (59)
Total other changes Epniigs = 20,881 5573 2990 (59) 29386
At 31 December 2019 R2019512A318 76,086 14701 - 2,990 - 9,717
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & it 85 & 51 + 19 A A B 51| R)

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 TR FEHESUREMBE S RE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) -3¢ )
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) FHEEREREAER
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTET
Within operating cash flows REEBRESMEN
— Lease rentals paid relating to -HEHAEREEE
short-term leases and leases of EEHEE#HEND
low-value-assets NHEEHES 42 41
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 17 RTRHEMBLER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans (a) *EEEPRTREMCERERE:
comprise:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETR

Bank loans: |ITE N
— Secured by trade and bills -HArEBEEZESHER
receivables of the Group HIEREKRZERE
(Note 17(d)) (M52 17(d)) 16,585 37,444
- Secured by property, plant and —HBArEERYE-
equipment of the Group BB 1 5% K
(Note 17(d)) (Fff 3£ 17(d)) 20,000 23,500
— Secured by trade and bills -HArEBEEZESHENR
receivables and property, plant HERERER-
and equipment of the Group ME BERZE
(Note 17(d)) (M FE17(d)) 3,500 -
- Guaranteed by a third party —BEZHER 5,000 =
- Unsecured and unguaranteed —EHEX 33,000 =
78,085 60,944
Other loans: HMER:
- Secured by trade and bills —BHEAEEEZEFEW
receivables of the Group RIEREWEE
(Note 17(d)) (M FE17(d)) - 6,000
78,085 66,944
Add: current portion of long-term mn: REFIRIT R H Ath
bank and other loans B FE BN ER Ef
(Note 17(b)) (3£ 17(b)) 10,582 6,747
88,667 73,691
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & it 85 & 51 + 19 A A B 51| R)

17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 17 RTRHEMBER®E
(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (b) AEEBRHAKRTRAEAMERERE:
comprise:
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Other loans: H B :
— Secured by property, plant and —HBrEEME-
equipment of the Group 5 K % K
(Note 17(d)) (M 3£ 17(d)) 17,931 11,142
17,931 11,142
Less: current portion of long-term W REIBIT R E A
bank and other loans B 3R B EA 2B
(Note 17(a)) (Kt 5E17(a)) (10,582) (6,747)
7,349 4,395
(¢) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (c) *EBEEREBERARTRAME
are repayable as follows: RmE
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Within 1 year or on demand 1 ek E K 10,582 6,747
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBER2ER 6,899 4,395
After 2 years but within 5 years 2EIBERSER 450 =
17,931 11,142
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 17 ROTREMBER®
(d) Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are d XEEBHNETRIKREMERSH
secured by the following assets of the Group: AEBHUTEEEER:
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETR

Carrying value of secured assets: EREEME@DE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB &&H 84,576 76,615
Trade and bills receivables 25 EBFIER
& W = 1% 30,625 46,718
115,201 123,333
(e) Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are e) "EBETRITAHEMERYA
subject to the fulfilment of covenants commonly EXECHBEBERNEERHES S
found in lending arrangements with financial B UMAZ#FE - WAEEERZ
institutions. If the Group were to breach the FHORAZEERBEXNABREXRE
covenants, the loans would become repayable B AEBETHERHETZS
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its RENBER - BFEAEERDE
compliance with these covenants. Further details cERBREBZE—FSFBIHNK
of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are FE24(b) ° 720206 12H31H + #
set out in Note 24(b). At 31 December 2020, EL REBRITIREME XD R
none of the covenants relating to the bank and # (20194 &) o

other loans had been breached (2019: None).
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 & it 85 & 51 + 19 A A B 51| R)

18 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 18 ESZENRERENEZESE
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETR

Trade payables B 5 M 5RA 141,640 109,003
Bills payables fE 7 E & 81,748 59,403
223,388 168,406
All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be B2 5 pENZIERENEEIESR
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. —ERNEERIREREE -
At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of R AENBEHHME S ER
trade and bills payables, based on the invoice date, is SENENEEMES ST T :
as follows:
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARE®ETR

Less than 3 months 318 A AR 117,293 95,105
3 to 6 months 318 A =61E A 99,238 57,476
6 to 12 months 61 A =121 A 6,169 14,727
Over 1 year 1F A E 688 1,098

223,388 168,406
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

19 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER 19 E:itMXRHMENHIE

PAYABLES
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETF T
Payables for staff related costs B T8 KA ENKE 2,638 3,534
Payables for acquisitions of property, EBEDE BE K
plant and equipment % E S AR 17,249 7,564
Payables for other taxes H {th B 18 B 38 5,008 4,607
Payable in relation to the bills discounting 2= i& Bt I8 & 1~ 2k 18 - 14,701
Others H 4,089 6,003
28,984 36,409
All of the accrued expenses and other payables FFEREaTHAIREMENREBEBETR
are expected to be settled within one year or are —FRNEERIEZERKEE-

repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

20 LEASE LIABILITIES
The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of
the current and previous reporting periods to IFRS 16:

20

dHESN  GUAREST)

HESE
AEEHERBERABRSHRRBHE
HBEHERARREEE B R E R
SENFICHEAHMNRKEOIHA
mr

At 31 December 2020
A 2020F12 A31H

Present
value of the Total
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
BEMAE BREMHAE
HREE TR EE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR® Tt AR® T
Within 1year N ER ... eea 1,008
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZBER2FR 989 1,098
After 2 years but within 5 years 2EBERSER 59 64
e, 1048 1,162
2,112 2,260
Less: total future interest expenses & : 7K K F| B B X 42 &8 (148)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAGBHRE 2,112
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

20 LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 20 HEEE®

At 31 December 2019
R2019F 12 831 H

Present
value of the
minimum  Total minimum
lease lease
payments payments
=EHEE H=REE
R E NREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBFTT
N L 1 ./ — (Eo-o
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBER2FR 989 1,098
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEZENSFR 994 1,162
1) A 2,260
2,990 3,295
Less: total future interest expenses W RRFIERZRE (305)
Present value of lease liabilities HEARAME 2,990
21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 R&E4HBRREMAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Movements of current taxation in the (a) REEHMBMRRENDBHBES
consolidated statement of financial position B&ERIMT :
are set out below:
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
At the beginning of the year R E 1) 3,595 2,318
Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FREE M FE7Q) 12,254 8,217
Income tax paid BEfNFED (12,635) (6,940)
At the end of the year RER 3,214 3,595
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

21

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIg/SE A AR A A
-

dHESN  GUAREST)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 RGEMEMRRRNAER @

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised: (b) & E IR & EIEE BT .
The components of deferred tax assets N E a TF 81 % ﬁj? /:D“% " ﬁ?ﬁ
recognised in the consolidated statement of MECHREEMERBD REE)
financial position and the movements during the m
year are as follows:

Government
grants and
subsequent  Credit loss Impact of
amortisation allowance Accruals IFRS 16 Total
BRNE
REER
BRHHR FEER £16%
3§ e EHER 2 h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARE ARE ARE ARE AR
r r r r r
At 1 January 2019 R20195 1A 1H 643 15 - - 758
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated (B &R A BHEMH)/
statement of profit or logs (Note 7(a) st AGRABHR(H7(a) (101) 636 456 131 1122
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A31A R
1 January 2020 2020%1818 542 751 456 131 1,880
(Charged)credited to the consolidated (B ABEENER)/
statement of profit or logs (Note 7(a) st AGRABHR(H7(a) (34) (306) 32 181 (121)
At 31 December 2020 12020512 A31H 508 445 488 312 1,753

(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Taxable temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the subsidiaries of the
Group established in the PRC amounted to
RMB156,337,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB108,151,000), where deferred tax liabilities
in respect of the PRC Withholding Tax that would
be payable on the distributions of these profits,
have not been recognised as the Company
controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries
and it has been determined that it is probable
that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

(c) MABRNEEZHEAR
R2020F 12 A31H A LB E
MBI ERARNKRDIK A
ARERMERUEEZBAARE
156,337,000 (20195 = A R #&
108,151,0007t)  EH A Z F &
FoERSHTPRBINKREBDHIE
EHEEBHNAER REZAX
NEEHHBARNKBERER
EREZSHEMNNARKREKRTA

ETEnIk-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £ 20204 12 A31H L F &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (( 5 & i+ 85 & 5) » 15 4 A 8 51| )

22 DEFERRED INCOME 22 ETEWA

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREBETRT

At the beginning of the year R F 9] 2,347 2,572
Credited to the consolidated statement of & A4 & 8= &

profit or loss (225) (225)
At the end of the year RER 2,122 2,347
Deferred income represents government grants BREWAEGEERAEEYE BEL
received in connection with the construction of the LEMNDWRTREE R EEEE
Group’s property, plant and equipment. The grants B B {3 FB AR HR PO B S o E T UG A 8 R
are being amortised over the useful lives of the related EABZENIEMBE AR AR-

assets. Amortisation of deferred income is included in
“other income” in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.
23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX -RFBEERE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EEMBIHNEE
The reconciliation between the opening and REBGARZSHE»HEHAE
closing balances of each component of the FREGHNERIN G A ERE
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the BRNA -

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F 12 A31 B It & &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23

(Continued)
Movements in components of equity (Continued)
Details of the changes of the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

(a)

dHESN  GUAREST)

EX-ERRE®

(a) EEMoNBEH(E)
ARAERDZFIRFNEF K

R B EERIIWT

below:
Share Exchange  Accumulated
Share capital premium reserve losses Total
Rx ROBE EXEE BiER RS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR  AREFTR  ARETI  AREfR  ARETR
(Note 23(0))  (Note 23l (Note 23(d)(iv)
(Witos)  (Rskos(a)i)  (Hiak2a(d)(v)
At1 January 2019 R19E151R 13,216 51,432 2,816 - 67,464
Changes in equity for the year ended 31~ B Z2019512A31A L
December 2019: FERGEE:
Loss for the year ERER - = = (3,069) (3,069)
Other comprehensive income for the year —~ EREH2ERA - - 3339 - 3339
Tol competenshencome  FAEEEMA SRR S Wby o m
Issuance of shares by initial public offering~ BEE R AR EERTRA
(Note 23(b)(i) (F &£ 23(0)(i) 4306 87152 = = 91,458
Dividends approved and paid inrespect of ~ FEEHET % 1)
the previous year (Note 23(c)) & (F5E23(c)) = (10,220) = = (10,220)
Interim dividends declared and paid BRENANTERS
(Note 23(c)) (B323(0)) = (10,661) = = (10,661)
4306 66,271 - - 10577
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 W2019E12B31A K
2020%151R 17,522 17,703 6,155 (3,069) 138,311
Changes in equity for the year ended 31~ EZ2020F 1231 A Lt
December 2020: EEERRE
Loss for the year ERER - - - (2,083) (2,083)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ FAEH2ERA - - (3,973) - (3973)
To competensiecome FREREMA oo B o) (60
Final dividends declared and paid ERETANEERE
(Note 23(c) GEZE0) - (10,825) - - (10,825)
I s - (1082
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020E12831R 17,522 106,878 2,182 (5,152) 121,430
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 ¥X - @ZERRKRE®

(Continued)

shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at
a price of HK$0.25 each upon the listing
of the shares of the Company on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
proceeds of HK$5,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB4,306,000),
representing the par value, were
credited to the Company’s share capital.
The remaining proceeds, net of share
issuance expenses of RMB7,874,000, of
approximately HK$101,198,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB87,152,000) were
credited to the share premium account.

(b) B
(b) Share capital
2020 2019
No. of No. of
shares shares
R&H#HE I g2
000 HK$’ 000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR BETR TR AEBTET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HR®EENIE T
HK$0.01 each EORER N 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2020 2019
No. of Shares RMB’000 No. of Shares RMB'000
RGHE ARETR ki e ARETT
Ordinary shares, issued and fully B ZETREEMERK:
paid:
At 1 January m1A1A 2,000,000,000 17,522 1,500,000,000 13,216
Issuance of shares by initial public BBERAFEEET
offering (Note 23(b)(i)) 13 (B 23(b)(i)) - - 500,000,000 4,306
At 31 December ®12A31R 2,000,000,000 17,522 2,000,000,000 17,522
(i) Issuance of shares by initial public offering () BBERLAHBRERTRG
On 15 January 2019, 500,000,000 ordinary MR2019FE1 8158 &KX & 7

BB R T E#IR LW
BEER025B T 2 B BT
500,000,000 % & H% ™ f50.01
BITHEBEK - BE XKD
T 8 & T 15 X 785,000,000 7
TC(HE & R 49 A K ¥ 4,306,000
TR AR R AR ARE »
ERCNBRBROETHIA
R #7.874,0007C B9 AT 1§ X 18
47101,198,000 L (B E R4
A R #87,152,0007T ) 5+ A B%
MHEERFE -
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(c)

FEE SN A R ESR)
23 EX -FERRE®

Dividends (c) BE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders () FAENEXAGEZERERY
of the Company attributable to the year " E

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARB T
Interim dividend declared and R BEHEESE IR R
paid after the interim period of kA BBk BT AR
HK$Nil cents per ordinary share TBERTAEN
(2019:HK$0.6 cents per ordinary (2019 : &I
share) B AR 0.678 1) - 10,661
Final dividend proposed after the end 1A 7R & 8§ 1% & & K #§
of the reporting period of HK$0.6 I 85K E®RKR0.6
cents per ordinary share (2019: BAL(2019%F : B I%
HK$0.6 cents per ordinary share) @A 0.6 1) 10,024 10,825
10,024 21,486
The final dividend proposed after the N EBHREES N KK
end of the reporting period has not been BERREHREERERLEA
recognised as a liability at the end of the & o
reporting period.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) REAHMEXSZH EMH
of the Company attributable to the BERF—BHFEFEZEN
previous financial year, approved and KAGEZRFEHRE
paid/payable during the year

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Final dividend in respect of the NN E N -
previous financial year, approved ERELE—8BBFE
and paid/payable during the year KEIRR B 10,825 10,220
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands as
amended, consolidated or supplemented
from time to time.

Other reserve

The other reserve at 1 January 2017
represented the paid-in capital of a PRC
subsidiary of the Group, namely Xi’an
Tianrui.

In 2017, Xi'an Tianrui reduced its paid-up
in capital from RMB100,000,000 to
RMB50,000,000. The reduction of capital
was used to set-off the amounts due from
the controlling shareholders.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation completed
on 14 November 2017, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group and
accordingly, the paid-in capital of the PRC
subsidiary of the Group was eliminated
against the consideration of RMB67,500,000
when preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

23 EX -RFERRE®
d RENHEERE®N

(i)

(ii)

K17 B
BhaEBRZERZENE
B -HAENMANN2E
ERFIA(REIDMRE -

Bt E
R2017E1RA1EBERNEMEE
BAEE -—RTPHMMEB QA
(BPAZRIG)MERBBA -

R2017F AL RIs 0 E
% 2 A A R # 100,000,000 7T
Ji = A R ¥ 50,000,000 7T ° 5%
B R &9 A B A 1K 8K R
% B% 3R FRIE o

B MR2017F 11 A14 8 5T K
MEH AAAKABLAEH
HEETSARIZERAR
Bt AEBHFEKBE R
AMEBEREADERERSE
PHEREFEEFREBEAR
¥ 67,500,000 7T i 84 °
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iii) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to
transfer 10% of its net profit each year
to the statutory reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distributions to equity holders.
This reserve can be utilised in setting off
accumulated losses or increase capital of
the subsidiary and is non-distributable other
than in liquidation.

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
the companies comprising the Group into
the Group’s presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(r).

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIg/SE A AR A A
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23 EX-fEERREW
(d) FEHNEERBEWNE)

(i) EEFHE
BEEBEFAPBEERZNER -
AEBRPEKSZHKEAR
REEBFREECHREERE
4R B10% 0 B = B E R
i E K H50% o A 3% & &
EREREARNODEZZFEEADIR
BIVEH » sZ /1 7] A R 1K 88
WEBARKEFGBEXREE
BBRBERINTADIR -

(iv) EX 5
M 57 5 B 1E 5 3R B4 B R
SEzRARNYBEHREBLE
KAESBEEZREEEE A
BHNEZE - ZfREBEREMN
HoNME g EERE -
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23 EX -RFERRE®

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(e)

EXEHE

AEBEEREBEARAZETEZBNER
BASEEARBFELERESE
e KMBEARRSRE & -
VEREMFSAEEE R ER
REBRARBUBEERKAR -

AEEXTHTHEHNRERREE
ARB UBERSRRE KR
MTHAEHBEcREEEKRER
RENEARATFRNESZ R L
2ZEABMEFE XKRBEEMR
MBI EHEARBELIE-

ARARSFEEMHMELBRER
PR 7SN S N EY B AR AR E ©

AEREEARXRBERETHEER
E RPE: MEERE®ERAR-

AEEHBNZEFRBREASEE
AREHNZEERNMEEARE
BRRLEMNEFEIWDOT -
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dHESN  GUAREST)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 BiBEMEERLBMIAEAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents and bills
receivables is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high
credit standings, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2020, 46.8% (2019:
42.9%) of the total trade and bills receivables,
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and
88.2% (2019: 87.6%) of the total trade and
bills receivables was due from the Group’s five
largest debtors, respectively.

212 CHINATIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD s BIX I /58 A &ifd A R A Al
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(a)

FERR
FEERBREHFAIIAETANERE
ITMERAEEAIVHERD
R -AEBENEERREER
BEESMEMERFBEARANE
E-AEEMAIHRERAE R
ReZEBONREBREENES
RBRER RERHFIRAAR
SEREANRTREBEE
BRUME AEERREERR
B -

AEBE R EAEE @RS
R E A E AR

ESEKSE
AEEEBRENEERREIESS
EEMERBRAIFZE MR
FREFMEMTE Bt EX
EF EERRETERAEEAER
BREFHEANRBEBEESE ®
20204 12A31H B 5 E Wk R &
e W E K 8RR 2 46.8% ((2019
F:42.9%) K88.2% (2019 F :
87.6%) N R AW AEEZKXE
BARAREBAZRKE-
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 B EREERSBRIAEAAEBEE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

(a)

= & BB (8)

B 5 FE W R ()
AEBEHEREEEE T8
WABEEPEETHEMNERN M-
ZEFBEPREFPBESHNEZ
HRBEZRERBERNROEE N
AEREBINEFPHAREN KA
EFPEEMEMNKRBERREEHN
MER BZRERRFTEARER
Hi1R30E90R M 2| 8 - AN & & —
RAKEBREF R A M-

AEEZEEENAERFHENE
HEEBERZSRFTEEIRI
REARAHNEEEBRRER AH
RN ERBRBEBEAESH -
ERAEBEELEFEERRERY
BERTNTRASETEFRPHBELR
AHBEREREZZR RILER
FRMEAAEELABERR RE
—FEDSAKETRNEFERE

o
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIg/SE A AR A A
-

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs
for trade receivables at 31 December 2020 and

dHESN  GUAREST)

24 BXEREERESBIAEAAB®E

(a) FERBE®

E 5 EWHEGE

TRIBMHE A B AN K ER2020F &
2019 12 A31TEHEBR A E A K
FESRERURENTEHREERIE

2019: Z B
2020
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHEEX BERHEE EiEEE
% RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TRT AR%®Tx

Ageing analysis of BESZEWRNE

trade receivables: BRER 2 AT
Less than 3 months 318 A AR 0.5% 94,640 (473)
3 to 6 months 3z=61E A 3% 36,194 (1,086)
6 to 12 months 6=121E A 5% 2,511 (126)
Over 1 year 1F LA £ 100% 610 (610)
Total @Et 133,955 (2,295)
2019
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHA & 18 BERHEE B 1B
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TFR

Ageing analysis of EZEWRE

trade receivables: BRER 2 AT

Less than 3 months 31E A AR 0.5% 113,505 (568)
3 to 6 months 3%6ME A 3% 33,247 (997)
6 to 12 months 6=121E A 5% 17,176 (859)
Over 1 year 16 A E 100% 577 (577)
Total @t 164,505 (3,001)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 B EREERSBRIAEAAEBEE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past recent years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

Movements in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade receivables during the year are
as follows:

(a)

= & BB (8)

B 5 FE W R ()
BHEBEEXNENBELFNE
BRERERAESL ZFMX
RABURBRKEES BURHE
B AR OB R - F AT R R B R & [
BRKWKERBRFHOLEMRR
WEBEZENEZR-

FRAEBEZRKWFENEER
BHEMEHBERMT

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Balance at 1 January R1A1B&& 3,001 457

Impairment losses (reversed)/ AEFEEEFiRRE
provided for the year &5 18 (706) 2,544
Balance at 31 December M12 A31H & &% 2,295 3,001

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELEMR

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

AEENBRREREMEERD B
ERERRETEERFENBR
BRAEBHEFTONASFHE -
MEREETECHEBNE RN
AmmERE UARREEHAR
EHMRBESHE R
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 B EREERSBRIAEAAEBEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest dates the
Group can be required to pay:

(b)

REE SRR
TRIITAEENFRTESRE
ERBREARNRKA NI HA
RI - HTREEITORBRRSE
MEBREITOMNEFENNE
M HEAFERRE AlR®RSE
HANERNEXHABE)RAKEEA
XNRENRFAHREE

2020
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AHRERRESRE
More than  More than
Within1  1yearbut 2 year but
yearoron lessthan2 lessthan5 Carrying
demand years years Total amount
1FRHE HB1FAE HEB2548
ZX DReE D3iNE:S Bt BEE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®Tn AR%®Tn AR%®TR AR®Tn
Bank and other loans RITREAM
BN 92,054 7,363 454 99,871 96,016
Lease liabilities HEEB 1,098 1,098 64 2,260 2,112
Trade and bills payables REHKAK
measured at amortised FENES
cost R FRIE R
R E 223,388 - - 223,388 223,388
Accrued expenses and other 1% % # At /&
payables measured at TEMER
amortised cost Y REAM
FE 13 %8 23,967 - - 23,967 23,967
340,507 8,461 518 349,486 345,483
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 B EREERSBRIAEAAEBEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b)

2019

REE SRR

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
HEE R

More than More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 year but
yearoron lessthan2  lessthan5 Carrying
demand years years Total amount
1EREE HBB1EE BBE2FE
2k PR2E DPHEE @t FEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETT
Bank and other loans RITREMER 75,972 4,660 - 80,632 78,086
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,035 1,098 1,162 3,295 2,990
REBHK AT E
Trade and bills payables 0B 5. T
measured at amortised cost B & B EF 168,406 - - 168,406 168,406
Accrued expenses and other 1% 5 B K 5t £
payables measured at MEFHAX K
amortised cost Hib R 36,409 = = 36,409 36,409
281,822 5,758 1,162 288,742 285,891
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 B EREERSBRIAEAAEBEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (c)
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair EREMNEXER KA RENRRE
value interest rate risk respectively. @ o

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5=

A =@ b

AEBOMNEXEREIBEXRBENE
BE-EEDEIHNEREE
FMEZEWR SAEEDRARRE

TRIBAEERNREH RN R
BENXRESFE:

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s total borrowings at the end of the
reporting period:

2020 2019
Effective Effective
interest rate Amounts interest rate Amounts
BERAZ ¢8 ER A% ER
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARETTL
Fixed rate borrowings EHZREE
- Lease liabilities -HERE 8.10% 2,112 8.10% 2,990
- Bank loans -RITER 4.05-9.05% 78,085 5%-7.8% 60,944
- Other loans -EpER 6.75%-7.76% 17,931 7.76%-9.27% 17,142
Total borrowings EEgE 98,128 81,076
Fixed rate borrowings as a EHEEERLEESD
percentage of total borrowings BEolk 100% 100%

(d) Currency risk (d) E¥&ER

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through receivables and cash balances that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily RMB.
At the end of the reporting period, the related
risk of the Group is not material.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) Fair value measurement
Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

25 COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2020 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as follows:

25

Commitments in respect of purchase of FHEEEME.-
property, plant and equipment 5 A E
— Contracted for —B &4

BHERABEERESMIAQIABE®R

(e) AAEE
TEAABINENEH T AR
nE
PN SRE g D A N 3 WD N = <)
et T AR ME SR R20204F
N2019F 12 A31E M A A X £
BEAREER-

R E
R2020F 12 A31 B E 4 & B3R R &
ABHEORENEREENDT

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE AR®TRT

B E &

26,516 39,108
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 EXKBHE IR S
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in BRAGEVBERREMIOMBERD
these consolidated financial statements, the Group Eeroh REBERF NG LA T @S
entered into below related party transactions during R
the year.
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEEABHM
Remuneration for key management personnel AEBFTZEERBEASHFHEEDS
of the Group, including amounts paid to the AR RES®RIEGH M TS
Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 8 FERBRRENETERRENES
and certain of the highest paid employees as RE(HOMEOMBER)MAT :
disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
AR® TR AR T T
Short-term employee benefits EHEE®RA 1,307 1,246
Post-employment benefits RINERF 61 166
1,368 1,412

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see Note 6(b)).

(b) Transactions with equity shareholders of the
Company and their affiliates

FEEERTE KA A AR
F6(b)) °

by BEXLAFARERRRAENWEQA
B2

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR®TT

Net decrease in amounts due to the & - 52 I& A% TR 3% 18 &

controlling shareholders P

- (1,405)

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions
None of the above related party transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2020 falls
under the definition of connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD 1 EIXIg/SE A AR A A
-

c) EEBEEXRZz2LTRAZEHR
T
H Z2020F12A31B L E Fiat
AR 5B ES A EmRAE
YAEFTATHES S FEH
BEXINTEEER -
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27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 27 ATFEBEZHBERRR
FINANCIAL POSITION
2020 2019
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
M 3T AR T ARBET T
(Note)
(B 7%)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KM BRAIZEAE 2 67,456 67,456
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FER—FHKBRBARZ
KIB 52,270 67,700
Prepayments and other receivables T8 i 18 & H 1th & Uk
KIB - 467
Cash at bank and on hand RITKFHERAS 1,704 2,688
Netcurrentassets ~~~~ #"BREEF® 00000 53974 70,855
NET ASSETS EEFHE 121,430 138,311
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EERR#HE 23
Share capital % A< 17,522 17,522
Reserves (Eges 103,908 120,789
TOTAL EQUITY i 121,430 138,311

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 26 March 2021.

Hou Jianli
BmEF
Chairman

FE

EESN2021F3A26 8 # £ FHET

%ééo

Hou Yuxi

BRHE

Executive Director

HITEF
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28 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END 28 & H & FEFAREREE
OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

29

(a)

(b)

Proposed final dividend

On 18 March 2021, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK$0.6 cents per
ordinary share. Further details are disclosed in
Note 23(c)(i).

Impacts of COVID-19 pandemic

The outbreak of the COVID-19 since early 2020
has brought additional uncertainties in the
Group’s operating environment in the PRC. As
far as the Group’s business are concerned,
the outbreak has not negatively affected the
Group’s financial performance for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to date of the
report. Management will continue to monitor the
development of COVID-19 and react actively to
its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY
The directors of the Company consider the immediate

holding company of the Company at 31 December
2020 to be H&C Group Holding Limited, which is
incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling

party of the Company at 31 December 2020 to be Mr
Hou Jianli and Ms Chen Bierui. H&C Group Holding
Limited does not produce financial statements

available for public use.

222  CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD R EIRIAE ARG R AR
-

(a) BERERE
MR2021F3A18H ARAIEERZ
EAMRKRERERERRKROGHEN-
E—SHBRME23C)N)EE -

(b) HEETREEMAEBENELE
B2020F ¥ & B B AR m 5 I
REBAR BAEBE 2 KER
REREZAMEAR - st & B
X¥BEmMs ERATREEERHZE
2020F12A31HIEFEREEAR
BHEBHNMBEEELEAEBRY
Z-FEREREEEEHNEEM
mEMAEBENER  ILIEEE
¥ OH H R K B B RS AROR A K
ROTE-

29 EERERRERA

KA alEERAB R2020%F12H31
HARBWEEZEHNATAAREBRE X
B 5 5 i A 32 MH&C Group Holding
Limited © 722020 12 A31 8 & 2 7] &
IS REEMN LA RRB L -
H&C Group Holding Limited I £ 45 % &F
BREBABRER -
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments and a
new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2020
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

30

B £2020F12A31B L £ ECE &
M EMRERNBITER FEAR
RENTREE

HEAYERERAZBEH BEGTE
ARESeEBBLZHEBIA —BF
Bt &R BB BREEDNE
1758 R & 9 (EH =2020F 12 A31H
EFEHMAER BMAEZTBRE
PG - HBE T Al A AEEE

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or
after

RTI B zE
MENEstEER

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Interest Rate 1 January 2021

Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

BIPR A B mEERFEIR - BB &5 2R F 395 - 2021F1A18
B EREENFE7TRREBRMEREENFE4HR
BRI EREENFI6R B A EEEHNE-F_ER
Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
MBREERNEIR BT HHEL M 202241 A1H

Amendments to |AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before 1 January 2022

Intended Use
B &t R FE165 2 EE]
Y B R AR KT S B2 T2 E

202241 A1H

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022

BERGHEAFEITRIER] BRUAN-ETENIHXK

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

20221 H1H

1 January 2022

¥ 20184F £ 2020 4F 1A B 2 B BX BF 7 3R 5 2 A 19 F & 2 20221 A1H

Amendments to |AS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- 1 January 2023
current

BestERE 1R HEEERTE A IETE 202341 A1H
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 30 # £2020512A31H L5 EE &
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS HEMRERNBITAER FEAR

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE

RENITEEE®

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

BB R A BN T B RRAR

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

BEREGA EAFIREEREERELENEERSF2R 2B

Bit R KE

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

B Gt BRFHR 2B Eaf it EE

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture

BUPR B S 3 MR 109% R BIBR & 5T % BI B 285K 2 & 5] -
RELZHABENAXAEERNAIZHZEELEHLKLA

Amendments to IFRS 4, Extension of the temporary exemption from

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or
after

RTIBEHHzE
HHENETFHEER

1 January 2023
2023F1A1H

1 January 2023

20231 H1H

1 January 2023
20231 H1H

To be determined

R

To be determined

applying IFRS 9
BIRR Bt B 5 RSB 45%
U e IRABIBRA B #MEERFEINE 2R

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

224  CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD R EIRIEAEANEREER AR
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frHEE

AEBEETEFGERXREFBITARNERE
RERMEEZEE -5 RILEAKE
T REREAEHAGAMBREBK
ERFE-
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